BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL
TOWN HALL
DUKE STREET
BARROW-IN-FURNESS

Monday 20th July 2020

To: The Members of Barrow Borough Council
Mr Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen
You are hereby summoned to attend a virtual meeting of BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL
to be held on TUESDAY 28TH JULY 2020 COMMENCING AT 5.30 PM for the transaction
of the business specified below:

Chief Executive
_______________
Business
VIRTUAL MEETING - Link to view Live Stream via YouTube
This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in physical location
following guidelines set out in Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020.
Note: The Council will be live streaming the meeting on to the Barrow Borough Council
YouTube Chanel and can be watched live via the below link.
The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except where there are confidential or exempt
items.
To view the meeting online click this link
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

URGENT ITEMS
To consider any items of business which the Chair decides should be considered
as matters of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government
Act 1972. [Urgent business may only be taken by reason of special
circumstances” (which will be recorded in the minutes), the Chair of the meeting is
of the opinion that the item should be considered as a matter of urgency.]
To expedite the business of the meeting, Members are requested to give the
Chief Executive adequate notice of any Amendment which they propose to raise.

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in respect of
items on this Agenda.
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct,
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s
Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and transparency,
to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable pecuniary interests
which they have already declared in the Register, as well as any other registrable
or other interests.

4.

MINUTES
To confirm the Minutes of the Council’s proceedings held on 16th June 2020.

5.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations or
present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no later
than 5pm two working days before the meeting. Information on how to make the
application can be obtained by viewing the Council’s website
www.barrowbc.gov.uk or by contacting the Democratic Services Team at
(jwhuck@barrowvc.gov.uk) or by telephone on (07825206525).

6.

(1)

Questions and Representations
To receive any questions or representations which have been received
from members of the public

(2)

Deputations and Petitions
To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from
members of the public.

ANNOUNCEMENTS
To receive any announcements from the Chairman, Leader or Head of Paid
Services.

7.

BARROW-IN-FURNESS TOWN INVESTMENT PLAN SUBMISSION
To consider submission of the Barrow-in-Furness Town Investment Plan to the
Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government.

8.

BARROW FUTURE HIGH STREET FUND BUSINESS CASE SUBMISSION
To consider submission of the Barrow Future High Streets Fund Business Case.

9.

HOMELESSNESS & ROUGH SLEEPING STRATEGY 2020-2025
To consider Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020-2025 for
incorporation into the Council’s Policy Framework.

10.

BUSINESS AND PLANNING ACT 2020
To consider delegations under the Business and Planning Act (update on the
implementation of the Act will be provided at the meeting)

11.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20
To present the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report for 2019/20.

12.

(A) TO RECEIVE REPORTS FROM THE FOLLOWING COMMITTEES AND
CONSIDER RECOMMENDATIONS:
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)

Planning
Licensing Regulatory
Licensing
Executive
Overview and Scrutiny

(B) QUESTIONS TO THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL
Council has agreed that time be set aside for questions to the Leader of the
Council. Standing Order 10.2 and 10.4 set out the procedure for questions to the
Leader and the notice period required. The Leader will also take and questions
without notice relevant to the reports and minutes detailed on the agenda.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
Page 5

BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS
A VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL of this Borough was held at 5.30 pm.
on Tuesday the 16th day of June, 2020.
PRESENT:- Councillor Hamilton (Mayor in the Chair) and Councillors Assouad,
Barlow, Biggins, Blezard, Brook, Burley, Burns, Callister, Cassidy, D. Edwards,
H. Edwards, Gawne, Hall, Johnston (Minute Nos. 1-12 only), McClure, McEwan,
McLeavy, Maddox, Mooney, Morgan, Pemberton, Preston, Roberts, Robson,
Ronson, Seward, Shirley, C. Thomson, M. A. Thomson, Wall and Worthington..
Officers Present:- Sam Plum (Chief Executive), Susan Roberts (Director of
Resources), Steph Cordon (Director of People and Place), Debbie Storr
(Temporary Senior Legal Officer), Jon Huck (Democratic Services Manager and
Monitoring Officer) and Paula Westwood (Democratic Services Officer - Member
Support).
1 – Minute’s Silence
The Mayor advised the Council that the Leader had requested that Members
observe a minute’s silence to honour all Barrow’s victims of coronavirus.
2 – Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Husband, Nott and
Pidduck.
3 – Declarations of Interest
Councillor Worthington declared an interest in Agenda Item No. 9 – Draft
Climate Change Policy and Action Plan, Objective 3 – Reducing Emissions from
Transport (Minute No. 10) as he was a Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Vehicle
Driver.
4 – Minutes
The Minutes of the meeting held on 27th February, 2020 were taken as read
and confirmed.
5 – Announcements
There were no announcements from the Chairman, Leader or Head of Paid
Service.
6 – Question by the Public
The Mayor advised Members that questions by members of the public did not
give rise to debate or voting.
Mr Zaccarini had attended the meeting to ask a question regarding planned
investments through the Future High Streets Fund and Town Deal.

Agenda Item 4
Page 6
The question was as follows:“In relation to future resilience and growth of the economy, will you detail
the investments planned through the Future High Streets Fund, and Town
Deal. What priorities can you set out in regards to projects to be delivered
together with an indication on how they will improve productivity and
generate new jobs?”
The Leader of the Council responded by thanking Mr Zaccarini for his question
and addressed the concerns raised by him. She advised that she would follow
up with a written reply.
7 – List of Engagements Carried Out by the Mayor and Deputy Mayor
A list of the engagements carried out by the Mayor and Deputy Mayor between
22nd January and 17th March, 2020 had been submitted for information and
noted.
8 – Virtual Meetings
The Monitoring Officer had submitted a report following the review of the
constitution which had taken into account the developments as a result of
COVID19. The report sought approval of the Virtual Meeting Rules and Protocol
which were to be operational for remote meetings undertaken in accordance
with the Local Authorities and Police Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of
Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales)
Regulations 2020.
A draft calendar of meetings had also been presented for approval. It had been
noted that these dates were indicative and may be subject to change dependent
upon business requirements.
Following the cancellation of the Annual Meeting of Council, it had been noted
that appointments from the 2019 Annual Meeting would continue.
It was moved by Councillor M. A Thomson and seconded by Councillor Brook, a
roll call was undertaken and it was,
RESOLVED:- (i) To approve the draft Virtual Meetings Rules and Protocol;
(ii) To approve the draft calendar of meetings for 2020/21, noting that additional
meetings may be required as business requires; and
(iii) To note that the Council Procedure Rules would be amended to reflect the
mandatory standing orders where remote meetings are held.
9 – Heritage Lottery Fund Grant – Shipyard Town Project
The Director of People and Place had submitted a report advising that the Dock
Museum had been successful in a bid for National Lottery Heritage Funds

Agenda Item 4
Page 7
(NLHF) to the value of £816,700 for a project entitled Shipyard Town. The
project would focus on the rich heritage of Barrow’s main industry from the
1950s to the present day, as well as looking to the future.
It had been noted that the total project costs were just under £1 million and
match funding was in place from BAE Systems, the Sir John Fisher Foundation
and the Furness Maritime Trust.
Shipyard Town would be a two-year project that would include the creation of a
new permanent shipbuilding gallery, the building of a research room, an
upgrading of the Museum’s entrance and the introduction of a fun family-friendly
‘Squeeze in the Sub’ learning zone.
It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Roberts, a roll
call was undertaken and it was unanimously,
RESOLVED:- (i) That the grant of £816,700 from NLHF be accepted having
regard to the conditions of grant and grant offer letter at Appendix 1 of the
report, and delegated authority be given to the Director of People and Place to
accept the grant on behalf of the Council;
(ii) That the Director of People and Place, in consultation with the Director of
Resources, be authorised to enter into an agreement with NLHF for them to
provide the funding grant in respect of the Shipyard Town project;
(iii) To agree that the Council committed £25,000 to the project for future
management and maintenance costs; this is programmed as £10,000 from
recurring revenue and £15,000 set aside in the major projects reserve;
(iv) That the Director of People and Place, in consultation with the Director of
Resources be authorised to procure and appoint the necessary resources
required to implement and deliver the project within the approved budget and
council procedures; and
(v) To agree that in order to meet the requirements in Appendix 2 (2), within 28
days of the date of Permission to Start, an application be made to the Land
Registry for a restriction to be entered as detailed in paragraph 7.2.2 of the
report.
10 – Draft Climate Change Policy and Action Plan
The Chief Executive had submitted a report following the Climate Change
resolution of the Council in July 2019, advising that the draft policy and action
plan had been developed by the Climate Change Working Group to
demonstrate and clarify the Council’s position and ambitions.
It had been noted that the Tyndall Centre for Climate Change Research at the
University of Manchester had calculated Barrow’s carbon change target, which
would enable us to reach zero or near zero carbon, no later than 2042.
Ambitious as that was, the Climate Change Working Group had suggested
going further, aiming to reach net zero carbon no later than 2037.

Agenda Item 4
Page 8
To achieve net zero, the Council would:






Reduce emissions from its estates and operations;
Reduce energy consumption and emissions from homes and businesses in
the Borough;
Reduce emissions from transport;
Reduce consumption of resources, increasing recycling and reducing waste;
Increase carbon capture to offset emissions; and
Increase public awareness around climate change.

A copy of the draft Climate Change Policy, together with the draft Carbon
Baseline for Cumbria report had been appended to the report.
It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Roberts, a roll
call was undertaken and it was unanimously,
RESOLVED:- (i) To approve the Climate Change Policy and Action Plan; and
(ii) To note the recommendations of the Carbon Baseline for Cumbria Draft
report.
11 – Review of Constitution (including Officer and Committee Delegations)
The Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer had submitted a report to consider
the review of the Constitution (including Officer and Committee delegations) and
additional recommendations with regards to delegations to enable decision
making to continue during the Coronavirus response and recovery period.
The report proposed changes to the Constitution to add clarity to the Council’s
operations and delegations. It brought in a definition of the Council’s Policy
Framework and sought to introduce a new general Public Participation Scheme.
The work had taken account of the recommendations which had arisen from the
LGA Governance Review and had been considered by the Executive Committee
on 4th March, 2020. The recommendations had been due to come before
Council for approval on 17th March, 2020 but that meeting had been cancelled
due to the Covid-19 pandemic.
A number of appendices had been included in the report as follows:Appendix 1 provided a defined list of policy framework plans and strategies. It
had been proposed that policies not included in the list would be matters for the
Executive Committee and that would be picked up in the Executive Committee
recommendations. A recommendation from the LGA Governance Review had
been that the role of the Executive Committee and responsibility for policy
issues be reviewed. Those proposals made clear what decisions were for Full
Council, and it had been proposed that other policy decisions would sit with the
Executive Committee for final approval.

Agenda Item 4
Page 9
Appendix 2 provided details of the Proper Officer appointments. These had
been reviewed and Members had been requested to note the proposals to
transfer the role of Returning Officer and Electoral Registration Officer to the
Chief Executive, originally with effect from 1st June, 2020, but now suggested
from 1st July, 2020. It was for Full Council to make that appointment. The
proposals also addressed the interim arrangements for the Head of Legal and
Governance which ensured the Monitoring Officer role would continue to sit with
the Democratic Services Manager until the post had been appointed to.
Appendix 3 provided details of the Officer Delegations which had been
reviewed. They reflected more general delegations for the Chief Executive and
Directors and would continue to be kept under review as the organisational
structure was reviewed. The delegations consider the balance between
Members and Officer decision making to remove current anomalies and it was
intended to achieve an appropriate future balance.
Appendix 4 provided details of Committee Delegations. The main changes
related to the terms of reference of the Executive Committee which had been
referred to in Appendix 1. If agreed, it had been proposed that the Committee
changes take immediate effect. Other changes to note had been the proposed
change of name of the Audit Committee to Audit and Governance Committee,
amendments to reflect the incorporation of the standards arrangements, and
also proposal for a Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee to hear and determine
any matter where an applicant for a licence etc. had the right to appear and be
heard by a Committee.
Following discussion at the Executive Committee, further consideration had
been given to the roles of the Overview and Scrutiny and Executive Committee
in high value contract matters. It had been noted that any further proposals for
change would be submitted via a future report to the Committee.
Appendix 5 provided details of the General Public Participation Scheme and
proposed a structure for speaking at Committees, as well as Full Council. The
amendments to the Constitution incorporated those changes, subject to
agreement. It had been noted that these would be reviewed as appropriate,
with regard to virtual meetings.
In considering timing of provision of public questions, a review had also been
taken of timing of questions from members and an amendment had been
suggested which would enable questions to be submitted four working days
prior to the meeting, rather than seven as currently outlined in the Constitution.
Appendix 6 had incorporated some minor amendments to the Financial
Regulations and Contract Standing Orders. It had been noted that these would
be submitted to a full review over the coming year.
It had been noted that, following a review of decision making during
Coronavirus, an additional recommendation had been put before Council which
would only be used in exceptional circumstances, where it would be impossible
or impracticable to take a decision through a relevant Committee or Council

Agenda Item 4
Page 10
meeting. Namely, to delegate the powers to the Chief Executive, Directors and
Heads of Service, in consultation with the Leader/Chair of the relevant
Committee, to take any decision on behalf of the Council, not otherwise
delegated, which could lawfully be delegated to Officers, subject to the decision
taker, before taking the decision, having taken appropriate steps to consult the
Leader and/or Chair and if appropriate, Members of the Committee which would,
save for this delegated power, have taken the decision.
It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Roberts, a roll
call was undertaken and it was unanimously,
RESOLVED:- (i) To approve the proposed changes to the Constitution, as
detailed within Appendix 1 of the report, with immediate effect;
(ii) To approve the revisions to the Proper Officer Appointments and Officer
Scheme of Delegation, as detailed in Appendices 2 and 3 of the report, including
the appointment of Returning Officer and Electoral Registration Officer to take
effect as detailed within the report, subject to the appointment of Returning
Officer and Electoral Registration Officer taking effect from 1st July 2020;
(iii) To approve the revised terms of reference and delegations to Committees,
as set out in Appendix 4 of the report, with immediate effect;
(iv) To approve the General Public Participation Scheme, as attached at
Appendix 5 to the report;
(v) To approve the revisions to the Financial Regulations and Contract Standing
Orders, as attached at Appendix 6 to the report; and
(vi) To agree to further delegate the following decision-making powers to the
Chief Executive, Directors and Heads of Service in consultation with the
Leader/Chair of the relevant Committee:“Powers to take any decision on behalf of the Council, not otherwise delegated,
which can lawfully be delegated to Officers, subject to the decision taker, before
taking the decision, having taken appropriate steps to consult the Leader and/or
Chair and if appropriate members of the Committee which would, save for this
delegated power, have taken the decision”.
12 – Reviewing the Member development Strategy
The Chief Executive had submitted a report regarding the revised Member
Development Strategy, a copy of which had been appended to the report. It had
been noted that the Member Training Working Group had revised the Strategy
to ensure continuation of effective Member development. The Strategy was
reviewed on a biennial basis in conjunction with the Democratic Services
Manager, the Democratic Services Officer (Member Support) and the Member
Training Working Group.
In preparing the revised Strategy, the
recommendations from the Scrutiny review into Member training had been
considered. The responsibility for agreeing the overall Strategy lay in the hands
of the full Council.

Agenda Item 4
Page 11
It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Roberts, a roll
call was undertaken and it was unanimously,
RESOLVED:- To approve the revised Member Development Strategy.
13 – Lancaster and South Cumbria Joint Committee
The Chief Executive had submitted a report concerning the proposals to support
the shaping and driving of economic development across the Lancaster and
South Cumbria Economic Region through the creation of a robust, formally
constituted Joint Committee between Barrow Borough Council, South Lakeland
District Council and Lancaster City Council. The Joint Committee would be
known as the Lancaster and South Cumbria Joint Committee.
It was moved by Councillor M. A. Thomson and seconded by Councillor Brook,
as follows:(i) To approve the establishment of a Joint Committee with Lancaster City
Council and South Lakeland District Councils covering all respective
administrative areas and to promote the economic, social and environmental
wellbeing of the area;
(ii) To approve delegation of the functions within the terms of reference and
adopt the procedure rules as attached in Appendix 1 to the report and outlined
within the report;
(iii) To approve that Lancaster City Council act as the initial host Authority for
one year;
(iv) To appoint the Leader and the Chair of the Executive Committee to the Joint
Committee; and
(v) To approve that the Monitoring Officer be authorised to make all necessary
constitutional amendments to the Council’s Constitution to reflect the
delegations and joint arrangement.
It was further moved by Councillor McLeavy and seconded by Councillor Shirley
that an amendment be made to recommendation (iv) to appoint the Leader of
the Council and the Leader of the Opposition to the Joint Committee.
The meeting was adjourned at 6:50 pm. to rectify problems which had occurred
with the live stream to YouTube.
The meeting reconvened at 7:00 pm.
A roll call was undertaken on the amendment which was thereupon declared
lost with 11 for, 18 against and 2 abstentions.
A roll call was undertaken on the substantive motion and it was,

Agenda Item 4
Page 12
RESOLVED:- (i) To approve the establishment of a Joint Committee with
Lancaster City Council and South Lakeland District Councils covering all
respective administrative areas and to promote the economic, social and
environmental wellbeing of the area;
(ii) To approve delegation of the functions within the terms of reference and
adopt the procedure rules as attached in Appendix 1 to the report and outlined
within the report;
(iii) To approve that Lancaster City Council act as the initial host Authority for
one year;
(iv) To appoint the Leader and the Chair of the Executive Committee to the Joint
Committee; and
(v) To approve that the Monitoring Officer be authorised to make all necessary
constitutional amendments to the Council’s Constitution to reflect the
delegations and joint arrangement.
REPORTS OF COMMITTEES
14 – Planning
It was moved by Councillor C. Thomson, and
RESOLVED:- That the reports of the meetings of the Planning Committee held
on 11th February and 10th March, 2020 be received.
15 – Licensing Regulatory
It was moved by Councillor Callister, and
RESOLVED:- That the reports of the meetings of the Licensing Regulatory
Committee held on 23rd January and 5th March, 2020 be received.
16 – Licensing
The Mayor advised that the meetings of the Licensing Committee scheduled to
take place on 23rd January and 5th March, 2020 had been cancelled.
17 – Executive
Councillor Brook advised that the reports of the meeting of the Executive
Committee held on 5th February, 2020 had been reported to the Budget Council
meeting on 27th February, 2020.
It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Roberts, and
RESOLVED:- That the reports of the meetings of the Executive Committee held
on 4th March and 3rd June, 2020 be received and that each of the
recommendations contained therein had been dealt with under Agenda Item
Nos. 8, 9, 10 and 11 as outlined in Minute Nos. 9, 10, 11 and 12 above.

Agenda Item 4
Page 13
18 – Overview and Scrutiny
It was moved by Councillor McLeavy, and
RESOLVED:- That the reports of the meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee held on 30th January and 11th March, 2020 be received.
19 – Questions to the Leader of the Council
There had been no questions submitted to the Leader of the Council under
notice as required by Standing Order 10.2 and 10.4.
The Leader of the Council took the following questions without notice from
Members which were relevant to the business of the meeting:1. Councillor Shirley referred to Minute No. 97 of the Executive Committee
held on 4th March, 2020 (Draft Climate Change Policy and Action Plan).
He advised that local residents had collected 45 bags of rubbish from
Roanhead at the start of lockdown. He added that the waste Contract
stated that when public waste bins were 70% full they would be emptied.
He asked the Leader to ensure that this contractual obligation was being
fulfilled.
2. Councillor McEwan referred to Minute No. 8 of the Executive Committee
held on 3rd June, 2020 (COVID-19 Council Tax Hardship) and asked
would the Leader agree that now was not the time to remove free school
meals.
The Leader responded to the above questions.
20 – Planning Committee – Chair and Vice Chair
The Monitoring Officer had submitted a report concerning the Chair and Vice
Chair of Planning Committee. He advised the Council that Councillor M. A.
Thomson, the current Vice Chair of the Planning Committee, was to replace
Councillor C. Thomson as Chair, who would become the Vice Chair.
It was moved by the Mayor and seconded by Councillor C. Thomson, and
RESOLVED:- To confirm the appointment of Councillor M. A. Thomson as Chair
of the Planning Committee and Councillor C. Thomson as Vice Chair with
immediate effect.
21 – Appointments to Committees to fill Vacancies
The Monitoring Officer had submitted a report concerning notice provided from
the Conservative Group of its wish to make changes to the membership of
Committees due to the death of Councillor R. McClure.

Agenda Item 4
Page 14
The Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990
placed a duty on the Council to give effect to the allocation of seats in
accordance with the wishes of political groups.
It was moved by Councillor H. Edwards and seconded by Councillor Hall, and
RESOLVED:- (i) To confirm the appointments of Councillor Ronson as an
ordinary Member on the Executive Committee and Councillor W. McClure as an
ordinary Member on the Licensing Regulatory and Licensing Committees with
immediate effect; and
(ii) To confirm the appointments of Councillor W. McClure as a substitute
Member on the Planning Committee, Councillor H. Edwards as a substitute
Member on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Councillor Shirley as a
substitute Member on the Licensing Regulatory and Licensing Committees with
immediate effect.
The meeting closed at 8.02 pm.

Agenda Item 7
Page 15

PART ONE

Barrow Borough Council
Full Council
28th July 2020
Barrow-In-Furness Town Investment Plan Submission
Report from:

Steph Cordon, Director of People and Place

Report Author:

Michael Barry

Wards:

All in Barrow

1.0

Summary and Conclusions

The Barrow-in-Furness Town Investment Plan is intended to provide a confident vision for
the future of Barrow-in-Furness and the role partners, the community and government
support in achieving this.
Shaped by incredibly strong partnership commitment and pace, the Barrow-in-Furness
Town Investment Plan is ready to be submitted for consideration by the Ministry of Housing,
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) on 31 July 2020, placing Barrow among the
very first in the Country to move forward.
The Investment Plan itself makes the case for investment in 7 key projects which combined
and aligned to wider opportunities have the potential to catalyse the transformation of the
town and the ability of residents and businesses to see real benefit.
While offering a focus on individual schemes the plan also seeks to present a long term
ambition and strategy for the continued and inclusive growth within Barrow.
It should be noted that although the guidance is clear that up to £25m of funding may be
sought, it also says that for exceptional proposals this can be exceeded. The current ask
for this Town Deal is £29.4m with a further £500,000 requested for programme support.
While in excess of £25m, the Town Deal Board considered that given the cohesiveness of
the projects, the level of development undertaken and their combined impact this deal is
exceptional. The single largest proposal; the Barrow Learning Quarter would see delivery of
a new University Campus and Skills Hub in Barrow; this would increase access to Higher
Education, help the town grow its role as a centre of excellence in manufacturing and clean
growth; diversify opportunities; bolster the vibrancy of the town centre and enhance the
perception of the town.
The recommendations within this report were discussed at the meeting of the Executive
Committee on July 27th.

Agenda Item 7
Page 16
2.0

Recommendation

Recommendation to Full Council:
1) It approves the submission of the Barrow-in-Furness Town Investment Plan to
MHCLG.
2) Subject to the agreement of heads of terms the Council provide up to £100,000 to
support the development of full business cases required to access delivery funding,
this funding would be reimbursed with the receipt of funding to deliver individual
projects.
3) Barrow Borough Council takes the role of accountable body for Barrow-in-Furness
Town Investment Plan.
4) It is noted that £162,019 of grant funding has been fully committed on consultancy
services, business case development and community engagement, and has been
supplemented by the Major Projects Reserve to the value of £12,660.
3.0 Background and Proposals
Background to the Proposals
Government policy is increasingly focused on securing the levelling-up of the UK economy
with policy recognising that raising productivity and economic growth in the towns and cities
of the north can help increase opportunities but also support a strengthening of the UK
economy.
In September 2019 it was confirmed that Barrow-in-Furness was among the 101 towns that
would be invited to put forward Town Deal proposals valued at up to £25m to deliver
economic growth in the town.
The case for this investment would need to be articulated through an evidenced Town
Investment Plan. Development of this plan must be overseen by a Town Deal Board with
Barrow Borough Council acting as accountable body for funding received. The Government
require that the Town Deal Board comprises a mix of the public and private sector, the third
sector and MP. The role of the Town Deal Board was discussed at the November 2019
meeting of the Executive.
The development of the Town Deal would come forward in two phases with the first phase
focused on the submission of the Town Investment Plan containing a set of project
proposals and then the agreement of heads of terms. Following this there would be a
requirement to develop Full Business Cases through which delivery funding would be
confirmed.
The Town Investment Plan is being considered at the meeting of the Town Deal Board on
24 July 2020 and this report is seeking confirmation that as accountable body Barrow
Borough Council agree that the Town Investment Plan can be submitted to Government.

Agenda Item 7
Page 17
Developing the Town Investment Plan
The Town Deal Board have promoted an ambitious approach to preparation of the Town
Investment Plan, at the first meeting of the Town Deal Board it was agreed to create a:



Plan Development Group, responsible for overseeing plan development
Communications and Engagement Group, responsible for preparing
implementing communications activity

and

They also agreed that external consultancy support should be procured.
Supported by those structures, early in the process the Board was able to confirm a vision
for the town:
To build on our economic strengths, rich industrial heritage, natural beauty and
sense of community to develop a town that is economically dynamic and diverse,
sitting at the forefront of innovation and green growth, viewed as a great place to
live, study, work and visit and home to a healthy population that can deliver a
prosperous, inclusive and fair future
This in turn supported the creation of aligned objectives for the Town Investment Plan:











To put residents at the centre of public service delivery;
To build on our strengths to help Barrow become a centre of excellence and
innovation for advanced manufacturing and clean growth;
To create a resilient local economy through greater diversification, enhanced
competitiveness and providing a wider range of quality employment opportunities;
To grow the working age population by creating an attractive and vibrant place to
live, work and visit;
To equip people with the skills and confidence to achieve their potential to take full
advantage of opportunities;
To strengthen progression pathways through a dynamic and integrated approach to
school, further and higher education;
To reduce deprivation and improve the physical and mental health and well-being of
our community;
To be a digitally connected and physically accessible town supporting walking,
cycling and public transport;
To deliver a more diverse and attractive housing offer while ensuring the continued
renewal of our existing stock; and
To achieve a vibrant town centre, leisure and service offer supporting the role of
Barrow as a regional centre while enhancing our rich built and cultural heritage.

Supported by engagement activity and a technical appraisal process these were the basis
for defining a short list of projects for which funding would be sought through the Town
Investment Plan.

Agenda Item 7
Page 18
Project
Barrow Learning Quarter – Creation of new
university campus and skills hub for Barrow
Community Wellbeing Hubs and Earnse Bay
Outdoor Centre - Establishment of a network of
community resilience hubs and a new outdoor skills
and recreation facility on Walney.
Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure - A
transformative programme of walking and cycling
infrastructure improvements within Barrow.
Housing Renewal Programme - A new housing
market renewal programme focused on key areas of
need.
Business & Enterprise Support - Developing a
supportive business environment for Barrow to
boost Barrow’s enterprise overall,
Place Development – Culture and Tourism - A
programme of activity to promote the town together
with a programme of events and activities
Marina Village - The site would deliver high-quality
housing alongside leisure, retail and cultural
development.

Funding Sought
£13.4m
£4.5m

£4.5m
£4m

£1m
£1m

£1m

A profile of each of these schemes is provided within the Town Investment Plan and are
intended to really drive positive change within Barrow, enhancing access to opportunity
while also supporting economic growth and the perception of Barrow as the place to live
work to visit.
These proposals also seek to lever, synergise and complement other funding streams and
projects like the Future High Street Fund, private sector investment programmes; the All
Electric Bus proposal, Low Carbon Barrow ERDF and Growth Fund applications and Marina
Village.
For each of the Town Deal projects it was considered essential for them to be robustly
developed and supported by clear evidence around the benefits they can achieve in
deliverability and match funding. To achieve this each project has had a Strategic Outline
Business Case prepared.
Accelerated Towns Fund
Within the Government response to COVID-19 Barrow has been provisionally allocated an
additional £750,000 of funding to be spent in 2020/21. This funding will be used for a
number of complementary investments including acquisition of key sites to support the
development of Marina Village, revitalise and repurpose key spaces in the town to support
Place Development and aligned initiatives such as Future High Streets, and enhance
Barrow’s outdoor activity offer aligned to Place Development and Community Wellbeing
Hubs and Earnse Bay Outdoor Centre. These investments will support Covid-19 recovery
and provide a platform for Towns Deal investment

Agenda Item 7
Page 19
Next Steps and Moving Forward
The submission of the Town Investment Plan, whilst a significant milestone, does not signify
the end of this process.
The immediate focus will turn to addressing due diligence surrounding the deal while
pushing for early agreement of our heads of terms. The July submission places Barrow in
the first wave of submissions and from here it is hoped that funding and projects can be
realised as early as possible. This is important, especially as the town continues to recover
from the impacts of COVID-19.
The heads of terms will be the mechanism through which the Government will signify which
projects it would wish to see further developed and it is intended that the Executive
Committee will consider these.
Following heads of terms, it will be necessary to prepare and submit Full Business Cases
for each of the short listed projects. To ensure effective ownership and use of resources, to
date different organisation have led the development of projects, with Barrow Borough
Council leading on Housing Market Renewal, Place Development, Marina Village and
Business Support. Likewise the University of Cumbria will lead development of the Barrow
Learning Quarter and Cumbria County Council on Community Resilience Hubs and Earnse
Bay and Cycling and Walking Infrastructure.
To resource the next stage of development it is intended to retain this approach which the
organisation leading specific projects would resource front funding development activity to
be reimbursed once the schemes are contracted and Town Deal Funding can be accessed.
To ensure the Council is ready to do this it is recommended that £100,000 of the Council’s
financial reserves be allocated to enable critical progress to be maintained. This funding
would be eligible for repayment once project funding is in place.
Mindful that in acting as accountable body, Barrow Borough Council must be able to
manage an effective process. Recognising this, within the deal £500,000 has been sought
to support this accountable body role while working effectively with partners.
4.0

Engagement

The #BrilliantBarrow campaign has been a primary platform to engage community and
business voices in the development of the Town Investment Plan.
In supporting communication and engagement work the Town Deal Board agreed to the
formation of a Communications and Engagement Group. This Task and Finish Group was
established to support the work of the Town Deal Board, responsible for preparing and
implementing communications activity. The Group developed a Town Deal Stakeholder
Engagement Plan which was implemented in three stages. Covid-19 changed the
engagement planning dramatically as traditional forms of engagement were inappropriate
due to lockdown and social distancing measures, with a shift to a more targeted and
predominantly digital approach:

Agenda Item 7
Page 20
1. Phase 1 Engagement: awareness raising activity through social media which
encouraged initial views to be shared through the #MyTowns government portal. A
total of 140 unique posts were provided. This was complemented social media
analysis on activity related to Barrow and by c.25 one-to-one consultations with
strategic and delivery partners.
2. Phase 2 Engagement: launch of the #BrilliantBarrow campaign and website
encouraging the community to ‘have your say’. To date, over 230 individual posts
have been shared.
3. Phase 3 Engagement: development of project stakeholder engagement plans and
implementation through a mixed method approach including surveys and focus
group activity. In total, 592 responses to the seven surveys have been secured to
date, in addition to qualitative feedback shared via meeting notes and
correspondence.
The consultation feedback has supported the iterative development of the Town Investment
Plan and associated Strategic Outline Business Cases for each shortlisted project. The
feedback has been overwhelmingly positive, supportive, constructive and informative to
guide the process of strategy development.
A Stakeholder Engagement Plan to accompany the launch of Barrow’s finalised Town
Investment Plan has been developed which articulates our commitment to ongoing dialogue
and will ensure implementation of our Plan is responsive to stakeholder needs.
5.0

Alternative Options

Defer Submission of the Town Investment Plan
An alternative option is to delay submission of the Town Investment Plan to later windows in
October 2020 or January 2021 in order to further develop proposals. Whilst, it would
provide more time to develop and consult on proposals, it would create delay and loss of
Barrow’s advantageous position in the first wave of submissions.
6.0

Contribution to Council Plan Priorities

This project primarily supports all 3 priorities of the Barrow Council Plan. The programme
of investment and the outcome these can create have the potential to be far reaching and
transformative to Barrow.
These can help people better access jobs and opportunities; support local businesses and
social enterprises to grow, support a local carbon and growing economy and deliver
stronger and more vibrant local communities.
7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
The £100,000 identified to develop the selected SOBC to Full Business Case is not
budgeted and will be drawn from the Council’s financial reserves.

Agenda Item 7
Page 21
The reimbursement of the £100,000 will be covered by the heads of terms agreed with
MHCLG. However, there is a risk that projects cannot progress to a satisfactory Final
Business Case and some of that sum is not reimbursed.
No Town Deal project expenditure will be incurred before the grant is secured.
The £162,019 of grant funding to reach this stage of the business case has been fully
committed on consultancy services and community engagement, and has been
supplemented by the Major Projects Reserve £12,660:




Consultancy services £134,679
Walking and Cycling Strategy £10,000
Cumbria CVS community engagement £30,000, a specialist procurement

It will be necessary to address internal capacity to ensure that the accountable body
responsibilities can be fulfilled.
The Section 151 Officer has agreed that the Accelerated Towns Fund proposals fit within
the Town Fund Intervention Framework and can be submitted to government by 14 August
2020.
Legal Equality and Diversity
There are no legal issues to raise as part of this report.
If the Plan is successful then agreements will be required to delivery on the investment plan
which will be subject of further legal consideration.
Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – The Town Investment Plan seeks
to ensure Barrow is an inclusive and prosperous town. Moving forward it is anticipated that
the Impact Analysis will support individual projects.
Risk
Whilst Option (a) is the recommended way forward, there remain a number of risks that will
need to be addressed. These are summarised below:
Risk

Risk Description

Government
Support

The Government
may not wish to
support the
proposals set out
within the Town
Investment Plan.

Likelihood
(1-5)
2

Impact
(1-5)
3

Score Proposed Mitigation
6

In developing
proposals there has
been ongoing
engagement with
MHCLG. The due
diligence process
following the
submission of the
Investment Plan will
provide an

Agenda Item 7
Page 22

Funding limits

There is a risk that
Government are
unwilling to provide
more than £25m as
part of the deal.

3

3

9

Resourcing
the
accountable
body function.

There is a risk that
the Government will
not provide
resources to support
the Council in
delivering its
accountable body
role

3

3

9

Covid 19

The full impact of
COVID-19 on the
market place and
supply chain is yet to
be understood.
Suppliers may cease
trading, pushing up
the cost of services.

2

4

8

opportunity to provide
further information or
clarification. Should
the proposal be
rejected there will be
a further opportunity
to resubmit in either
October or January
Guidance is clear that
more than £25m can
be sought for
exceptional
proposals. MHCLG
have been advised
that our ask will
exceed £25m and
that we consider an
exceptional case can
be made. Should
Government refuse to
support this
approach, the use of
business cases will
make it possible to
scale back proposals
to meet parameters.
Within the Town
Investment Plan there
is a request for
resources to support
operation of the Town
Deal board. Should
this not be submitted
there will be a
requirement for the
Council to work with
Town Investment
Plan board members
to establish an
effective approach to
resourcing.
Work on the ground
is unlikely to start
until 2021.
Appropriate risk
assessment and
method statements
will be prepared to
ensure project

Agenda Item 7
Page 23
Social distancing
may create
challenges in
undertaking surveys
and site visits.
Scheme
Development
Costs

Should a scheme fail
to be contracted
despite forming part
of the heads of
terms, the scheme
development costs
invested may not be
clawed back by the
Council.

activities can
progress within social
distancing
restrictions.
2

2

Contact Officers
Michael Barry, michael.barry@cumbria.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix 1 - Barrow-in-Furness Town Investment Plan

4

The next stage of
business case
development would
not commence until
the project is included
within heads of terms
for the deal. For each
project, development
costs have been
factored into the
programme.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1
Page 25

Barrow Town
Investment Plan

Subject to Approval

Foreword

1

Barrow-in-Furness has an exciting future within its grasp: our town
is home to some of the most sophisticated industries imaginable,
at the forefront of the clean growth revolution, enjoying a natural
environment that is second to none and a close-knit community with
a real sense of identity.
We are proud of our town and see these attributes as vital
foundations for inclusive growth; bringing real benefit for our
communities and the wider UK.

Steve Cole
Chair of Barrow-inFurness Town Deal
Board

But we are not without our challenges. Many of our residents face
real difficulties around health, accessing employment and housing;
this affects well-being and life choices. Many of our young people
choose to leave the town to access opportunities or experiences
elsewhere. Businesses also report skills gaps restraining growth,
and the town has very low levels of entrepreneurship. Our enabling
infrastructure such as housing, employment sites, town centre offer,
transport and digital connections require investment to ensure
Barrow is attractive as a place to live, work and invest.
We want to ensure that Barrow is a town for everyone, where
residents can fulfil their aspirations, where young people choose to
live, and where businesses can invest and grow. Our Brilliant Barrow
Town Deal proposals seek to achieve this.

Ann Thomson

Working collectively, we are ready to deliver an
ambitious Town Investment programme which, with the
support of Government, will secure a brilliant future
for Barrow.
2

Agenda Item 7

These projects will make a real difference in enabling Barrow to
embrace the opportunities ahead of us and address the challenges
we face.

Appendix 1
Page 26

Barrow
Town Investment Plan
July 2020

Leader of Barrow
Borough Council

Working with a wide range of partners, supported by a continuous
process of engagement; we have identified a programme of
investment that can make a real difference to enhance quality of life,
help people develop skills and improve their life chances, support
businesses to start and grow, to improve our housing offer and to
promote inclusive and active forms of travel.

3

1

Contents

1.

Executive Overview

06

2.

Introducing Our Town

10

3.

Issues and Opportunities for Barrow

26

4.

Our Shared Vision

50

5.

Our Town Investment Plan

70

6.

Our Approach to Delivery

96

7.

Acknowledgements

104

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 27

4

5

1

1

Executive
Overview

Barrow-in-Furness is a town rich in natural capital, with a proud
heritage of production and innovation fuelled by world-leading
businesses and talented people who have created Barrow’s
history, shaped the present and will define its future. We have
a positive future within our grasp, led by the sheer scale of
investment in the national submarine programme and the
potential for growth leveraging our strategic assets.

Our vision is underpinned by
three pillars which cut across
ten strategic objectives.
These lie at the heart of our
investment approach and will
drive positive change through
collective action:

Our Brilliant Barrow Investment Plan is focused on a long-term
strategy for change which capitalises on our opportunities and
tackles the barriers holding us back from achieving maximum
local economic impact and inclusive growth. Our shared vision for
the town over the next 20 years is:

• Inclusive economy
• Clean growth
• Healthy places

Agenda Item 7

6

Appendix 1
Page 28

“To build on our economic strengths, rich
industrial heritage, natural beauty and
sense of community to develop a town that
is economically dynamic and diverse, sitting
at the forefront of innovation and green
growth, viewed as a great place to live,
study, work and visit and home to a healthy
population that can deliver a prosperous,
inclusive and fair future”

7

1
Our collective understanding
of the issues and opportunities
which lie ahead of Barrow
provide the foundation for five
thematic intervention areas,
establishing focused areas for
collaborative action and a set
of prioritised short-term Town
Deal investments which will
unlock our potential:
• Nurturing People & 		
Skills
• Thriving Places
• Supportive Business
Environment
• Clean Growth Potential
• Critical Infrastructure

We want to build on and
support our successes and
strengths, and the existing
good work of the private, public
and third sector. We will use
Towns Funding to catalyse a
step change in the fortunes of
Barrow’s economy.
Our ask is for £29.9m of
investment to deliver a bold
transformational programme
over the next 20 years framed
around seven priority projects:
Barrow Learning Quarter
– a new University Campus
in Barrow providing higher
level skills alongside a new
Skills Hub to meet the need
for advanced academic and
technical skills

Community Wellbeing Hubs
& Earnse Bay Outdoor
Centre – a network of hubs
used by local people to
develop skills, access services
and come together to build
thriving communities, and a
new outdoor facility providing
access to open spaces and
outdoor education
Business Support – a holistic
package of support available
to local businesses and
entrepreneurs to maximise
private and social enterprise
potential and exploit supply
chain opportunities in the town

Housing Renewal – a
programme of renewal
and renovation to improve
residential properties alongside
investment in public realm
and commercial shop fronts to
deliver health, wellbeing and
environmental improvements
Marina Village – remediation
of a major strategic housing
site which will enable the
private sector to come forward
and deliver the Masterplan to
widen the housing offer and
raise perceptions of Barrow

Place Development – the
project will underpin the major
investment being delivered in
Barrow through Towns Fund
and aligned initiatives through
place promotion activity and
culture and leisure provision to
attract residents, businesses,
investors, students and visitors
to Barrow to access Barrow’s
enhanced offer

Over the lifetime of the Town
Investment Plan we will benefit
51,600 residents directly and
generate:

Local Cycling & Walking
Infrastructure –transformative
programme of walking
and cycling infrastructure
improvements which will
drive local demand, provide
health and well-being benefits,
improve access to services and
put Barrow at the forefront of
active travel in the UK.

• £27.3m WEBTAG benefits

• £63.2 million in additional
GVA
• £20.7m Social Return on
Investment
• £19.9m Land Value Uplift
• 810 tonnes of CO2
equivalent savings.
We estimate these
investments will return £4.4 in
additional benefits for every £1
of Towns Fund investment.

8

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 29

Our Investment
Plan represents a
transformational
opportunity for
our town. Working
collectively with our
community, public,
private and third
sector partners, with
the support of Towns
Fund, we will reveal the
brilliance of Barrow.
9

2

Introducing Our
Town

Barrow-in-Furness is no ordinary
town. Located at the southern
tip of the Furness Peninsula in
South Cumbria we are rich in
natural capital, framed by the
sea on three sides: the Irish Sea,
Morecambe Bay and the Duddon
Estuary, and the Lakeland fells
on the other. We have a proud
heritage of production and

innovation, from our roots in iron
ore and steel making, to the largest
shipyard in the UK. The success
of our town is testament to our
talented people and world-leading
businesses who have created
Barrow’s history, shaped the
present and will define its future.
Our town is #brilliant and together
we will shape the future of Barrow.

Figure 2.1: Barrow’s
sub regional Context

10

Agenda Item 7

Barrow

Appendix 1
Page 30

Barrow

11

2
Barrow in Context
The Barrow Town Deal area
covers the built-up urban core
of Barrow, as well as parts of
Walney Island and the urban
fringe to the east of Walney
Channel.

Key statistics:

£

Barrow contributed £1.53bn
in GVA to the UK economy in
2018
Barrow is home to 67,100
residents
77% of borough residents
live in the Town Deal area
Barrow hosts 31,430 jobs
89% of jobs are within the
Town Deal area

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 31

Figure 2.2: Barrow in Context

12

13

2
Our Evolution

Powered by industry

Adapting through
specialisation

Navigating adversity

World class ingenuity

The opening of the Furness
Railway in 1846 was the first
significant step which drove
the phenomenal growth of
Barrow-in-Furness from a
small fishing and farming
village of circa 150 residents
to a Victorian boom-town. The
railway was built to transport
iron ore from nearby Dalton
and slate from Kirkby to the
port at Barrow. The creation
of a local ironworks and blast
furnaces in 1859, followed by
a steel plant in 1865, drove
Barrow’s subsequent growth
for the next 30 years.

As competition and diminishing
returns made Furness ore
extraction and steel making
more expensive, Barrow
transformed itself from a steel
town to a shipyard town,
facilitated by Barrow’s natural
attributes including a tidal port
and the availability of steel.
The town developed into a
significant producer of naval
vessels, with a specialism in
submarines. The onslaught
of World War 1 accelerated
population growth further,
reaching a peak of 90,000
residents in 1917.

The ironworks closed in 1963,
followed by the steelworks in
1983. The shipyard continues
to be the dominant industry
in the town to this day
although the cyclical nature of
defence spending contracts
has contributed to peaks
and troughs in the workforce
over time, with a significant
downturn at the end of the
Cold War in 1991 contributing
to high levels of unemployment
in the town and population
decline as the shipyard
workforce shrank to 5,800
in 1995. The economic and
social consequences of this
mass redundancy programme
is still felt in the town today
as shown by concentrations
of deprivation, benefit
dependency and low levels of
aspiration.

Barrow is a centre of excellence
in marine engineering. The
shipyard in Barrow has
constructed numerous civilian
ships from ocean liners for the
likes of Cunard Line, Orient
Line and P&O amongst others,
oil, gas and LNG tankers, to
cargo ships; numerous naval
surface ships including the
iconic Royal Navy aircraft
carrier HMS Invincible; and
some of the world’s most
advanced submarines. The
BAE Systems’ site at Barrow
is now developing the Royal
Navy’s cutting-edge attack
submarines, the Astute class,
four of which are completed
and a further three are under

Progressive
Diversification
construction. The site is
also at the centre of a major
national defence programme
to develop a new generation of
nuclear deterrent submarines
(the £40bn Dreadnought
Programme) with a full order
book until 2050 and beyond,
placing Barrow at the forefront
of shipbuilding and innovation
in the UK. There are currently
some 8,500 workers directly
employed by BAE Systems in
Barrow in addition to a large
contractor workforce and
indirect jobs created through
the supply chain.

Barrow is an active player in
Britain’s energy supply chain
and home to one of the largest
wind farms in the world. The
transferability of Barrow’s skills
in advanced manufacturing,
combined with energy assets
such as the Morecambe Bay
gas fields, renewable wind
power resources, and supply
chain links to nuclear power
have facilitated growth in the
energy sector and provide
significant scope for further
diversification and growth in
the future.

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 32

14

15

2
Orientation of our Town

Barrow was one of the
UK’s first planned towns,
characterised by a distinctive
Victorian character including
a grid iron plan of terraced
streets, wide tree lined streets
and use of local materials such
as red sandstone. Notable
features include:

Barrow Town Centre &
Surrounds: Barrow is the
main commercial, retail and
cultural centre serving adjacent
borough settlements including
Dalton and Askam, and the
wider Furness Peninsula.
Dense terraced housing can be
found within the town centre
and surrounding Parkside
and Risedale wards. Former
industrial sites in Hindpool
including the dry dock, the
Barrow Jute Works and the
Barrow Steel Works, have
been redeveloped over the
years to include a mix of uses
including out-of-town retail
parks, Furness Business Park,
the Dock Museum, Furness
College and emergency
services.

Industrial Development:
extends along the A590
through Ormsgill including the
Kimberly-Clark paper mill.
Surrounding neighbourhoods:
Barrow’s suburbs extend to the
North to Hawcoat, to East to
Newbarns, Holbeck and Roose,
and onto Walney. Furness
General Hospital is located
to the north of the town in
Hawcoat. New housing
developments have taken
place across the town in recent
years on redundant school
sites and on greenfield land in
Holbeck and Hawcoat.

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 33

Figure 2.3: Barrow’s
neighbourhoods &
character areas

16

17

2
Barrow Island: Barrow Island
accommodates the majority of
Barrow’s shipyard around the
Devonshire Dock Hall complex.
Barrow Island is a conservation
area, with many listed
buildings including shipyard
buildings and tenement
houses. The Port of Barrow
is operated by Associated
British Ports and consists of
four docks: Buccleuch Dock,
Cavendish Dock, Devonshire
Dock and Ramsden Dock. The
new Waterfront Business Park
is currently being developed
adjacent to the Port.

Agenda Item 7

Walney Island: connected to
the mainland by Jubilee Bridge
and home to c.15% of the
borough’s population, many of
whom live in Vickerstown, a
Victorian planned estate built
to house shipyard workers,
which has conservation
status. Walney provided the
inspiration for the fictional
Island of Sodor in the famed
Thomas the Tank Engine
books. Two nature reserves lie
to the south and north of the
island. The coast off Walney
is framed by five offshore
wind farms, including Walney
Wind Farm which is one of the
largest offshore wind farms in
the world.

Central Barrow Conservation
Area: including prominent
buildings, landmarks and
heritage assets within threecharacter areas: Dalton Road,
Town Centre & Duke Street;
Hindpool Road and Harbour
Side; and Abbey Road and
Station Approach.

Appendix 1
Page 34

18

Barrow Park: a 45-acre public
park designated as Grade
II on the Historic England’s
Register of Historic Parks and
Gardens. The award winning
park provides crown green
bowling facilities, a putting
green, boating lake, display
glasshouse and children’s play
facilities, including a miniature
railway.

19

2
Our People

Our Strategic Assets

Our World-leading Sectors
We have a distinctive shared
identity as ‘Barrovians’,
underpinned by a strong
sense of community spirit and
belonging and a willingness
to help each other. Our
community and voluntary
sector is second to none in
creating positive differences to
the communities they serve.
We celebrate the people who
have shaped our growth
and will define our future
prosperity. We want to inspire
our future leaders by ensuring
all residents have equal access
to opportunities, and that our
young people are equipped
with the skills, knowledge and
aspiration to be the best they
can be.

Our strategic assets frame our
growth potential. The Town
Investment Plan seeks to
capitalise on these assets as
drivers for growth.

Barrow is home to a growing
economy underpinned by
world-class marine, advanced
manufacturing and energy
sectors. These specialisms
will support Cumbria’s Local
Industrial Strategy ambitions
for advanced manufacturing
and energy sectors.
Barrow provides the gateway
to Britain’s Energy Coast. The
town has a major role in energy
production, with expertise in
gas, wind and nuclear energy.
Further opportunities for
growth including future rounds
of offshore wind licensing, tidal
generation potential, biomass

Enabling sectors such as
professional services, logistics,
culture and digital, and visitor
economy facilitate a supportive
business environment in
Barrow, whilst foundational
sectors such as health and
social care, education and retail
are important in meeting the
needs of our population and
enhancing our quality of life.

Figure 2.4 Local Industrial Strategy Sectors: Growth & Specialisation in Barrow
Source: BRES, ONS (2019)

20

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 35

We are proud of our town,
but we recognise there is
much to be done to make
it an even better place
to live. In developing our
Town Investment Plan, our
#BrilliantBarrow campaign
celebrates all that is great
about our town and coalesces
our community spirit to take
collective ownership of the
actions contained within the
Plan to facilitate our success.

and micro hydro opportunities,
hydrogen gas, and carbon
capture and storage solutions.

21

2
Strategic Infrastructure
Barrow’s physical isolation
frames the need for vital and
resilient transport connections
to suppliers and markets
to ensure our economy can
function efficiently. Key assets
which support our connection
to the world include:
• Road: our strategic road
network includes the A590
linking Barrow to the M6
and Kendal, and the A595
linking Barrow to the west
coast and Carlisle
• Rail: connecting Barrow to
Lancaster via the Furness
Line and onwards to
Manchester Airport and
London via the West
Coast Main Line, and
the Cumbrian Coast line
connecting Barrow to
Carlisle via the west coast,
including Whitehaven,
Sellafield and Workington

Our Anchor Institutions
• Sea: The Port of Barrow
is operated by Associated
British Ports and handles
110,000 tonnes of traffic
per annum serving the
energy and manufacturing
sector. The Port is home
to five Operation and
Maintenance bases for
wind farms located off
Barrow’s coast. The Port
also has the potential
to accommodate cruise
vessels enabling visitors to
access South Cumbria and
the Lake District National
Park. The Port has the
potential to further grow its
annual contribution to the
UK economy
• Air: BAE Systems own
Walney Airfield, connecting
Barrow to locations
across the UK through
private flights serving
BAE Systems, MoD,

and industry partners.
The airport has recently
undergone redevelopment
and expansion, including a
new terminal and air traffic
control tower. The Lakes
Gliding Club also operates
local leisure flights out of
the airport.
The provision of strategic
sites is crucial to securing
investment and facilitating
business start-up and
growth. The development
of Waterfront Business
Park is helping to meet
requirements, offering
a range of serviced
development plots. A new
managed business centre
recently opened on the
site will provide valuable
grow-on space for local
businesses and investing
companies.

Partnership, Cumbria
Chamber of Commerce, the
Department of Work and
Pensions, and representatives
of our community, voluntary
and business communities.
Together, we are working
collectively to maximise
opportunities, remove
barriers to growth, and align
investment.
Through the Town Investment
Plan, we will lever our
anchor institutions and
strategic partnerships to
support community wealthbuilding by developing the
connections between Barrow’s
economy, wealth creation
and our residents. We will
work in partnership with our
anchor institutions to explore

how we can build a better
economy and deliver a range
of local economic, social and
environmental benefits through
their activities and spend.
Our anchor institutions can
create ‘sticky capital’ within
Barrow, which enables us to
keep money within our local
economy by supporting local
businesses and local people,
facilitate a circular economy,
and support the realisation of
social and economic value from
investment to ensure no-one is
left behind.

We need to maximise our
strategic infrastructure
assets as enablers of
growth

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 36

• Digital: Barrow is wellserved by superfast
broadband and 4G mobile
coverage.

22

Our anchor institutions are
those institutions which are
strongly rooted in Barrow,
providing significant scale
in employment and spend
and holding land and assets.
These include Barrow Borough
Council and Cumbria County
Council, education providers
such as Furness College and
the University of Cumbria,
public service providers
supporting health and wellbeing such as University
Hospitals of Morecambe Bay
Trust, Cumbria Police and
Cumbria Fire & Rescue, and
major employers such as
BAE Systems. Our Town Deal
Board brings together our
anchor institutions alongside
strategic partners such as
the Cumbria Local Enterprise

23

2
Natural Capital

Heritage Value

Barrow has a wealth of natural
capital which makes the town
an attractive place to live
and work. The RSA Heritage
Index scored Barrow as one
of the highest in the country,
rich in landscape, natural and
industrial heritage assets. The
town is framed by 60km of
coastline and the spectacular
Lake District fells. It is home to
some of the most important
wildlife habitats in Europe.
Designated sites include the
world-renowned Walney North
and South Nature Reserves,
which, alongside Duddon
Estuary and Sandscale Haws,
are all Sites of Special Scientific
Interest. Parks and open
spaces include the centrally
located 45-acre Barrow Park
alongside playgrounds and
allotments. The abundance
of beaches and waterfront
supports cycling, walking and
adventure sports such as kite
surfing.

Barrow has one of the highest
levels of heritage assets in the
country but with low levels of
heritage activity, indicating the
potential for levering growth.
Our heritage assets include:
• The impressive ruins of
Furness Abbey are a
popular visitor attraction.
Built in the 12th century,
Furness Abbey was one
of the richest monasteries
in England before it was
destroyed in 15th Century.
The Abbey contains
multiple Grade 1 listed
buildings and structures
and is managed by English
Heritage

• Numerous listed buildings
along Abbey Road and
Duke Street, the main
thoroughfares of the
Victorian planned town,
part of a proposed Heritage
Action Zone overseen by
Historic England
• Barrow Park recognised as
a Grade II listed park on the
Register of Historic Parks
and Gardens by Historic
England

The Dock Museum provides an
important role in conveying the
history of the town, focusing
on shipbuilding, steelworks,
the Furness Railway and
wartime Barrow. The Museum
has recently secured £1m
in Heritage Lottery funding,
matched by private, public
and third sector organisations
which will celebrate our
‘Shipyard Town’.
Our heritage assets will be a
catalyst for wider regeneration
and help breathe new life into
our town.

• Piel Castle situated on Piel
Island, built in the early 14th
century and managed by
English Heritage
• The Barrow Island
conservation area with
historic shipyard buildings
and tenements

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 37

24

25

3

Issues and
Opportunities for
Barrow

Barrow has a positive future
within its grasp, led by the
sheer scale of investment in the
national submarine programme
and the potential for growth
leveraging our clean energy
assets. However, if we are
to fully capitalise on these
opportunities, we need to tackle
the barriers holding us back
from achieving maximum local
economic impact and inclusive
growth.
Our Brilliant Barrow Investment
Plan, alongside other aligned
initiatives, seeks to secure
investment to ensure all parts
of our community can benefit
from the strategic opportunities
for growth.

The Investment Plan is focused
on a long-term strategy for
change in recognition that
we have entrenched barriers
holding back our potential. Our
plan and our priority projects
are responsive to the emerging
impact of Covid-19 and is
focused on driving resilience
into our economy to enable us
to learn from our experiences
and recover and build back
stronger than ever as a more
cohesive, innovative and
digitalised community. We have
focused our resources in the
short-term to ensure we are
responsive to the opportunities
that lay directly ahead of us to
drive long-term transformation.

We have distilled our issues and
opportunities for Barrow into five core
areas:
1. Nurturing People & Skills
2. Thriving Places
3. Supportive Business Environment
4. Clean Growth Potential
5. Critical Infrastructure

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 38

26

27

3
1. Nurturing People & Skills
We have to ensure Barrow
offers good jobs and greater
earning power for all
Barrow is home to 67,100
people, of which 77% live
within the Town Deal area. We
need to create a strong talent
pipeline to fuel our economy
and the opportunities that
lie ahead of us. Our major
investments require higher
level skills to support growth.
We need to align our supply
of skills with the demand for
skills in the town, to ensure
our residents can access
high quality job opportunities.
We need to bridge the gap
between need and opportunity
in Barrow to enable our
residents to access the benefits
of economic growth and
improve life chances.

Building on our success

Key Strengths

• A programme of investment in our
education system has supported three
primary schools to be rebuilt or refurbished
through a £12.8m scheme; a new £22.5m
campus at Furness Academy, and £47m
invested in modern college facilities at
Furness College, including a new Advanced
Manufacturing Technology Centre

• We have strong social capital which binds
our community together with a sense of
belonging and a community support network
clearly evident in times of crisis such as the
recent pandemic

• Furness Education and Skills Partnership
was established in 2011, bringing
education providers and business together
with a shared ambition to equip local
young people with knowledge, skills and
aspirations aligned to current and future
job opportunities. FESP facilitates projects
and events to support enterprise, innovation
and skills development such as Skills Fest,
Furness Big Bang Fair, Building My Skills,
the Barrow Engineering Project and Happy
and Healthy Lifestyles
• There is a greater propensity towards
apprenticeship destinations in Barrow
and we have one of the highest numbers
of apprenticeship starts in the country,
ranking 34th out of 533 parliamentary
constituencies in 2018/19
• BAE Systems STEM Ambassadors deliver
a range of activities from Key Stage 1 to
Key Stage 5 to increase interest in STEM
subjects and careers, increase aspiration
and attainment, increase employability
skills, enhance knowledge

• We have an emerging platform of Higher
Education provision to build upon. This
includes provision currently delivered within
Furness College through accredited links
to the University of Cumbria, Lancaster
University and UCLAN. The University
of Cumbria also directly supports major
employers including delivering courses to
BAE Systems and the University Hospitals of
Morecambe Bay Trust.

Agenda Item 7

28

• We have a strong intermediate skills base,
with 34% of our residents holding NVQ L3
and Trade Apprenticeship qualifications
(compared to 20% in England). We have an
excellent vocational education offer and a
greater propensity towards apprenticeship
destinations amongst our young people

Appendix 1
Page 39

• Locally responsive Third Sector initiatives
which work with young people and adults
furthest from the labour market such as
Drop Zone, the Well, and the Building Better
Opportunities programme

• Barrow’s job opportunities in cutting edge
advanced manufacturing and energy
sectors attracts workers from across the UK
and provides a progression route to higher
earnings

29

3
Key Challenges:
• Declining population, which
is predicted to continue,
with a net loss of young
people leaving to study
and work elsewhere who
may not return; combined
with an ageing population
structure, which is
presenting Barrow with a
tightening labour supply
• Below average rates of
labour market participation,
with economic activity
rates 13 percentage points
below the national average,
and barriers preventing
participation including high
levels of long-term sickness
• Mismatch of skills and
occupations, with Barrow
workers earning 11% more
than Barrow residents
indicating our residents
are failing to grasp the
higher-level employment
opportunities presented
by economic growth. Only
33% of our residents are
employed in higher level
occupations, 15 percentage
points below the national
average

• High levels of disadvantage
in our communities,
impacting on educational
performance, aspirations
and life chances. 30% of

• Health inequality is a
significant feature, with
Barrow ranking 4th out
of 317 local authorities
in England on the health
deprivation index. Life
expectancy is lower than
the national average and
there is a significant life
expectancy gap between
the most deprived areas
and the least deprived
areas of the borough.

Barrow Town
Deal Area
Indices of Deprivation
(where 0-1 is in most 10%
deprived area nationally)
0-1

5-6

1-2

6-7

2-3

7-8

3-4

8-9

4-5

9-10

The impact of Covid-19 on our people
Barrow-in-Furness’ population has been
disproportionality impacted by Covid-19 in
terms of health and mortality. ONS data on
Covid-19 death rates per 100,000 people
between March 2020 and May 2020
reveals a rate of 104 in Barrow, relative to
82 in England.
Analysis of health exposure to Covid-19
reveals that Barrow is exposed on the
basis of the proportion of the population
aged 70+, and significantly exposed as
a result of the levels of health deprivation
in Barrow. Deprivation increases the
impact of Covid-19 through a range of
factors including overcrowding, income,
employment, disability and health status
– all of which are present in Barrow and
will have played a part in the exposure
of Barrow to the worst of Covid-19
health outcomes. Furthermore, the role
Covid-19 has played in delaying hospital
appointments will inevitably take its toll in
longer term health outcomes.
The Coronavirus Job Retention policy has
sought to reduce the rates of redundancy.
The sectoral composition of the town has
contributed to a lower rate of furloughed
workers in Barrow at 154 per 1,000
working age residents compared to 184 in
England.

Figure 3.1 Index of
Multiple Deprivation in
Barrow, 2019
Source: English Indices of
Deprivation, 2019

Despite the Coronavirus Job Retention
policy there has been an immediate
increase in unemployment in the UK. In
Barrow there has been an increase of
69% in the number of people seeking Job
Seeker’s Alliance and Universal Credit
between March 2020 and May 2020.
Young people in particular have been most
affected, with a claimant rate for 18-24
year olds of 10.2% in Barrow compared
to 8.7% in the UK. The negative effects of
economic recessions on people’s mental
health are well-evidenced, with worries
about employment, finance and debt
putting a significant strain on well-being.
Due to its employment composition,
Barrow-in-Furness has been insulated from
the worst economic impacts of Covid-19.
However, due to societal exposure factors
the town has borne the brunt of some
of the worst health impacts of Covid-19
nationally.
School closures are likely to accentuate
the socio-economic divide in educational
attainment. Research by the Institute for
Fiscal Studies found that children from
better off families are spending 30%
more time on home learning than those
from poorer families. Children have been
dependent on parental time and ability,
and access to digital infrastructure, during
lockdown to support home learning, and
Barrow has high concentrations of deprived
families where this support will be lacking.

Agenda Item 7

30

• Barrow is an identified
higher education ‘cold
spot’ with below average
participation in higher
education in the face of
increased demand for
higher level skills. Only
30% of our population hold
degree level qualifications,
compared to 44% in
England; and only 13%
of our 16-18 year olds
pursue higher education
destinations which is
significantly lower than the
national average (35%)

our LSOAs in the Barrow
Town Deal area are within
the 10% most deprived
nationally; 13% of all
children live in workless
households; and social
mobility is low, ranking
280th out of 324 local
authorities

Appendix 1
Page 40

• Skill gaps and shortages
are holding economic
growth back, 17% of
Cumbrian employers report
skill gaps and 31% of all
vacancies are defined as
skill-shortage vacancies.
Consultation with major
employers in the town
highlight the scale of the

skill shortage challenge
they face, and the
difficulties experienced in
attracting talent to the area

31

3
2. Thriving Places
We want Barrow to be
a prosperous town that
is sustainable, safe and
offers a high quality of
life

• Spacious tree-lined
avenues framed by
affluent town houses along
Abbey Road and around
Croslands and Hawcoat

The character of our
neighbourhoods is defined by
distinctive housing:

• Infill housing estates from
the 1980s onwards, such
as Ratings Village on Flass
Lane and Beacon Hill

• Dense Victorian grid
iron terraces in the town
centre, historic tenements
of Barrow Island and the
planned workers housing of
Vickerstown

• Edge of town new housing
estates offering lower
density detached and
semi-detached housing in
Holbeck and Hawcoat

• Large Council estates
offering terraced, flats and
semi-detached housing
across Risedale, Newbarns,
Ormsgill, and Walney,
many of which are now in
private ownership

We need to ensure that Barrow
offers a choice of good quality
housing that is sustainable
and affordable. The Local Plan
identifies a number of housing
sites in locations across the
town providing a range of
development opportunities
to deliver a wide choice of
new housing, which when
combined with regenerating
the older and poorer quality
housing, particularly in the
town centre, will provide this
offer. In addition a number
of previously developed
Opportunity Areas suitable
for housing and mixed use
development have also
been identified to support
sustainable growth.

32

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 41
Figure 3.2: Resilient Places Plan

33

3
Building on our success

Key Strengths

• Barrow Library has secured £1.2m from Cumbria County
Council to modernise and expand the offer

• Strong housing growth agenda
is being pursued through
delivery of the Local Plan
• The emerging ‘Barra Culture’ £2.575m programme will support
including the creation of a
creative people and places activity
new neighbourhood at Marina
Village to deliver aspirational
• Barrow is part of the Morecambe Bay Cultural Compact
and quality housing
awarded in 2019 by the Arts Council
• The recently secured £1m National Lottery Heritage Funding • Our unique natural capital
which includes international
for the Dock Museum which will focus on the shipbuilding and
and national designations
engineering heritage of Barrow
including Duddon Estuary
• The new Alfred Barrow Health Centre opened in November
and Morecambe Bay and two
2019 after a £14m refurbishment. The new centre brings
National Nature Reserves
together a number of primary and community health services
• Heritage value including the
adjacent to a new ambulance station serving the area
12th century Furness Abbey,
• The proposed Re:discover Barrow Heritage Action Zone will
the 14th Century Piel Castle,
restore and enhance the local historic character and support
our distinctive Victorian
sustainable economic and cultural growth on and around the
character and maritime history
high street in the Central Barrow Conservation Area
assets
• The Barrow Business Improvement District (BID) is a five-year • Significant potential to develop
scheme set up in 2016 to promote and regenerate Barrow’s
tourism activity around coastal
town centre
and marine assets, heritage
assets and maritime history
• Historic programme of housing market renewal resulted in
and underpin our investment
300 houses subject to stock condition improvements and 180
proposition to residents and
properties cleared to facilitate the development of new housing
businesses
aimed at improving choice and increasing demand

• Areas of high and entrenched deprivation remain, with
Barrow ranking 31st out of 317 local authorities in England
on the Index of Multiple Deprivation, and 30% of LSOAs
within the 10% most deprived areas nationally
• Barrow has high levels of health deprivation, ranking 4th
out of 317 local authorities, affecting quality of life and life
expectancy
• Lack of variety in the housing offer, with c.50% terraced and
45% built pre-1919, to meet the aspirations of residents
and workers and to meet the needs of an increasingly
ageing population. Whilst Barrow has experienced growth
in housebuilding, far fewer dwellings are being constructed
relative to the size of the population at 18 net additional
dwellings per 10,000 residents compared to 43 across
England
• The number of brownfield sites which are currently vacant
which represent redevelopment opportunities, but carry
significant remediation costs and site constraints which need
to be addressed
• Poor quality and overcrowding in private housing stock
contributing to poor health outcomes. c.20% of privately
owned and privately rented housing in Barrow have category
1 Housing Health and Safety Rating System hazards
• Poor perception and image of Barrow deterring investment
• Low quality of the built environment in some parts of town,
including a lack of open and green space in the town centre
• Barrow has limited access to cultural facilities which detracts
from our quality of life offer and our ability to attract young
people and working age residents into the area.

Covid-19 has deprived local
high streets of consumer
spending – initially as a result
of the Government mandated
lockdown, but set to continue
due to a recession induced
contraction in consumer
spending.
At the end of April, spending
in Barrow-in-Furness had
dropped by 27% since the end
of March, and more importantly
a 61% drop in non-grocery
spending has put an already
fragile town centre in an even
more precarious position.
The profile Barrow received in
the national press due to the
exceptionally high number of
confirmed Covid-19 cases has
impacted upon the external
perception of Barrow and had
a negative impact on investor
confidence. Further analysis
of the results found that the
high number of cases was
reflective of early and proactive
testing by UHMBT which is
testament to the strength of
our healthcare system.

Agenda Item 7

34

• Barrow’s town centre is facing a significant vitality and
viability challenge, with reduced footfall, a high proportion
of vacant units (around 17% and rising) and competing
pressures from e-commerce and out-of-town retail

The impact of
Covid-19 on our
communities

Appendix 1
Page 42

• Improving access to good
• Barrow Island Flats is a £3.4m loan programme to bring
quality health care through
empty properties back into use, improve the quality of
the delivery of the new Alfred
accommodation and stimulate demand for the flats alongside
Barrow health centre and
an environmental improvement programme around the flats
provision of seed funding to
• The Central Barrow Townscape Heritage Initiative scheme
facilitate new hospital facilities
has facilitated a high quality pedestrianised and landscaped
at Furness General Hospital.
environment in the town centre .

Key Challenges:

35

3
3. Supportive Business Environment
We need to make Barrow
the best place to start
and grow a business and
capitalise on our ideas
The advanced manufacturing
sector in Barrow is a large and
strategically important sector
which will drive productivity
growth and competitive
advantage, and provide the
foundation for growth in other
areas of our economy. Barrow
is a centre of excellence for
marine engineering and the
UK submarine industry.
We recognise that our
fortunes are inextricably
linked to national defence
policy and spending patterns.
We need to ensure our
businesses are resilient to
change by strengthening
their competitiveness within
existing markets and support
them to diversify into new
markets.

Our economy is distinctive in
that it has seen its productivity
gap per head narrow in the
past 10 years, driven by
productivity gains in high value
sectors such as manufacturing
which accounts for 42%
of our total GVA. However,
the productivity gap within
sectors is significant, and
our sectors are considerably
less productive than their
national counterparts. This
can be attributed to a range
of factors such as subsector composition, skills
and occupational profile
and shortages, technology
adoption and innovation
intensity, business ownership
and size structure.

Figure 3.4 The Productivity Challenge
Source: Regional GVA (Balanced), ONS, 2019; Population Estimates, ONS, 2019

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 43

36

37

3
3. Supportive Business Environment
Building on our
success

Key Strengths

Key Challenges:

• Barrow is at the centre of
a national programme to
develop a new generation
of nuclear deterrent
submarines. The £40
billion Dreadnought
Defence programme offers
significant associated
supply chain and spend
opportunities. The BAE
Systems site is undergoing
major redevelopment to
provide a range of new
and upgraded capabilities
to deliver this programme
of investment

• Presence of high value sectors which can support growth in
the economy. The manufacturing sector accounts for 42%
of Barrow’s economic output as measured by GVA. Barrow
has several ‘best in class’ firms delivering high levels of
productivity

• The economy is strongly reliant on a very small number of
businesses. The two largest employers – BAE Systems and
Furness General Hospital – directly employ 35% of total
jobs in Barrow with more jobs in the supply chain. These
employers are strongly affected by government policy
decisions which makes Barrow vulnerable to fluctuations in
public sector spending

• Kimberly-Clark, the paper
mill producing products for
international brands such
as Kleenex and Andrex,
is currently undergoing
a £85m investment
programme to improve
production and drive
manufacturing efficiencies

• Innovation excellence in nuclear shipbuilding and energy
held by key businesses such as BAE Systems, James Fisher
Marine & Sub Sea, Siemens Subsea, and Forth Engineering.

• Our global companies are export-oriented, with the largest
exported commodity (machinery and transport) exporting
predominantly to non-EU countries

• Barrow has a supressed entrepreneurial economy, with very
low rates of self-employment and a low business birth rate,
indicative of an industrial area with a dominant employer.
There is also a low number of high growth businesses. The
current business support landscape in Barrow is fragmented
and entrepreneurs and growing businesses cannot readily
access support aligned to their needs
• Barrow’s innovation activity levels are low across the wider
economy, characterised by low numbers of patents and
low levels of R&D expenditure by the public sector, and our
innovation ecosystem to facilitate activity is weak
• Some sectors such as manufacturing are more exposed to
automation and will be disproportionately affected by digital
disruption
• Businesses report issues in sourcing skilled staff which is
hindering their growth.

Across the UK Covid-19 has
led to 23% of businesses
across all industries seeing
turnover fall by over 50%.
Those businesses most
affected include construction
and wholesale and retail trade.
These businesses account for
30% of the business base in
Barrow which illustrates the
scale of impact locally.
However, given the dominance
of sectors not mandated
to close in the town (such
as manufacturing) and the
under-representation of selfemployment, Barrow has
been less affected in terms of
the proportion of employment
impacted by closures.
Consultation with major
employers in Barrow reveals
how productivity levels have
fallen as a result of skilled staff
in the manufacturing sector
being unable to work due to
social distancing requirements.

Agenda Item 7

38

• The presence of supply chain opportunities including BAE
Systems can support local SME involvement

• Whilst Barrow has a small number of highly productive firms,
it has a ‘long tail’ of firms whose productivity performance is
lagging where there is significant scope for improvement

Analysis of the presence of
businesses mandated to close
by government guidance in
March 2020 identifies Barrow
as falling in the middle cohort
of local authorities in England
as economically ‘exposed’ on
this measure.

Appendix 1
Page 44

• Barrow has a cluster of
globally oriented innovative
manufacturing firms that
supply to the nuclear and
offshore wind, oil and gas
sectors such as Siemens
Sub-Sea and James Fisher
Nuclear.

• Barrow has well-defined employment clusters in advanced
manufacturing and energy which define our value
proposition to investors and provide a magnet for innovation
and skills

The impact of
Covid-19 on our
business base

39

3
4. Clean Growth Potential
Barrow has made a
longstanding and diverse
contribution to the UK’s
energy requirements. We
need to ensure we help
lead the UK through the
next chapter.
Barrow is located at the heart
of Britain’s energy economy.
Gas from the east Irish Sea
is landed and processed at
the Barrow Gas Terminals
operated by Spirit Energy.
Barrow Gas Terminal provides
enough energy to heat 1.5m
homes across the UK.

We benefit from five
operational wind farms in the
Irish Sea, including the Walney
Extension operated by Orsted
which is one of the world’s
largest operational offshore
wind farms, generating clean
electricity for nearly 600,000
homes.
Barrow is a key part of the
nuclear supply chain and
supplies to nearby nuclear
sites including Heysham
Power Station and Sellafield
(nuclear reprocessing, waste
storage and decommissioning).
The nuclear technology
underpinning the nuclear
submarine industry has scope
for diversification into the civil
nuclear market.

Our town has a distinct role
to play in responding to the
UK’s target of becoming
Net Zero carbon by 2050
through leveraging our
natural resources to make an
enhanced contribution to the
UK’s Clean Growth Challenge.
Barrow Borough Council
declared a climate emergency
in July 2019 and made a
commitment to reduce carbon
emissions through a Climate
Change Policy which sets out
the ambition for the borough
to be net zero carbon no later
than 2037.

The coastal location of
Barrow means that we are
vulnerable to the effects of
climate change, particularly
the effects of sea level rise
and coastal erosion. Our CO2
emissions in Barrow stood
at 408 kt in 2017, and have
reduced by 29% since 2012.
We need to play our part in
the decarbonisation agenda
and maximise the transition to
clean energy.
We need to support our
businesses to respond to this
policy imperative, to reduce
their carbon footprint, and
access new opportunities for
growth in low carbon sectors.

Figure 3.5 Our Green Credentials ( Per capita CO2 Emissions (t) )
Source: UK local authority and regional CO2 national statistics: 2005-17, BEIS, 2019

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 45

40

41

3
Building on our
success
• The Port of Barrow
provides a West Coast
Operation & Maintenance
Hub serving five offshore
wind farms in the Irish
sea that together account
for over 20% of the UK’s
current installed capacity
• Barrow is a key player
in the Offshore Energy
Alliance, a new cluster
facilitating collaboration
between key players in
the offshore sector in
North Wales and North
West England to achieve
increased benefits
to local supply chain
businesses within coastal
communities. Barrow has
the opportunity to secure
further investment via
future rounds of offshore
wind licensing

• Centrica operate one
of the world’s largest
battery storage facilities
at Roosecote, with 49MW
power output, providing
energy resilience to meet
fluctuations in demand
with the ability to provide
energy for around 50,000
homes
• Some development
in circular economy
interventions such as a
local heat networks. Our
stakeholders are gearing
up for more of this activity
• We are already investing
in energy efficiency in
residential and commercial
buildings and we have
significant scope and need
to develop this agenda in
next 5 years and beyond.

• Presence of the Port and
waterfront land assets
available for development
• Barrow has well-defined
employment clusters in
energy which define our
value proposition to investors
and provide a magnet for
innovation and skills
• World class engineering
skills base and HE/FE system
helping to create the next
generation of talent and
innovation
• The presence of supply chain
opportunities including the
offshore wind sector can
support local SME involvement
• Innovation excellence in
nuclear and wind energy held
by key businesses
• Existing assets which can
be repurposed to support
the development of the
hydrogen economy such as
wind generation capabilities,
capacity for storage in
Morecambe Bay gas fields,
access to the National
Transmission System, and
supporting infrastructure such
as the Port, available sites and
a skilled workforce.

• Proximity to Higher
Education Institutions and
major industry players who
can lead innovation
• An emerging investment
proposition linked to
energy and clean growth
which can help secure
new trade and inward
investment opportunities
• Active involvement in
collaborative work and
strategic partnerships such
as the Cumbria LEP Clean
Energy sector panel, the
North West Offshore Wind
Alliance, British Energy
Coast Business Cluster,
and NP11 to develop the
sector
• Development of proposals
to facilitate clean growth
such as Low Carbon
Barrow to facilitate energy
efficiency in buildings and
transport and the Cumbria
Climate Action Fund to
support community-led
climate action.

• Competitive landscape
with other UK areas
gearing up for lead roles
• Coastal location leaves us
vulnerable to the effects
of climate change and
highlights the net zero
imperative
• Exploring options to extend
field life in Morecambe
Bay’s gas fields and
maximise economic
recovery of gas reserves,
facilitate continuous
improvement and
contribute to net zero
• Securing investment in
innovative activity to
test new ideas and low
carbon opportunities such
as carbon capture and
storage and hydrogen
production with clarity
required on regulation,
pricing and incentives
• Supporting businesses to
identify and capitalise on
clean growth opportunities
• Ensuring that education
and skills infrastructure
responds to industry
requirements and enables
local residents to access
the new jobs being
created.

The impact of
Covid-19 on our clean
growth agenda
Some changing of norms and
behaviours during Covid-19
has delivered positive change
into our clean growth agenda.
Levels of walking and cycling
are up locally, and emissions
are down. The challenge will
be maintaining these positive
changes as we return to the
new normal.
Energy supply chains have
experienced a lack of demand
during the Covid-19 crisis. This
is impacting on profitability
and driving the need for cost
savings. Low income families
have been particularly affected,
with the limitations placed on
their access to basic essentials
like fuel and power, which
highlights the importance of
ensuring access to affordable
energy.
Looking ahead, there will an
increased focus on healthy
places and the need to improve
air quality which will drive
demand for clean affordable
energy production and
improved energy efficiency
performance in buildings.
This will support growth in
employment in clean growth
activities.

Agenda Item 7

42

• Barrow plays a key role
in UK gas infrastructure.
Since Spirit Energy’s
Morecambe Bay gas
fields came on stream in
1985, more than 6.5 trillion
cubic feet of gas has been
extracted, processed and
piped into the National Grid

Key Challenges:

Appendix 1
Page 46

• Already well positioned
in UK nuclear supply
chain. Long term nuclear
investments elsewhere in
Cumbria and Lancashire
could be leveraged in
Barrow

Key Strengths

43

3
5. Critical Infrastructure
Barrow needs to offer a
competitive infrastructure
which facilitates the
movement of people,
goods and information
Upgrading our infrastructure
will allow our communities to
interact, innovate and play a
more active role in the labour
market, whilst opening markets
and trade opportunities across
the globe:
• The provision of suitable
employment sites and
premises is an important
precondition of economic
growth

• Transport infrastructure
has a vital role to play in
supporting our economic
growth, enabling access to
employment and services.
However, transport is a
major contributor to the
climate change emergency
that we face, and we need
to provide and enhance
more sustainable travel
choices to minimise
emissions

• Enhanced digital
connectivity will help us
to overcome the barrier
of physical distance and
through the provision of
digital infrastructure and
digital skills will facilitate
our digital inclusion agenda.

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 47

Figure 3.6: Critical Infrastructure plan

44

45

3
Building on our success

Key Strengths

Key Challenges:

• The Connecting Cumbria initiative has
improved access to superfast broadband in
Barrow, with over 99% of premises having
access to superfast speeds

• The compact nature and topography of
Barrow supports short journeys by walking
and cycling. Barrow traditionally had a high
modal share of walking and cycling but this
has reduced over time

• The peripherality of Barrow
means that we depend on
long distance connections
to regional and national
markets. However, our
transport links to and from
Barrow need improvement.
The A590 is a critical route,
as there is no alternative
direct route into Barrow
from the M6 motorway. The
length and unpredictability
of this route presents a
resilience challenge and a
barrier to economic growth.
The A595 forms a key
strategic link to the west
coast of Cumbria and is
also affected by significant
reliability, resilience and
safety challenges

• Site assembly and preparation works to
unlock the new Waterfront Business Park
adjacent to the Port of Barrow. Phase 1 of
the new Waterfront Business Park was
completed in 2017 anchored by a 300,000
sq ft logistics facility owned by BAE Systems.
A new 16,000 sq ft ‘Waterfront Gateway’
Managed Business Centre will offer up to
28 office suites providing valuable grow on
space within Barrow. The Business Park
offers serviced development plots ranging
from 0.66ha to 4.66ha
• Development of a Local Walking & Cycling
Plan for Barrow, working with anchor
employers such as BAE Systems to
implement sustainable travel plans which
reduce single occupancy car journeys
through encouraging alternative modes of
transport including public transport, cycling
and walking
• Delivery of significant upgrades to North
Road and Bridge Road junctions supporting
the flow of traffic across the town.

• Regular rail services with new rolling stock
from Barrow to Manchester Airport is
supporting improved connectivity to the
West Coast mainline
• The Port of Barrow supports the activities
of BAE Systems and nuclear, gas and
offshore renewable industries and provides
a valuable strategic asset
• Superfast broadband coverage and access
to 4G mobile data coverage provides
essential digital connectivity access but
there is a need to look to the future and
access ultrafast and 5G connectivity.

• Road congestion and
parking is a prominent issue,
particularly around major
employment sites which
has a negative impact on
surrounding residential
areas

• Quality and reliable public
transport services are an
essential component of
a sustainable travel plan.
Efficient interchanges
between different modes
of transport facilitate
movement and take-up
• The Cumbria Coastline has
received little investment
and with a less frequent
service and older rolling
stock is less attractive to
travellers

• There are limited options
of employment premises
for purchase or letting
and there are gaps in the
quality and type of premises
available relative to demand
• Whilst Barrow is well served
by superfast broadband,
access to Ultrafast
technology is very limited.

• Lack of charging
infrastructure to support the
uptake of electric vehicles
• While an important asset,
the Port of Barrow has the
potential to act as a further
driver for investment
• There are gaps in
infrastructure for cycling
and walking to support
low impact zero emission
commuting, to capture
transport demand from
major employers, and to
facilitate healthy lifestyles

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 48

46

47

3
The impact of Covid-19 on our infrastructure
Home working has become crucial for many individuals and
businesses as a result of Covid-19. Google mobility data shows that
across Cumbria there has been a fall of 51% of people travelling to
places of work.
Effective home working is reliant on adequate digital infrastructure.
Barrow is well served by superfast broadband but less than 1%
of premises in Barrow have access to gigabit capable Full Fibre
and Ultrafast speeds. This will have a detrimental impact on
productivity.
Digital inclusion (the extent to which individuals and groups can
access digital infrastructure) is a significant barrier in Barrow.
NHS Digital identify groups who may be unable to access digital
infrastructure and those highly prevalent in Barrow include:
• older people
• people in lower income groups
• people without a job
• people in social housing
• people with disabilities
• people with fewer educational qualifications who excluded left
school before 16
Access to affordable digital provision is a key requirement to
ensure we can support our residents to access education and
public services online. This includes access to digital connectivity,
hardware and software.

Agenda Item 7

48

Appendix 1
Page 49

Due to spatial restrictions public transport usage has fallen. Google
Mobility Data covering Cumbria states that public transport usage
has fallen by 57%. In addition to less travel to work trips there has
also been a 61% decrease in travel to retail and recreation. Looking
ahead, public transport will continue to be impacted by space
restrictions and opportunities to facilitate cycling and walking will
support active and safe travel in Barrow.

49

4
The Barrow Town Deal
Board has come together
to champion future growth
and investment in Barrow.
The Board represents
the public, private and
voluntary sectors and we
recognise the value in the
collective strength of our
partnership to realise our
potential. Our #Brilliant
Barrow Investment Plan is
genuinely collaborative in
approach which includes:

Our Shared
Vision
• Putting our residents at the centre of our plan
through community led approaches which
supports everybody to engage and thrive
• Collective action and partnership working, drawing
on the capacity and expertise of the public and
private sector and the Third Sector to deliver on the
full potential of Barrow
• Co-operation across anchor institutions, working
collectively to maximise the benefit they bring to
the economy and people of Barrow

We will build on the combined strength
of our offer to harness the untapped
potential of Barrow and increase our
contribution to UK economic growth.

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 50

50

51

4

The Brilliant Barrow Investment
Plan establishes our shared
vision for the town over the next
20 years:

“To build on our economic strengths, rich
industrial heritage, natural beauty and sense
of community to develop a town that is
economically dynamic and diverse, sitting at
the forefront of innovation and green growth,
viewed as a great place to live, study, work and
visit and home to a healthy population that can
deliver a prosperous, inclusive and fair future”

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 51

52

53

4
SO1. To put residents at the centre of public
service delivery

Our shared vision provides
an integrated and strategic
response to the opportunities
and challenges presented by
Barrow.

SO2. To build on our strengths to help Barrow become
a centre of excellence and innovation for advanced
manufacturing and clean growth

P1: Inclusive economy

£

Our vision is underpinned by
three pillars which cut across
all our strategic objectives.
These lie at the heart of our
investment approach and will
drive positive change through
collective action.

SO3. To create a resilient local economy through greater
diversification, enhanced competitiveness and providing a wider
range of quality employment opportunities
SO4. To grow the working age population by creating an
attractive and vibrant place to live, work and visit

SO5. To equip people with the skills and confidence to achieve their
potential to take full advantage of opportunities

P2: Clean Growth

Our 3 cross
cutting pillars

Learning

H

P3: Healthy Places

SO6. To strengthen progression pathways through a
dynamic and integrated approach to school, further and
higher education

SO7. To reduce deprivation and improve the physical and mental
health and well-being of our community

SO8. To be a digitally connected and physically accessible
town supporting walking, cycling and public transport
SO9. To deliver a more diverse and attractive
housing offer while ensuring the continued
renewal of our existing stock

54

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 52

SO10. To achieve a vibrant town centre, leisure and
service offer supporting the role of Barrow as a regional
centre while enhancing our rich built and cultural heritage

55

4
What will success
look like?

Our Town Investment Plan
responds to national and subregional policy aspirations for
economic growth.

The implementation of our Plan will realise positive outcomes for
Barrow through a triple bottom line approach. These impacts will,
in turn, contribute to UK growth and prosperity.:

Positive Social
Outcomes

Positive Economic
Outcomes

Positive Environmental
Outcomes

• Effective and representative
partnerships

• Improved productivity
and sustainable business
growth

• Attractive and sustainable
places and spaces

• Fair and equal society
• Digitally and physically
connected communities
• Improved access to quality
and affordable homes

• Innovative and
entrepreneurial activity
• Diverse low carbon
economy
• Better health and less
poverty
• Improved life chances and
educational outcomes

• Better connected and
sustainable transport
• Reductions in CO2
emissions and improved air
quality
The impact of the Barrow
Town Investment Plan by 2040
on the economy of the town
will be measured through:
• Increased economic output
(as measured by Gross
Value Added) - £63.2
million
• Carbon savings (as
measured by CO2) – 810
tonnes
• Social Return on Investment
(as measured by HACT
indicators) - £20.7 million

• WEBTAG impacts- £27.3
million.
56

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 53

• Land value uplift - £19.9
million

57

4

Agenda Item 7

58

Our Long
Term Strategy
Appendix 1
Page 54

Our Brilliant Barrow
Investment Plan
establishes a framework
for action over the next
20 years (2020-2040). Our
collective understanding of
the issues and opportunities
which lie ahead of Barrow
provide the foundation for five
thematic intervention areas,
establishing focused areas for
collaborative action and a set of
prioritised short-term Town Deal
investments which will unlock our
potential.

59

4

What does success look like?
Population growing and young people attracted and retained
locally

Thematic Intervention Area
Nurturing People & Skills

Young people inspired to pursue rewarding careers and
succeed in life
More people with relevant skills for employment and
entrepreneurship
Retention of skilled local people through enhanced career
progression routes

Our Town Investment Plan will facilitate an attractive
and nurturing environment to retain and attract young
and working age people and provide the valuable
talent our town needs to fuel the opportunities ahead.

Barrow-based employers engaged and recruiting locally
Retention of skilled local people through enhanced career
progression routes
Improved health and well being

Focus Areas:

Inclusive economy: ensure

that the principles of good
growth and community wealth
building underpins the delivery
of the Town Investment Plan

Facilitate a demandled skills system: ensure

the supply of technical and
higher-level skills are available
locally to meet employer
needs in Barrow. This includes
broadening the local Higher
Education Offer, alongside
providing progression
pathways to higher education
and employment and
promoting the opportunities
and benefits of skills
investment to residents

Nurture ambition in
Barrow: build on good

Facilitate digital
inclusion: ensuring our

residents and businesses
have the digital skills and
affordable access to the digital
infrastructure, hardware
and software they need to
participate fully in this digital
age

determinants of health are
wide ranging and health and
well-being can be supported
through access to good
quality housing, high quality
open spaces and green
infrastructure, and access
to employment, sports and
leisure We will seek to better
understand the factors
contributing to health inequality
in Barrow through research
and targeted intervention,
including active design
and bespoke preventative
programmes to support health
and well-being

Secure social value –

work with anchor employers
to continue to build on existing
activity providing financial and
in-kind support to projects that
deliver social and economic
value in Barrow

Graduate retention and
attraction: through creating

Strategic Alignment

opportunities to study locally;
promoting job opportunities
in Barrow to graduates
elsewhere; and creating
graduate opportunities in our
businesses through graduate
placements and internships

Barrow Council Plan 2020-2024

Explore alternative
education provision:

Post-16 Skills Plan

explore the development of an
Alternative Provision Centre
in Barrow that provides the
opportunity for young people
who are not able to access
the curriculum in mainstream
school to have a chance at
success.

Furness Education and Skills Partnership
Cumbria Skills Advisory Panel
Cumbria Local Industrial Strategy
Cumbria County Council Plan 2018-2022

Select Delivery Partners
Barrow Borough Council
Cumbria County Council
Employers
Cumbria Chamber of Commerce
Department for Work & Pensions
Education and skills providers

University Hospitals of
Morecambe Bay Trust
Furness Education & Skills
Partnership
Department for Education
Cumbria LEP

Agenda Item 7

60

cold spots of worklessness,
unemployed young people,
poor health and disadvantage
in Barrow which requires the
skills system, in conjunction
with other services, to address
these issues in a joined-up way
through an integrated public
service delivery approach.
This will help us to make best
use of our available talent
and increase our workforce
through connecting people to
opportunities

Tackle health
inequalities: the

Appendix 1
Page 55

practice of existing employer
engagement in aspirational
careers activity in schools and
colleges, attract and retain
apprentices and graduates

Support thriving
communities: there are

Inspira

Department for Business,
Energy & Industrial Strategy

Cumbria Police

Cumbria CVS

61

4

Barrow
Community

What does success look like?

Thematic Intervention Area
Thriving Places

Young and growing population
Growing and diverse economy
Increased footfall and visitor numbers
Improved health and well-being
Vibrant, attractive and healthy places

Our Town Investment Plan will support activities
that make Barrow a diverse, attractive and healthy
place to live, work and visit.

Sustainable and high quality homes
New culture, sports and leisure assets
Local and new businesses committed to inclusive growth
Public service delivery aligned to need

Focus Areas:

Place development –
culture and tourism:

co-ordinate and promote
assets to visitors include
Morecambe Bay Cycleway,
England Coast Path; Dock
Museum; Furness Abbey; Piel
Island; South Lakes Safari Zoo;
and develop a programme of
events to support growth in
the visitor economy and retain
local spend; continue to secure
investment in enhancing
existing assets

Explore the feasibility
of new major visitor
attractions: linked to

maritime heritage or sports-led
regeneration to secure investor/
developer interest and deliver
a enhanced community culture
and leisure offer

Renew private and
social housing stock:

make the most of our rich
built heritage by repurposing
as attractive housing to meet
today’s needs, with a focus on
rejuvenating housing stock,
improving energy efficiency
and quality in identified target
areas

Support planned
increase in new housing:

programme of activity including
Future High Street investment,
Heritage Action Zone, Barrow
Town Deal and Barrow
Business Improvement District

Healthy Town:

harness the opportunity
presented by Barrow’s
waterfront landscape to deliver
an enhanced outdoor activity
offer to facilitate health and
well-being and attract visitors
and spend

Capture social value
from anchor businesses,
and major development
and investment: ensure

new investment adds value
for people living and working
locally to improve their quality
of life and life chances.

Strategic Alignment
Barrow Council Plan 2020-2024
Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031
UHMBT Better Care Together Review
Cumbria County Council Plan 2018-2022
Cumbria Local Industrial Strategy
Public Health England Strategy 2020-2025

Select Delivery Partners
Barrow Borough Council
Cumbria County Council
Homes England
University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay Trust
Landowners and developers
Registered providers
Major employers & investors
Cumbria CVS

62

Agenda Item 7

preventative care and active
design will shape Barrow
as a healthy town where
people can thrive and grow.
We will secure investment in
health infrastructure, including
maximising the potential of
UHMBT seed funding for new
hospital provision and seek
funding opportunities to tackle
the determinants of health and
well-being contributing to the
pervasive health inequalities
that exist in Barrow

Enhance Barrow’s
outdoor activity offer:

Appendix 1
Page 56

- meet the Local Plan housing
requirement of 119 net
additional dwellings per
annum to deliver a range of
housing types and sizes which
provide quality and choice
including the delivery of Marina
Village, a long term aspiration
of the Council, to increase our
population and stem decline
in young and working age
population

Revitalise and
repurpose Barrow
Town Centre: through a

63

4
What does success look like?
Increased entrepreneurship and new private and social
enterprises started

Thematic Intervention Area
Supportive Business Environment

Increased profitability and enhanced business growth
Target sectors growing and investing in Barrow
Inward investment secured

Our Town Investment Plan will support activities
that will drive productivity growth and resilience in
our business base

Resilient and diverse economy
Growth in employment, skills and income
Technology trends and impacts understood

Focus Areas:

Anchor Business
Engagement and
Community Wealth
building: strengthen strategic

relationships with Barrow’s
largest employers to ensure
their needs are being met,
facilitate local recruitment
and procurement to maximise
social and economic
value, support growth and
investment aspirations, and
deliver more jobs in Barrow

Strategic Alignment
Enhance Business
Support: review existing

business support provision in
Barrow to identify gaps in the
eco-system. Build on countywide offer to provide equitable
access to provision in Barrow
and develop bespoke support
to develop the competitiveness
of SMEs such as a supply
chain development, innovation
and digitalisation support,
low carbon support, and
international trade support,
and encourage development of
social enterprises

Creating an ecosystem
to support social
enterprise: social

Provide incubation and
grow on space: ensure

Barrow businesses censure
Barrow businesses and inward
investors can access the sites
and premises they need to
start up and scale up

Industrial Digitalisation:
work with our manufacturing
and energy sectors to
ensure they are responsive
to digital disruption and the
transformational effects of
AI and automation to ensure
employment is protected
and new job opportunities
are exploited. Facilitate links
between HEIs and business to
develop product and process
innovation.

Barrow Council Plan 2020-2024
Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031
Cumbria County Council Plan 2018-2022
Cumbria Local Industrial Strategy
Borderlands Inclusive Growth Deal
Northern Powerhouse Strategy
UK Industrial Strategy

Select Delivery Partners
Barrow Borough Council
Cumbria County Council
Cumbria LEP
Cumbria Growth Hub
Cumbria Chamber of Commerce
Higher Education Institutions
Barrow BID
Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy
Innovate UK
Major employers

Agenda Item 7

64

Systems on the implementation
of their supply chain strategy
to support development of the
local supply chain and their
capabilities to supply to them,
and other markets, to support
diversification and resilience
of the local economy and BAE
supplier base

Facilitate Soft Landing:

develop the value proposition
of Barrow as a place to
invest and promote the
offer alongside supporting
businesses to start, grow and
expand in Barrow through
advice and networking

Appendix 1
Page 57

enterprises have a valuable
role to play in building a better
Barrow through fulfilling a
social purpose and realising
benefits for Barrow. Targeted
support could enable the social
enterprise sector to respond to
opportunities and need where
market failure is present

Strengthen Local Supply
Chains: work with BAE

65

4
What does success look like?

Thematic Intervention Area
Clean Growth Potential

Net zero targets achieved
Carbon emissions decreasing
Clean energy production increasing
Inward investment secured

Our Town Investment Plan will develop a clean
and green Barrow that supports economic growth,
connectivity, and health and well-being

Increased profitability and enhanced business growth
Target sectors growing and investing in Barrow
Growth in employment and income

Focus Areas:

Net Zero Target: realise the
borough’s climate emergency
target to achieve net zero by
2037 through working with
residents and businesses
to enact change through
changing the way we generate
and use energy

Maximise Sector Deals:

working with Cumbria LEP
and BEIS to build on Barrow’s
expertise in offshore wind
and nuclear to identify the
place-based interventions and
contributions Barrow can make
towards growing the sectors

Clean energy testbed:

our natural and clean growth
assets positions us well
to respond to the Clean
Growth Grand Challenge by
working collaboratively with
government and the private
sector to trial new ideas linked
to low carbon opportunities
such as hydrogen, CCUS, and
small modular reactors

Natural capital: our

natural capital will play a
vital role in helping Barrow
achieve net zero emissions
and increasing our resilience to

climate change. We will work
with partners to explore how
we can protect our natural
capital assets whilst improving
our environment to support
economic growth

Respond to further
offshore leasing
opportunities: identify

and respond to further
opportunities for offshore wind
development in the Irish Sea
and strengthen Barrow’s role
as a serving Operational &
Maintenance support base,
including through securing
investment in the Port

Deliver the Local Plan’s
Major Opportunity
Areas: realise the economic
and low carbon potential
of the Waterfront Business
Park Strategic Employment
Opportunity Area and Energy
Uses Opportunity Area

Deliver the ambitions of
Low Carbon Barrow: a

programme focused on a range
of energy saving measures in
public housing, public buildings,
business premises, and electric
vehicle provision.

Strategic Alignment
Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031
Barrow Borough Council Climate Change Policy 2020-2025
Cumbria County Council Plan 2018-2022
Cumbria Local Industrial Strategy
Northern Powerhouse Strategy
UK Industrial Strategy
UK Clean Growth Strategy

Select Delivery Partners
Barrow Borough Council
Cumbria County Council
Cumbria LEP
Cumbria Growth Hub
Higher Education Institutions

Existing employers such as Spirit Energy, Orsted, Centrica,
Vattenfall
66

Agenda Item 7

Innovate UK

Appendix 1
Page 58

Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy

67

4

H

What does success look like?

Thematic Intervention Area
Critical Infrastructure

Reduced traffic and parking issues around large
employment sites
Modal shifts towards active and sustainable travel
Quality employment sites and premises

Our Town Investment Plan will ensure Barrow has
the enabling infrastructure to facilitate growth and
opportunity and support sustainability objectives

Reduced carbon emissions
Improved health and well-being
Full Fibre and enhanced mobile connectivity across
Barrow

Focus Areas:

Improve digital
connectivity: continued

expansion and roll-out of
superfast and ultrafast
broadband and improved
mobile connectivity to
include full 4G provision and
development of 5G provision

Sustainable travel plans:
work with anchor businesses
to reduce single occupancy
travel to work through
encouraging alternative modes
of transport including public
transport, cycling and walking

Enhance Local
Cycling and Walking
Infrastructure: to reduce

respond to future growth
prospects in clean growth,
advanced manufacturing and
visitor economy and shifts in
international trade

Support development of
new employment sites
and premises: continued

development of the Waterfront
Business Park to facilitate
local firm expansion and
secure inward investment, and
delivery of further employment
land to meet the identified
requirement in the Local Plan
(19.4ha)

Modernise the bus
network: modernised bus

fleet, improved bus interchange
facilities in the town centre, and
changes to the network and
fares to support sustainable
travel, health and well-being,
and a thriving town centre

Rail Improvement
Programme – support

station improvements; capacity
and line speed improvements
on the Cumbria Coast Line and
Furness Line

Highways Improvement
Programme: work to secure

junction improvements at key
locations throughout Barrow
to support the delivery of
growth as defined in the Local
Plan; and town carriageway
resurfacing to maintain
use, improve journey and
environment for all users

Major Road
Enhancement: support

improvements on major routes
(A595 and A590) into Barrow
to improve connectivity to the
M6 and West Cumbria

Coastal Defences:

implement the Cumbria
Coastal Defence Strategy and
protect Walney coastline from
further coastal erosion.

Strategic Alignment
Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031
Barrow Borough Council Climate Change Policy 2020-2025
Cumbria Infrastructure Plan
Cumbria Local Transport Plan
Cumbria Coastal Defence Strategy
Cumbria Local Industrial Strategy
Transport for the North Strategic Transport Plan
UK Industrial Strategy
UK Digital Strategy
UK Clean Growth Strategy

Select Delivery Partners
Associated British Ports

Cumbria County Council

Energy Savings Trust

Cumbria LEP

Developers/landowners

Department for Transport

Ministry for Housing,
Communities & Local Government

Transport for the North
Department for Culture,
Media and Sport
68

Network Rail
Stagecoach

Agenda Item 7

Barrow Borough Council

Appendix 1
Page 59

carbon emissions, reduce
congestion, support health and
well-being and develop the
visitor economy

Realise the potential
of Barrow Port: to

69

5

Our Town
Investment Plan

Our offer
We want to build on and support our
successes and strengths, and the existing
good work of the private, public and third
sector. We will use Towns Funding to catalyse
a step change in the fortunes of Barrow’s
economy. This injection of resources will allow
us to deliver interventions at scale to provide
momentum and equip us to better respond
to the challenges and opportunities which lie
ahead.
Our tailored approach responds to the key
drivers of local growth and provides a strategic
response to national, Cumbrian and local
challenges. The programme of investment
will tackle our deep-rooted challenges by
delivering inclusive economic growth through
collective action and co-operation.

Over the lifetime of the Town Investment Plan we will
benefit 51,600 residents directly and generate:
• £63.2 million in additional GVA
• £20.7m Social Return on Investment
• £19.9m Land Value Uplift
• £27.3m WEBTAG benefits
• 810 tonnes of CO2 equivalent savings
The cumulative impact of delivering a holistic set of
projects and programmes through the Town Investment
Plan will
unlock additional benefits, such as:
• remediation and development of a major strategic
site, unlocking and delivering around 33,000 sqm
of commercial floor space and 602 homes
• housing renewal and carbon efficiency
improvements of up to 220 homes
• 3,500 sq m public realm delivered
• 6.3 hectares of land brought forward for nature
conservation
• 4.5 km of walking and cycling routes improved
• an additional 50,000 tourism visitors per annum
• an additional 18,100 Higher Education students
• an additional 5,000 Level 3 students
• an estimated additional 5,000 cycling trips in Barrow

Agenda Item 7

70

Appendix 1
Page 60

• improved broadband connectivity.

71

5

Our Town
Investment Plan

Establishment of a representative Town Deal Board and associated working groups
Development of a Town Deal Stakeholder Engagement Plan including stakeholder mapping

Phase 1 Engagement:
#MyTowns portal and One-to-One Stakeholder Engagement with public, private and third
sector organisations

Phase 1 Feedback:
Drafting and testing of the Town Deal Strategic Framework with stakeholders

Our ask
Our ask is for a £29.9m investment towards a bold
transformational programme to be delivered over the next
20 years. We estimate these investments will return £4.4 in
additional benefits for every £1 of Towns Fund investment.
These additional benefits incorporate GVA, land value uplift,
WEBTAG and Social Return on Investment.
We are confident in our ability to deliver and have robust
assurance frameworks in place to ensure that each scheme
is subject to a rigorous value for money assessment.

Stakeholder Engagement

The development of our Brilliant Barrow Investment Plan is being overseen by our Town Deal
Board. The Board was established in January 2020 and is responsible for developing the vision,
strategy and Town Investment Plan for Barrow, in consultation and collaboration with the
community. Two Task and Finish Groups (the Plan Development Group and Communication
and Engagement Group) support the work of the Town Deal Board. The Town Deal Board is
accountable to Barrow Borough Council, the lead authority.
We have coalesced our community spirit around a #BrilliantBarrow campaign which has
provided a successful platform to engage community voices in the development of our Town
Investment Plan. In tandem, we have engaged with a wide range of strategic partners and
delivery bodies to develop buy-in, ensure strategic alignment, and forge effective linkages to
existing activity.
The critical building blocks in our plan development are shown on the adjacent flow diagram.

Phase 2 Feedback:
Iterative feedback to inform the draft Town Investment Plan and shortlisting of projects

Phase 3 Engagement:
Development of Project Stakeholder Engagement Plans and implementation through a
mixed method approach including surveys and focus group activity; testing the draft Town
Investment Plan with stakeholders
Phase 3 Feedback:
Refining the project SOBCs and the final Town Investment Plan
Phase 3 Commitment:
Secure letters of support from stakeholder organisations
Phase 4 Engagement:
Raise awareness of the final Town Investment Plan and undertake tailored project
development engagement to inform Full Business Cases
Phase 5 Engagement:
Engage stakeholders in the implementation and delivery of projects

Agenda Item 7

72

Launch of the #BrilliantBarrow campaign and website: www.brilliantbarrow.org.uk
encouraging the community to ‘Have your say’

Appendix 1
Page 61

A Stakeholder Engagement Plan to accompany the launch of Barrow’s finalised Town
Investment Plan has been developed which articulates our commitment to ongoing dialogue
and will ensure implementation of our Plan is responsive to stakeholder needs.

Phase 2 Engagement:

73

-INFURNESS

5
Our Prioritisation Process

being H

mu
om n

Wellity

ub

C

An initial list of projects was developed
and refined to reach a long list of 14
projects, with concept forms submitted
by applicants. This had a combined ask
of £60.2 million.
Cy
and cli

ments
ve

Barrow
Association
Football Club

Walking

Cy
and cli

ments
ve

BARROW
-INFURNESS

Impro
ng

Walney Island
Airport

Impro
ng

newa
Re

sin
ou g

rea
lA s

From this long list a rigorous assessment
process was undertaken, scoring each
of the projects against the 10 Strategic
Objectives and 8 Critical Success Factors.

Walking

Ormsgill

H

newa
Re

sin
ou g

ad

sin
ou g

Ro
be
y
Ab

sin
ou g

sin
ou g

eD
lac ev

ess S
sin

s Bu
ea

aelso

n Ro

Walking

mu
om n

Dalton Road

ad

C
et

Mich

ub

reet

St

St Georges
Square
Conservation
Area

Strand

Marina
Village
Gateway
Buccleuch
Dock

ouse

Salth

Road

Marina
Village
Barro

w

Learn
Qu
ing a

6

r
rte

being H

ub

C

7

Cy
and cli

Impro
ng

en

sd

Ram

being H

Wellity

et
Stre

te

Stre

1

Primary
Care
Primary
Trust
Care
Trust

rch

Holland House

Stre

ga

en

Gre

t
tree
eS
Duk

2

Barrow Island
Gateway

mu
om n

rea
lA s

e

in

et

on

Har

Chu

t
ee
Str

M

s
ocu Ar

L
st

90

H

a
Co

A5

e

n

Lin

n

so
w
La

t
ee
Str
et
ark

Market

BAE
Systems

Barrow Island
Conservation
Area

cu
t Fo s

ss

t
ee
Str

Town
Hall

Wellity

5. Extent to which it secures inclusive
growth

ne

e
uk

4. Extent to which it delivers higher
productivity

k
Wal

ris

D

Vickerstown

nd

rtla

a
w

Roose

newa
Re

et

Stre

Po

BAE Systems
Car Park

BAE Central
Yard Facility

ia

t
ee
Str

Ca

t
ee
Str
llis

Devonshire
Dock

0
A59

br

ish

nd

ve

ke

d

oa

TOWN
CENTRE

uc

ccle

Bu

u
s
D
es
l
d
ra rn ea
oa
nt Fu Ar
lR
Ce -In- ion
oo
dp
w at
in
H
rro erv
Ba ons
C

lR
Devonshire Dock
Hall

port F
up

et

re
h St

rn
Co

3. Clear evidence of market failure and
market need

r
Fu

oo

dp

in

5

A

Historic Duke
Street
Gateway

H

2. Degree of transformative impact

Nan Tait
Ro
Centre bey
b

3

m
Cu

ad

Barrow Rugby
League
Football Club

pm
elo en

rea
lA s

4

ments
ve

C

t
ee
Str

1. Fit with the Town Investment Plan
Strategic Objectives

newa
Re

H

ub

n

gto

in

art

H

Barrow
Park
Barrow-inFurness
County
Court

eas P
Ar

Walney Road

H

mu
om n

H

Station
Gateway

rea
lA s

being H

8 Critical Success Factors

newa
Re

rea
lA s

Wellity

Cavendish
Dock

Cavendish
Park

Port of
Barrow

Waterfront
Business Park &
opportunity site

6. Robust delivery plan
7. Funding leverage
8. Financial sustainability.

Barrow
Port

74

experts in strategy, economics and regeneration,
and provided constructive feedback which we
took into account in our plan development.

Agenda Item 7

We participated in an external ‘check and
challenge’ process led by Cumbria LEP
using a ‘Star Chamber’ approach which
provided scrutiny of our plans by national

Appendix 1
Page 62

An independent assessment of each
project was undertaken with the findings
presented to the Town Deal Board who
then agreed a shortlist of 7 projects to
take forward.

Figure 5.1: Barrow Town Investment Plan

75

Barrow Learning
Quarter
Project Description

The creation of Barrow Learning Quarter, which will comprise both a University Campus and a
Skills Hub.
The new University Campus in Barrow will provide undergraduate and postgraduate higher
education and training in key sectors for the town, including energy and advanced manufacturing,
whilst supporting diversification of the economy and enhancing competitiveness of the business
base. The Campus will assist in increasing university attainment levels in Barrow, alongside
aligning skills requirements of key local employers with Barrow’s residents. It will also undertake
research and R&D collaboration with businesses, and will support the University’s ambition to
establish a nationally recognised HE centre for advanced manufacturing excellence.

Project
1
Timescales and
Spend Profile

• 2020/21- £0.01m
• 2021/22-£3.5m
• 2022/23-£5.6m
• 2023/24-£4.2m
• 2024/25-£0.04m
Total £13.4m

Outputs

•

A new university campus with 607 students
joining per annum by 2025/26, and 1,482
students joining per annum from 2031.

•

A Skills Academy for Level 3 qualifications
with 800 students joining per annum by
2025.

•

Increased and closer collaboration with key
employers

•

Increase in the breadth of the local skills offer
that responds to local skill needs

•

An additional 5,000 Level 3 learners by 2040

•

An additional 18,100 Level 4 learners by
2040

•

£59.7m additional net GVA secured by 2040

•

4.0:1.

The new Skills Hub will help meet the need for advanced academic and technical skills and
will support a longer-term proposal for the creation of an Institute of Technology focused on
increasing digital capability across the economy. The Skills Hub will enhance the employability and
progression of sixth form and college students to higher education and on to employment.
Project Rationale

•

•

Strategic alignment

Barrow is a major national industrial asset for the UK with one of the most important
advanced manufacturing clusters nationally. ONS data indicates that 25% of the workforce is
employed in manufacturing, and at least 45% of GVA is generated from manufacturing.
Major employers such as BAE and a number of SMEs have confirmed that a lack of higher
level skills is constraining growth and innovation. Barrow is currently a HE ‘cold’ spot with HE
participation less than 25%, compared with 40% in England and 50% across the UK.

The project aligns in the following ways with Barrow’s TIP Pillars:

•

Inclusive Economy: the project would enable more local people to realise their potential and
develop pathways to higher level skills and earnings.

•

Healthy Places: the Learning Quarter will be comprised of energy efficient buildings with
green spaces. The provision of healthcare and nursing courses will be increased and
strengthened through research collaboration and knowledge exchange. Significantly higher
numbers of local residents will achieve healthcare qualifications.

•

The project aligns with Strategic Objectives SO2, SO5 and SO6

•

This project aligns with the Town Deal ‘Skills and Enterprise’ theme

•

The project aligns with policies including the UK Industrial Strategy, UK Post 16 Skills Plan,
Cumbria Local Industrial Strategy, and Cumbria Skills Strategy

Action

•

Delivery of a new university campus for the University of Cumbria and skills hub for Furness
College on a town centre BAE owned site. The HE campus will raise skills levels for key sectors
and raise HE participation for local people.

Ask and Match
Funding

•

£13.4m Town Deal ask of a total cost of £23.4m

•

BAE Systems are providing the site for the new Learning Quarter.

Major
Interdependencies

•

Securing match funding

Estimated BCR

Barrow Learning Quarter

Agenda Item 7

Clean Growth: the Learning Quarter would strengthen progression pathways into priority
sectors including clean growth

Appendix 1
Page 63

•

76

Outcomes

77

Community Wellbeing Hubs
& Earnse Bay Outdoor Centre
Project Description

To develop a network of three community wellbeing hubs in Barrow’s most deprived areas. The
hubs will serve as trusted spaces which will be used by local people to develop skills, access
services and come together to build thriving communities. They will also support access to
and use of digital technology and support the work to reduce health inequalities. These hubs
will be underpinned by a new outdoor centre at Earnse Bay which will provide access for local
communities to open spaces and outdoor education. There are positive discussions regarding the
proposals for Earnse Bay, and the scope for this to link into the development of Eden Project North
and its overall work around the Bay area.

Project
2
Timescales and
Spend Profile

• 2020/21- £0.8m
• 2021/22-£3.1m
• 2022/23-£0.4m
• 2023/24-£0.1m
• 2024/25-£0m
Total £4.5m

Outputs

•

Three new community wellbeing hubs for
Barrow

•

One new outdoor activity centre

•

Learners assisted

•

£10.7m net Social Return on Investment,
comprising physical activity, skills and digital
impacts.

•

2.0:1

All four centres will encourage positive lifestyle choices by providing viable alternatives and
increasing experiences and aspirations.
This proposal will be at the heart of the community recovery following the Covid-19 pandemic,
supporting community resilience at a grassroots level for some of Barrow’s most vulnerable
residents, alongside improving health and wellbeing and developing skills across the town.
Project Rationale

Strategic alignment

•

A large proportion of Barrow’s town centre is highly deprived: 30% of LSOAs (12 in total) in the
Barrow-in-Furness Town Deal Area are within the most 10% deprived areas nationally.

•

Virtually all of Barrow-in-Furness is in the top half of all areas nationally for health deprivation,
with a significant proportion of the town in the most 10% deprived.

•

A huge challenge in addressing these deprivation and health inequalities is the low levels of
skills across Barrow to enable job entry and career progression. Only 30% of the population
hold degree level qualifications (compared to 44% in England).

Inclusive Economy: this project aims to engage and assist the most excluded communities in
Barrow.

•

Healthy Places: the outdoor centre will provide a space for physical exercise and both the
outdoor centre and hubs will promote mental wellbeing in the community.

•

The project aligns with Strategic Objectives SO1, SO5 and SO8.

•

This project aligns with the Town Deal ‘Skills and Enterprise’ theme

•

The project aligns with policies including the UK Industrial Strategy, Cumbria Local Industrial
Strategy, One Public Estate, UK Digital Strategy, Public Health England’s Health Matters Policy
and Borderlands Inclusive Growth Deal.

•

Delivery of three community wellbeing hubs at Ormsgill, Barrow Island, and Hindpool/Central.

•

Delivery of an outdoor activity and education facility at Earnse Bay.

Delivery Partners

•

Cumbria County Council, Barrow Borough Council, Cumbria Police, DWP, Third Sector, Eden
Project North partners

Ask and Match Funding

•

£4.5m Town Deal ask

Major
Interdependencies

•

Securing delivery partner for the outdoor facility

Community Hubs

Agenda Item 7

•

Appendix 1
Page 64

Clean Growth: The outdoor centre and community well-being hubs will be highly
environmentally sustainable and maximise Barrow’s natural capital.

78

Estimated BCR

The project aligns in the following ways with Barrow’s TIP Pillars:
•

Actions

Outcomes

79

Business &
Enterprise Support
Project Description

The project will enable a comprehensive and supportive business environment to develop in
Barrow, with a focus on ensuring that a holistic package of business support is available to local
businesses and entrepreneurs to maximise investment and supply chain opportunities in the town.

Project Rationale

•

Barrow has an entrepreneurial deficit, demonstrated by the relatively low levels of selfemployment (4.3% in the Town Deal area compared to 15.5% nationally). Of the businesses
that do start, only 50% survive longer than 5 years.

•

Barrow needs to diversify its business base given the overreliance on major employers in the
town.

•

Barrow has major investment opportunities presented by the advanced manufacturing and
clean growth sector which local firms can access through supply chain and innovation support.

•

Strategic alignment

• 2020/21- £0.15m
• 2021/22-£0.25m
• 2022/23-£0.25m
• 2023/24-£0.2m
• 2024/25-£0.15m
Total £1.0m

Outputs

•

Business productivity and growth supported

•

Programme of grants to local SMEs

•

160 individuals supported to start their own
businesses

•

60 SMEs supported to access supply chain
opportunities

•

70 SMEs supported to improve their
productivity

•

£4.2m net additional GVA secured

•

£0.3m net Social Return on Investment

•

3.4:1

Outcomes

This project responds to the overarching market failures in business support, which are centred
a coordination failure between support networks, preventing businesses accessing and
understanding the support available.
Clean Growth: the programme is focused on supporting Barrow’s key growth sectors,
including clean energy, and facilitating the decarbonisation agenda.

•

Healthy Places: the programme will provide a business recovery programme for businesses
affected by Covid-19, which will have important mental health outcomes.

•

The project aligns with the Strategic Objectives SO2, SO5 and SO8.

•

The project aligns with the Town Deal theme of ‘Skills and Enterprise’

•

The project aligns with policies including the UK Industrial Strategy, Cumbria Local Industrial
Strategy and the Borderlands Inclusive Growth Deal.

•

Business recovery programme: including a programme of financial support for businesses
impacted by COVID-19

•

Innovation and digitalisation programme: supporting businesses to establish their online digital
presence and scale up activity

•

A supply chain support programme to enable local SMEs to access supply chain opportunities
in future growth sectors

•

A social enterprise support programme to support entrepreneurs to start and grow businesses
in Barrow in response to local need

Ask and Match
Funding

•

£1m ask of a total cost of £1m

Major
Interdependencies

•

Community wellbeing hubs delivered as physical locations for business support project

Estimated BCR

Business & Enterprise Support

Agenda Item 7

Inclusive Economy: this project aims to assist entrepreneurs and SME’s in Barrow, who have
found it difficult to access support in the past to overcome barriers to start up and grow.

Appendix 1
Page 65

•

80

Timescales and
Spend Profile

The project aligns in the following ways with Barrow’s TIP Pillars:
•

Actions

Project
3

81

Housing Renewal
Programme
Project Description

Renewal and renovation of housing stock across Barrow has been a Council priority for
approximately 30 years, and the Council has run a programme of Housing Market Renewal. This
programme would deliver a transformative impact for Barrow’s homes, improving up to 220
residential properties across the town, alongside an investment in public realm and commercial
shop fronts. This would have a significant impact on local people’s health and wellbeing, deliver a
range of environmental improvements through carbon savings, and improve perceptions of Barrow
as a place to live.

Project Rationale

•

Strategic alignment

Actions

•

The market has failed to address this through a coordination failure, as homes are owned by
many individuals.

•

There are significant positive externalities that will result from housing market renewal, which
are not directly priced by the market. The environmental and social benefits of the housing
renewal programme will be greater than the benefits that can be captured by individual bodies
acting in isolation.

Outputs

•

Up to 220 homes improved

•

39 commercial properties with shop fronts
improved

•

3,500 sq m of public realm delivered

•

£7.3m Social Return on Investment

•

45 tonnes CO2 savings per annum

•

Improved perceptions of Barrow as a place
to live

•

1.7: 1

Outcomes

Estimated BCR

•

Clean Growth: the programme will deliver carbon emissions savings and provision of green
space.

•

Inclusive Economy: the priority areas for investment in the programme are centred around the
most deprived parts of Barrow.

•

Healthy Places: investment in housing conditions and public realm will deliver a range the
priority areas for investment in the programme are centred around the most deprived parts of
Barrow.

•

The project aligns with Strategic Objectives SO4, SO8 and SO9.

•

This project aligns with the Town Deal theme of ‘Urban Regeneration’

•

The project aligns with policies including the UK Industrial Strategy, Cumbria Local Industrial
Strategy, UK Net Zero Target 2050, Cumbria Housing Statement, Borderlands Inclusive Growth
Deal, and Barrow Borough Local Plan.

•

£1.3m component to refurbish 39 commercial properties and 16 residential properties on
Rawlinson Street

•

Property improvements, including energy efficiency, refurbishment and re-assembly of up to
200 residential properties in one of the two identified priority areas

•

Public realm and green space investment in one of the two identified priority areas

•

This programme will be delivered by Barrow Borough Council, who have a proven track record
in delivery of housing renewal programme
£4.0m Town Deal ask of a total cost of £4.4m.

•

£400,000 match funding from Barrow Borough Council

•

None identified

Housing Renewal

Agenda Item 7

82

• 2020/21- £0m
• 2021/22-£1.1m
• 2022/23-£1.1m
• 2023/24-£1.3m
• 2024/25-£0.5m
Total £4.0m

The project aligns in the following ways with Barrow’s TIP Pillars:

Ask and Match Funding •
Major
Interdependencies

Timescales and
Spend Profile

Appendix 1
Page 66

Delivery Partners

The housing in the central Barrow wards is mostly traditional, older housing with a lack of
high-quality, aspirational homes to attract and retain people. A significant proportion of
housing stock is in bad condition: 18-21% of privately owned and privately rented housing in
Barrow has category 1 Housing Health and Safety Rating System hazards.

Project
4

83

Marina Village
Project Description

Project Rationale

Strategic alignment

Actions

The remediation of a large brownfield site within Barrow-in-Furness. This would enable the private
sector to come forward and deliver a Masterplan of predominantly high-quality, family homes,
alongside mixed-use leisure and cultural space and a nature conservation area. Delivery of the
Masterplan would transform the Marina Village site into an area that both widens the housing
offer within Barrow and raises perceptions of the town.
•

The Marina Village site has a number of complex and interdependent physical site constraints
that need to be addressed before the market can deliver housing on the site.

•

The market has failed in bringing forward this site for development as essential site
remediation and ecological translocation works need to be undertaken before the site is
suitable.

•

Clean Growth: the programme will remediate a major site into one that is environmentally
sustainable, provides a significant nature conservation area alongside low carbon
development.

•
•
•
•

Major
Interdependencies

•
•

•

Inclusive Economy: the provision of commercial space will provide much needed sites and
premises for local firms as well as inward investors, a nature conservation area accessible to
the whole community, and family-led housing providing much needed homes to families in
Barrow.

•

Healthy Places: the Marina Village site will provide green space for local people to access for
health and wellbeing.

•

£1m Town Deal contribution to site remediation and
preparation costs
Match funding requests with Homes England and Cumbria
LEP
£0.7m match funding secured from Barrow Borough
Council
No private sector contributions for the remediation works,
but the Masterplan will be delivered by the private sector.
Reliant on private sector to bring forward Masterplan once
the site is remediated
Reliant on remainder of public sector funding being
secured

Timescales and
Spend Profile

• 2020/21- £0m
• 2021/22-£0.6m
• 2022/23-£0.4m
• 2023/24-£0m
• 2024/25-£0
Total £1.0m

Outputs

•

26-hectare brownfield site remediated

•

Up to 550 homes delivered

The project aligns with Strategic Objectives SO3 and SO10.

•

3.3 hectares of mixed-use commercial space

•

The project aligns with the Town Deal theme of ‘Urban Regeneration’

•

6.3 hectares of land for nature conservation

•

The project aligns with policies including the UK Industrial Strategy, Cumbria Local Industrial
Strategy, National Planning Policy Framework and Barrow Borough Local Plan

•

£19.9 million land value uplift

•

Clean growth

•

Enhanced townscape that is more attractive and
accessible to residents, businesses and visitors

•

1.5:1*

Outcomes

Match funding is required to undertake essential site remediation works to make the site suitable
for the private sector to develop. The actions will address:
Significant contaminated land issues 3. The Masterplan

•

THE
MASTERPLAN
Large populations of common lizards 3.1
and slow
worms
on the site

•

The potential for ground water contamination

•

and the opportunities
Diversion of statutory infrastructure away
from
development
areathat the site presents to
The masterplan
creates the
an overarching
plan to
create a range of densities that enable the

•

FRAMEWORK

INTRODUCTION

Density
Marina Village will respond to the existing context

Road is also linked into the network. The northsouth pedestrian link also connects into the
central green space providing easy access.

create a sustainable and vibrant Marina Village,
showcasing this key area. The Marina Village

delivery of a successful and sustainable new

Green Streets
The loop road is a key element of the site
structure. Abundantly lined with trees, this street
will provide a clear structuring element linking
green spaces and supporting legibility.

neighbourhood. The three areas proposed range
seeks to transformunderground
this waterfront
Demolition of redundant buildings andMasterplan
redundant
structures
from Low (30dph), Medium (35dph+) and High
location into an area that both widens the
housing offer within Barrow and importantly

Density (45dph+). Densities increase towards
the waters edge. The interface with existing
neighbourhoods is respected through lower
density homes that will create strong development
blocks and streets.

•

location in which to live, work and enjoy leisure
Acquisition of the remaining land parcels
activities. A new neighbourhood will provide

•

network, utilising existing pedestrian
The remediation of the site would be undertaken by Barrowmovement
Borough
Council.
and public transport routes, and improving access

This area will become an attractive waterside

a range of homes, and employment and local
services will help sustain both new and future
residents. The new Marina Village neighbourhood
will be interwoven with a green and blue network
that links into the existing diverse habitat and
landscape setting. The area will support and
create opportunities for investment, building on
existing local activity by world class employers
such as BAE Systems.

MOVEMENT

consultation with a range of stakeholders and
client representatives.

future proofing. The re-siting of the dock road
access will also enable public realm improvements
at St. George’s Square and an attractive new
gateway to connect into the mixed use area.

Marina Village will be interwoven with the existing
quality to the existing dock area.

* incorporating all public sector funding, not just £1m TIP gap funding

Habitat
A large proportion of Marina Village is dedicated
to nature conservation. This is predominantly
aligned around the south and eastern areas
where large habitat areas will accommodate a
diverse range of species.

Marina Village

Provision is made for approximately 6.3ha for
reptile habitat, this includes the southern bun.
A further 2.4ha for bird habitat, this includes
both SuDs provision and 20m landscape buffer
to Buccleuch Dock. The southern tip of Marina
Village will also include habitat retained for
roosting birds.

The development of the Masterplan would be brought forward
New Dock by
Road a private sector partner, to
A potential new dock road is realigned along the
eastern perimeter of the built area to connect to
be identified.
The Marina Village Masterplan has evolved in
the dock access south of Marina Village, ensuring
A number of options were developed during the
process and these were amalgamated to create a
preferred option. This preferred option provided
the basis for the masterplan. The masterplan
comprises a number of key components as set
out below.

LAND USE
Marina Village will predominantly comprise new
homes, alongside a vibrant new local centre
and employment area. The mix of land uses
complement each other but are not dependent
on each other for delivery.

Street Hierarchy
The site main gateway access from Salthouse
Road, connects into a strong loop that enables
a legible street network to be created. The loop
road is strengthened visually as a green street
further supporting legibility across Marina Village.
Pedestrian /Cycle Routes
A strong north-south pedestrian and cycle link
connects from the Salthouse Road/ Marsh Street
junction across the Marina Village and links into
the existing National Cycle Network (NCN) 700
at the southern side of the site. This route will

All these areas will have controlled public access
through provision of structured routes, such as
nature trails and the retention of the NCN700
route.
Sustainable Urban Drainage
Marina Village will incorporate a SuDs system
that comprises swales and ponds to the north
and south of the site. To the north the structure
will provide an attractive visual feature to the
Salthouse Road gateway clearly demarcating
Marina Village entrance.
To the south SuDs provision will be sited within
the nature conservation area.

Extract taken from Marina
Village Masterplan Framework
(February 2020)

Agenda Item 7

raises perceptions of the place.
A cut and fill exercise across the site to
address site levels

Estimated BCR

Appendix 1
Page 67

•

•

84

Ask and Match
Funding

The project aligns in the following ways with Barrow’s TIP Pillars:

•

Delivery Partners

Project
5

85

Brilliant Barrow Place
Development
Project Description

The Brilliant Barrow Place Development project will underpin the major investment being delivered
in Barrow through Towns Fund and aligned initiatives. The proposition will attract residents,
businesses, investors, students and visitors to Barrow to access Barrow’s enhanced offer. The
project will focus on the positioning of Barrow as a tourism destination and develop Barrow’s
cultural offer and sense of identity through a range of activities. The project seeks to maximise
the economic income from the tourism industry, to help diversify the local economy and capture
on existing opportunities, whilst enhancing the local culture and leisure offer and capturing local
spend.

Project Rationale

•

Barrow has a number of visitor facing assets but has had significantly fewer visitor numbers
than more traditional visitor facing locations in Cumbria and the surrounding area.

•

Public investment is required to increase the profile of the borough and attract visitors to
Barrow, whilst also providing activities for residents to partake in and enjoy.

•

Project will enhance Barrow’s unique heritage culture and natural assets and galvanise our
sense of pride

Strategic alignment

Project
6
Timescales and
Spend Profile

• 2020/21-£0m
• 2021/22-£0.3m
• 2022/23-£0.3m
• 2023/24-£0.2m
• 2024/25-£0.2m
• 2025/26-£0.1m
Total £1.0m

Outputs

•

Enhanced programme of events and
activities for all ages

Outcomes

•

Social Return on Investment of £2.4m

•

Footfall of at least 50,000 people in Barrow
town centre, with an estimated 20% of
attendees from outside Barrow and 3,000
overnight visitors.

•

An additional local spend of £0.9m and
charity donations of £80,000

The project aligns in the following ways with Barrow’s TIP Pillars:
•

Inclusive Economy: the programme will help to diversify the economy of Barrow, through
growing the visitor economy and generating jobs for local people.

•

•

Healthy Places: the project will promote active lifestyle choices through the generation of
community events around Barrow.

Increased sense of pride and belonging for
residents

•

•

The project aligns with Strategic Objectives SO3, SO4, SO8 and SO10.

Increased health and wellbeing through
enjoyment and physical activity, particularly
in the outdoors

•

The project aligns with the Town Deal theme of ‘Urban Regeneration’

•

The project aligns with policies including the UK Industrial Strategy, Cumbria Local Industrial
Strategy, The Great Britain Tourism Action Plan, Tourism Sector Deal, Tourism Strategy for
Cumbria, The Bay Prosperity and Resilience Strategy and Barrow Borough Local Plan.

•

2.3:1

•

An FTE ‘Place Development Officer’ to coordinate the #BrilliantBarrow place proposition
alongside aligned initiatives.

•

Marketing and promotional activities over five years which will include visitor/investor focused
campaigns.

•

Funding support for current festivals and events, as well as two larger flagship events; a music
festival and a lights festival.

•

Capital investment on a digital screen for event promotion and showcasing.

•

A feasibility study looking to develop a new attraction in Barrow.

Delivery Partners

•

The project will be delivered by Barrow Borough Council, in partnership with Cumbria Tourism
and Barrow BID.

Ask and Match
Funding

•

£1m Town Deal ask for a total cost of £1m

Major
Interdependencies

•

None identified

Action

86

Estimated BCR

Brilliant Barrow Place
Development

Agenda Item 7

Clean Growth: the project will maximise sustainable use of Barrow’s natural capital assets.

Appendix 1
Page 68

•

87

Local Cycling and Walking
Infrastructure
Project Description

A transformative programme of walking and cycling infrastructure improvements within Barrow,
delivering a high-quality network connecting key transport nodes. This will drive local demand for
walking and cycling, provide health and wellbeing benefits, improve access to services from all
communities and put Barrow at the forefront of active travel in the UK.

Project Rationale

•

Investing in cycling and walking infrastructure delivers a range of positive externalities which
are not priced by the market.

•

This includes delivering clean growth for Barrow through lower carbon emissions and enabling
local people to make affordable and healthy transport decisions.

•

Attractive and sustainable travel routes will enhance the perception of Barrow as a place to
live and work

Strategic alignment

• 2020/21- £0.2m
• 2021/22-£2.15m
• 2022/23-£2.15m
• 2023/24-£0m
• 2024/25-£0m
Total £4.5m

Outputs

•

11.5 km of enhanced cycle provision

Outcomes

•

WEBTAG benefits of £27.3m

•

Uplifts of up to 67% in cycling over a 20-year
period, equating to approximately 5,000
additional cycle trips per year.

•

Improved sustainable and affordable
transport options to and from places of work
and Barrow town centre

Inclusive Economy: investment in walking and cycling infrastructure benefits the whole
community of Barrow.

•

Healthy Places: the programme would encourage local people to make healthier active
transport decisions.

•

6.2:1

•

The project aligns with Strategic Objectives SO9, SO10 and SO8.

•

This project aligns with the Town Deal ‘Connectivity’ theme

•

The project aligns with policies including the UK Industrial Strategy, Cumbria Local Industrial
Strategy, UK Net Zero Target 2050, Government Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy,
Cumbria Cycling Strategy, Cumbria Transport Plan, and Barrow Borough Local Plan.

•

Abbey Road – from Furness Abbey to Hindpool Road (part of NCN70): approximately 4 km
of cycle routes connecting key locations such as Furness Hospital and the town centre at
Hindpool Road. This would also integrate with Barrow Station

•

Walney Road (A590) – from Sowerby Wood to BAE Systems: approximately 4.5km of
enhancement and extension to the existing sub-standard cycle infrastructure, connecting key
employers and residents in the north to BAE systems and other employers at Devonshire Dock

•

Roose Road (A5087) – from Roose to Hindpool Road (part of NCN700): approximately 3 km
of cycle routes connecting key locations such as the rail station and town centre at Hindpool
Road

Delivery Partners

•

Cumbria County Council

Ask and Match
Funding

•

£4.5m Town Deal ask

•

Match funding options to scale up the project are being explored with key private sector
employers in Barrow.

Major
Interdependencies

•

Feasibility exercise required incorporating site visits and engagement with stakeholders with
all three sites

Estimated BCR

Local cycling and walking

Agenda Item 7

•

Appendix 1
Page 69

Clean Growth: the programme would facilitate employers in the town to be better connected
through sustainable and environmentally friendly means.

88

Timescales and
Spend Profile

The project aligns in the following ways with Barrow’s TIP Pillars:
•

Action

Project
7

89

5
Enabling
Asks of
Government

Aligned Asks of
Government

In addition to the project
specific funding sought, we
are also seeking revenue
investment of £100,000 per
annum to facilitate a TIP
Programme Management
Function. Barrow Borough
Council, as accountable body,
will need to manage the
investment programme and
the required monitoring and
reporting requirements. As
a small authority which has
experienced funding cuts of
40% since 2010 (a decrease
of £6m per annum) additional
resource support will be
necessary to undertake this
function and see the fullest
range of benefits materialise.

The activities of the Town Investment Plan will support aligned
initiatives and existing funding asks and streams. There are a number
of existing funding applications with Government and this Town
Investment Plan requests an enhanced consideration of them, due to
their importance in delivering the overarching Town Investment Plan.

Future High Street
Our Town Deal and Future High Street
projects firmly align, and we have pursued a
collaborative approach to ensure the principles
of complementarity and added value is
embedded in our approach.
The Future High Street Fund bid is a £25m
application for funding to deliver four integrated
projects to reinvigorate the high street in
Barrow, including a modernised market hall,
the transformation of Barrow Town Hall as a

visitor attraction and public service hub, a new
Barrow Town Square to create footfall, and a
Central Transit Hub to connect people to the
town centre.
This application for funding aligns strongly
with a number of the identified Town Deal
projects, through strengthening Barrow’s offer
and identity, revitalising the high street, and
supporting existing businesses.

Artist impression of the proposed projects as part of the Future High Street
Fund bid (image produced by Optimised Environments (OPEN)).

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 70

90

91

5
Marina Village

Electric Bus Fund

Low Carbon Barrow

The remediation of the Marina
Village site requires funding
support to unlock the site and
enable the private sector to
bring forward the residentialled Masterplan. Government
funding is essential to
supporting the realisation of
this major development site as
a new vibrant neighbourhood
with up to 550 new homes.

An application has been
made to the Department for
Transport, seeking funding
to deliver a fully modernised
decarbonised bus network,
through the implementation
of a range of physical
infrastructure measures, linking
major local employers and the
town centre more efficiently.

Barrow Borough Council is
seeking £750,000 from the
Cumbria LEP Growth deal
for a £2m programme of
investment across Barrow to
reduce carbon emissions. The
investments include energy
efficiency projects in public
housing and public buildings,
electric vehicle charging
infrastructure in key locations, a
small grants programme and a
series of public and stakeholder
engagement workshops. The
programme will safeguard 18
FTE jobs, assist 25 businesses,
save 100 tonnes carbon
per annum and support 25
community organisations/ SME
businesses.
This project also aligns closely
with a number of the priority
projects that are centred
around clean growth in Barrow
and reducing carbon emissions.

A590, A595 and Local Roads

£10 million to fund an Institute
for Technology as part of the
Skills Hub at Furness College.
Furness College has applied
to be one of the eight Wave
Two Institutes who will share
£120m of capital investment.
This project aligns closely
with the development of the
Barrow Learning Quarter and
will further enable Barrow to
improve its higher education
and skills offer, tailoring digital
skills provision to local growth
sectors, including clean growth,
advanced manufacturing and
health and social care.

The A590 and A595 play
a critical role in connecting
Barrow-in-Furness and its
key industries to the wider
UK via the M6 and the major
nuclear sites in West Cumbria.
They also support the role
of Barrow-in-Furness as an
important regional centre and
in helping communities access
services and take advantage
of employment and training
opportunities within south and
west Cumbria.

Alongside these strategic
links; within the Town
Investment Plan, there is a
clear aspiration to promote
active and sustainable travel
modes, supporting this, it is
important that road networks
within Barrow have the
capacity to accommodate the
traffic impacts of investment
in the town. Supporting
the Barrow Local Plan, a
range of necessary junction
improvements have been
identified, these will provide
capacity needed to support
growth and it is important for
these to be delivered; while
developer contributions will
be important in this regard,
it is important for further
funding to be made available
by Government where gaps
emerge.

Agenda Item 7

Despite the important role of
these routes, they are affected
by significant reliability and
resilience challenges, with these
representing a significant barrier
to the success of Barrow-inFurness. Working closely with
local partners, Cumbria County
Council and Cumbria LEP have
proactively worked to promote
the importance of these routes
being enhanced; a need
recognised within Transport for
the North’s Strategic Transport
Plan. The upgrade of these
routes will directly support
the strategy within the Town
Investment Plan and it is
considered important for the
Government to support current
proposals to upgrade the
A595 at Grizebeck and along
its wider route. Alongside this,
it is considered important for
Highways England to develop
a programme of improvements
to transform the performance of
the A590.

The upgrade of these routes
will directly support the strategy
within the Town Investment
Plan and it is important for the
Government to support current
proposals to upgrade the A595
at Grizebeck and along its
wider route. Alongside this, it is
considered essential to develop
a programme of improvements,
including further dualling
which would transform the
performance of the A590 and
the ability of Barrow-in-Furness
to contribute to the wider
success of the UK economy.

Appendix 1
Page 71

92

This project aligns closely
with the Walking and Cycling
Infrastructure priority project,
as it will assist in Barrow
developing a modernised and
sustainable transport offer that
allows residents and visitors
to make sustainable transport
decisions. It also aligns closely
with the Housing Renewal
Programme, which is another
priority project aiming to
reposition Barrow’s economy
to one that is centred around
clean growth and energy
efficiency.

Institute for
Technology

93

5
Furness and Cumbrian Line
The Furness Line and
Cumbrian are central to the
connectivity of Barrow-inFurness seeing frequent trains
between the town, Lancaster
and Manchester together with
important links up the west
Coast to Carlisle. These links
are vital, however both routes
are affected by capacity and
line speed constraints. The
need for these to be improved
is reflected within Transport for
the North’s Strategic Transport
Plan.

Network Rail are currently
investigating upgrades to
the Cumbrian Coast Line and
building on this, it is important
for the Government to support
the upgrade of the line; likewise
it is important that Network
Rail to now start to explore
steps that can enhance journey
times on Furness Line and to
strengthen integration with the
West Coast Mainline.

Freeports
Cumbria LEP is currently
developing proposals for a
Cumbria Freeport proposal. It
is anticipated that the Barrow
Port is included as part of
this. As well as traditional
port activities it acts as a key
service port for the offshore
oil and gas sector and for the
national nuclear submarine
programme. The Waterfront
Business Park located adjacent
to the port has seen extensive
public investment, including
support from CLEP, and is now
fully available for development.

The Bay Prosperity &
Resilience Strategy
A Freeport within Cumbria
has the potential to directly
align to key sectoral strengths
and opportunities including
in advanced manufacturing
nuclear, wind, hydro and
oil and gas and even wave
energy. Reflecting this,
Government support for a
Freeport incorporating Barrow
is considered to be represent a
significant opportunity for both
Barrow-in-Furness and the
wider UK.

The three adjacent authorities
of Barrow, Lancaster and
South Lakeland comprise
a dynamic, functional
economic area with world
class assets. The authorities
have formed an Economic
Partnership, providing the key
strategic forum for economic
development issues in the
Morecambe Bay area. The
Strategy is framed around
eight themes for collaborative
working which will deliver
bigger, better and more
effective solutions. Our ask of
government is for a two-year
funding commitment to provide
capacity building resource to
develop collaborative projects
which will deliver productivity
gains and contribute more
effectively to the levelling up
agenda of UK government.

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 72

94

95

6

OUR APPROACH
TO DELIVERY

Town Deal Financial Profile
The following table illustrates the
proposed spend profile of the £29.9m
Towns Deal ask:

Our project asks of the Towns Fund can
be summarised as follows:
Table 6.1 Project Summary Asks

Table 6.2 Town Deal Spend Profile - Programme
Year 0

Project

Capital

Revenue

Total

Collaborative Asks

Barrow Learning
Quarter

£13.4m

£0m

£13.4

Institute of Technology

Community Wellbeing
Hubs & Earnse Bay
Outdoor Centre

£4.1m

£0.4m

£4.5m

Projects

Business Support

£0m

£1.0m

£1.0m

Programme
Management

Housing Market
Renewal

£4m

£0m

£4m

Marina Village

£1.0m

£0m

£1.0m

Homes England

Place Development

£0m

£1.0m

£1.0m

Future High Street
Fund

Local Walking &
Cycling Infrastructure

£4.5m

Programme
Management

£0m

£0.5m

£0.5m

Total

£27.0m

£2.9m

£29.9m

£4.5m

Electric Bus Town

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Year 5

Total

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
£1.0m
£0m

£11.1m
£0.1m

Based on the £29.9m Towns
Deal ask, the programme costs
are split:
• 90% capital
• 10% revenue

£0.1m

£5.8m
£0.1m

£0.9m
£0.1m

The committed and planned
additional funding leverage
across the programme
comprises a mix of private
sector, community and other
public sector sources. It
includes:
• £0.4m committed from
Barrow Borough Council
for the Housing Renewal
Programme.
• £4.4m committed internal
funds through asset sales,
reserves, revenue funding
repayments and loan
facility from University
of Cumbria for Barrow
Learning Quarter

£0.3m
£0.1m

£29.4m
£0.5m

£29.9m

• £2m proposed from
Cumbria LEP for Barrow
Learning Quarter
• Proposed Institute of
Technology match of
£1.1m for Barrow Learning
Quarter
• £2.5m proposed investment
from partners for Barrow
Learning Quarter
• £7.5m application to
Homes England for Marina
Village

Agenda Item 7

The overall costs of delivering
the projects that make up
our Town Investment Plan
are £50.9m, with the Town
Deal investment representing
an intervention rate of 58%.
This excludes the programme
management costs.

£10.2m

Appendix 1
Page 73

96

£0m

Year 1

• £3.6m proposed Cumbria
LEP and/or Barrow Borough
Council funding for Marina
Village.
97

6
Town Deal
Accelerator Funding

Business Case
Development Plan

Within the Government
response to COVID-19
Barrow has been provisionally
allocated an additional
£750,000 of funding to be
spent in 19/20. This funding
will be used for a number of
complementary investments
including acquisition of
key sites to support the
development of Marina Village,
revitalise and repurpose
key spaces in the town to
support Place Development
and aligned initiatives such
as Future High Streets, and
enhance Barrow’s outdoor
activity offer aligned to Place
Development and Community
Wellbeing Hubs and Earnse
Bay Outdoor Centre. These
investments will support
Covid-19 recovery and provide
a platform for Towns Deal
investment.

All Barrow Town Deal projects
have developed a Strategic
Outline Business Case (SOBC)
aligned to HM Treasury’s
Five Case Model which
strengthens the robustness
and deliverability of our Town
Investment Plan. Each project
has a Project Delivery Group,
with a designated project
lead organisation, responsible
for advancing business case
development and stakeholder
engagement to ensure the
project is robust, deliverable,
aligned to a clear case for
intervention and represents
good value for money.

• Underpinning studies
including market
assessments, feasibility,
cost assessment and
income projections
• Project designs
• Planning consents
• Stakeholder engagement
plans

• Monitoring and evaluation
plans.
We anticipate drawing on
the resources provided by
our Towns Fund Coordinator
to assist us in this process.
Independent appraisers
will complete a Green book
appraisal of the business
cases to provide the required
assurance, for review and
approval by the Town Deal
Board.
Once detailed business cases
have been developed and
approved, we will submit
a Town Deal Summary
Document to the Towns Hub
setting out:

• Agreed projects, including
BCRs
• Details of business case
assurance processes
followed for each project
• An update of actions taken
in relation to the Heads of
Terms key conditions and
requirements
• A delivery plan
• A monitoring and
evaluation plan
• Confirmation of funding
arrangements and financial
profiles for each project
• Confirmation of approvals
of planning applications
• Letters of approval from
the Town Deal Board and
Barrow Borough Council
The Plan Delivery Group
will provide oversight and
scrutiny of the business case
development phase.

Agenda Item 7

• Statutory requirements
such as State Aid,
Environmental Impact
Assessments, and
Equalities Impact
Assessments

• Delivery plans
(including procurement
and management
methodologies)

Appendix 1
Page 74

98

The projects agreed in the
Heads of Terms deal will swiftly
progress to Full Business
Cases. Each SOBC identifies
a business case development
plan establishing the support
required to develop the detail
required to finalise the business
case and draw down funding.
Areas for development include:

99

6
Key Milestones

Governance Structures

Our key milestones include:

Our approach is underpinned
by strong partnership working
and effective collaboration.
The Barrow Town Investment
Plan will be governed by the
Brilliant Barrow Board which
will evolve from the current
Town Deal Board and include
representation from the public,
private and Third sector. The
Brilliant Barrow Board will:

• Heads of Terms agreement
– October 2020
• Development and
Assurance of Full Business
Cases – November 2020 March 2021
• Draw down of Funding
for Accelerator Projects –
November 2020
• Submission of Town Deal
Summary – March 2021
• Full Implementation – April
2021 – March 2026.

• Agree strategic direction
and priorities
• Approve all Town Deal
activity
• Review progress
• Oversee evaluation activity
• Make recommendations to
the accountable body.

The Plan Delivery Group
will oversee the delivery of
the Town Deal projects and
advise the Town Deal Board
on progress. The Marketing
and Communications Group
will communicate progress to
the wider community through
the #Brilliant Barrow online
platform.
Project Delivery Groups will
oversee project level activity
and report on performance
to the PMO, the Plan Delivery
Group and Barrow Borough
Council as the accountable
body.
Figure 6.1 Governance Structure

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 75

100

The Brilliant Barrow Board will
be supported by the work of
the Major Projects Programme
Board. The role of the Major
Projects Programme Board is
to align activity between major
projects; it is intended that
this will maximise synergies
between projects and
complementary initiatives.

Barrow Borough Council, the
lead Council for the Town Deal,
will be the accountable body
for the Town Deal. Barrow
Borough Council will have
responsibility for managing
and administering funds on
behalf of the Town Deal Board,
reporting on performance,
and ensuring appropriate
governance and assurance
compliance. Building on the
positive partnership working
to date, Barrow Borough
Council propose to a Service
Level Agreement with Cumbria
County Council to support
the role of Barrow Borough
Council as accountable body
by providing a Programme
Management Office (PMO)
function.

101

6

6

Assurance and
Scrutiny Process

The Town Deal Board
will establish a robust
accountability and assurance
framework. It is proposed
that this will be implemented
through a Service Level
Agreement with Cumbria
County Council who are
highly experienced in financial
and project management
and providing accountable
body functions for central
government funding. This role
will include:
• Programme management
of the Town Deal funding
and co-ordination of
programme governance to
fulfil the Accountable Body
requirements
• Robust performance
management systems
against agreed KPIs

• Assurance checks on
accuracy and eligibility
on the use of Town Deal
funding by projects, through
the verification of monthly
or quarterly financial
returns and annual project
compliance checks
• Progress reports and
programme risk register
to highlight issues related
to the Town Deal’s
performance, including
monitoring, tracking and
achievements on a monthly
basis

• Implementation of any
changes in response to
performance issues and
lessons learnt
• Production of annual
accounts and responses to
audit requirements
• Due diligence checks
on project delivery
organisations in line with a
programme implementation
plan
• Development of tender
specifications and
procurement processes,
where project activity is to
be commissioned
• Oversee the evaluation
process (interim and final)
to consider the success of
the Town Deal in meeting
its objectives.

Agenda Item 7

102

• Progress Monitoring
Reports and collation of
information submitted
by each project to record
activity, achievement and
to explain variation from
expected profiles

• Quarterly Progress Reports
to be shared with the
Brilliant Barrow Board and
MHCLG to include output
and spend performance

Appendix 1
Page 76

• The preparation of
project-specific funding
agreements to ensure
projects are delivered

in a compliant manner,
consistent with approved
business cases and in
line with programme
requirements

103

7
Acknowledgements
The Brilliant Barrow Board thanks all contributors to the development
of our Brilliant Barrow Investment Plan, including our community,
public, private and third sector partners who contributed to the
identification of issues and opportunities and the generation of ideas
and actions. Particular thanks go to those who shared photographs
and positive thinking to bring our plan to life and to illustrate how
‘brilliant’ Barrow can be.

#BrilliantBarrow

Agenda Item 7

Appendix 1
Page 77

104

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1
Page 78

Produced on behalf of the
Borough of Barrow-in-Furness
by Hatch Regeneris
and Optimised
Environments.

Agenda Item 8
Page 79

PART ONE

Barrow Borough Council
Council
28th July 2020
Barrow FHSF Business Case Submission
Report from:

Steph Cordon, Director of People and Place

Report Author:

David Haughian, Programme Manager

Wards:

Central

1.0

Summary and Conclusions

Barrow’s Future High Street Fund proposal is an integral part of the long term economic
strategy for Barrow as articulated in the Town Investment Plan, but it is focused on the
town centre. It is about providing a great experience in our town centre by:





Opening our beautiful and iconic Town Hall to the public
Creating an exciting outdoor space in the Town Square for events and play
Improving the Market Hall
Improving access to these attractions and connecting them to the rest of the
town through better transport options

The vision of our £25m FHSF submission to central government is to:
Harness Barrow’s urban, historic character and waterfront to create a
vibrant centre for work, shopping, study, living, leisure and accessing
services for our residents, employees and visitors from the local area,
South Cumbria and beyond.
Our proposal is a high impact scheme that can transform accessibility, character and
attractiveness of the town centre and drive footfall to deliver lasting change.
This report asks that delegated authority be given to the Director of People and Place,
to submit a Business Case based on the proposal outlined in this report, to agree the
arrangements for the Council to be responsible for delivery of the Project, the provision
of co-funding as set out in the recommendations below.
2.0

Recommendation

It is recommended to Council:
1) To agree that delegated authority be given to the Director of People and Place,
in consultation with the Chief Executive, Director of Resources and Leader of the

Agenda Item 8
Page 80

2)

3)
4)
5)
6)

Council, to submit a Business Case for the Barrow Future High Street project
based on the proposal outlined in this report;
To agree that if the bid is successful that the Council provide up to £1m of cofunding to invest in the Barrow Future High Street Fund Project, with the funding
to be repaid from new income generation activities or reductions in existing
subsidies;
To agree that if the bid is successful that the Council agrees the inclusion of up
to £25m of project funding in the Capital Programme from 2020/2021;
I To agree that if the bid is successful that Barrow Borough Council would act as
the Accountable body for the funding;
To note that the £150,000 of grant funding to reach this stage of the business
case has been fully committed on consultancy services and has been
supplemented by the Major Projects Reserve £4,330; and
To authorise the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Director of Resources,
Leader and Chair of Executive Committee, to enter into a Grant Funding
Agreement with MHCLG.

3.0 Background and Proposals
Background to the Proposals
High streets and town centres lie at the heart of our communities and local economies.
However, the way that communities use their high streets and town centres is changing:
people are shopping more online, making fewer big shopping trips, shopping ‘little and
more often’, and combining shopping with leisure.
In 2019, Government sought expressions of interest from Local Authorities who could
benefit from funding to support the transformation of their high streets. Barrow Borough
Council submitted an expression of interest, and were identified as one of 100 towns
who were invited to bid for up to £25 million from Future High Street Funding (FHSF).
Government have sought Business Cases from each of the successful towns, with the
deadline for submission by the 31st July 2020.
The Objectives of Barrow FHSF
The vision for Barrow Town Centre is to harness Barrow’s urban, historic character and
waterfront to create a vibrant centre for work, shopping, study, living, leisure and
accessing services. Supporting our residents, businesses and visitors from the local
area, South Cumbria and beyond.
The primary strategic objectives of the Barrow FHSF are as follows:





Create a destination town centre that attracts people back into the town centre;
more people using and visiting more often, and staying for longer.
Boost civic pride and create a strong visual identity to the Town Centre
Create a high quality, attractive and impressive market space that serves local
businesses and attracts visitors
Re-establish the Town Hall as a cultural and civic focal point for Barrow, opening
its doors to the public and maximising it’s assets

Agenda Item 8
Page 81



Create an “Instagramable” attraction for Barrow – providing more reasons to visit
and making it easier for people to stay.
Creating safe and harder working spaces that encourage a diverse range of
people to use their town centre and which better connects people to existing
destinations and transport links.

Barrow FHSF Preferred Option
The preferred option for Barrow FHSF includes the following four components:

1. Barrow Market Hall - modernise the Market Hall to support existing stall
holders to thrive, attract new permanent and temporary stallholders, create
an incubator for businesses to test the potential of the town for their products,
broaden the offer to include more food and drink experiences, showcase
products made in Barrow, diversify uses and create an enhanced shopping
offer linked to our existing high street. This will be supported by an enhanced
pedestrian connection from Dalton Road and enhanced parking provision for
patrons of the car park.

Agenda Item 8
Page 82
Artists Impression of the Market Hall

2. Barrow Town Hall - establish the Town Hall as the first stop for visitors to
Barrow to learn about what’s going on in our town, about our history and our
future via a Tourist Information Centre and Exhibition Space. As part of the
commitment to improve service delivery for local residents this project will
also facilitate the creation of a public services hub.
3. Barrow Town Square - harness the attractive gardens and car park to the
rear of the Town Hall to create attractive new uses and activity at the heart of
the town, providing everyday recreation and leisure space and supporting an
extended calendar of events across the year attracting visitors, families and
tourists. The enhanced space will be integrated with the Forum and the
recently opened Holiday Inn Express and stimulate further investment in
surrounding vacant/underutilised buildings.

Agenda Item 8
Page 83
Possible Layout for Town Square

4. Central Transit Hub - create safe and harder working spaces to better
connect people to the civic, cultural and leisure quarter and our retail heart
through a package of improvements including new bus stops, wayfinding and
public realm improvements in Duke Street, Cavendish Street, Lawson Street
and Cavendish Street.

Project Financing
The current estimated cost of the preferred option in the Business Case is in the region
of £25m (including risk allowances). The cost estimate will be refined within the final
business case submitted to MHCLG on the 31st July 2020.
The recommended route to package up the Barrow FHSF project has been identified
following consideration of a number of procurement options. The assessment of
procurement options considered the suitability of each option in the context of the
delivery of a major project by Barrow Borough Council.
The Project funding contributions included in the Business Case to date is broken down
as follows:
Funding Stream
Future High Street Fund (MHCLG)
Barrow Borough Council

Funding contribution
Up to £25m
£1m

Agenda Item 8
Page 84
It is proposed that Barrow Borough Council provide up to £1m of cofunding to invest in
the Future High Street Fund project. Barrow Borough Council can expect to receive a
return on the investment through new income generation opportunities and reductions
in existing subsidies.
Project Delivery
The management case of the Business Case sets out the resources and governance
for the delivery of the project. An organogram illustrating the governance structure
within the Council to deal with major projects such as the Future High Street Fund can
be found below. This is broadly structured into two areas Decision Making and Delivery
and Partnership Arrangements. Decision making and delivery for Barrow Borough
Council is achieved through a committee structure for members and officers with Full
Council sitting above Executive Committee supported by Management Team and Major
Projects Advisory Board. The Corporate Management Team comprises the Chief
Executive, as chair, with Director of Resources, Director of People & Place, Assistant
Director of Community Services and Assistant Director of Housing.

The commercial case will set out the procurement strategy for delivery, together with
the commercial arrangements for the management and operation of the Market and
Town Hall. For works delivered by Barrow Borough Council it is proposed that the next
stage of design (RIBA 3) will be undertaken by a consultant-architect team. They will be
procured by Barrow Borough Council through Cumbria County Council’s Professional
Services Framework. BBC will procure a consultant and main contractor to undertake
design and build (D&B) for all of RIBA Stage 4 and construction of the scheme. This will
be through an existing framework (such as the County Council’s Capital Schemes
Framework) or OJEU Restricted Procedure, to appoint a consultant and contractor to

Agenda Item 8
Page 85
provide detailed technical designs and to construct the scheme using an NEC contract.
The consultant will also be responsible for producing the construction preparation
documentation.
In terms of a delivery strategy, Barrow Borough Council would lead on the delivery of
the Town Hall and Indoor Market refurbishment. It is proposed that Cumbria County
Council deliver the highway and public realm elements of the project, including the town
square. These works will be delivered through an established framework or via OJEU if
required.
4.0

Consultation

As part of the development of the project, Barrow Borough Council held two
consultations to share information and to find out what local residents felt should be the
focus of Barrow’s FHSF Bid. The first consultation period ran from 13th – 31st January
2020 and a public drop in session was held in the town centre on Saturday 18th January
2020. In addition to the public consultation a series of workshops were held with
stakeholders, businesses and members.
The initial consultation focussed on gaining views on the following questions:
1.
2.
3.
4.

What 3 things do you like about Barrow Town Centre?
What 3 things would you like to change about Barrow Town Centre?
Which area within Barrow Town Centre do you think attention should be
focused?
How would you like to be able to describe Barrow in 10 years’ time?

Over 700 responses were received from a range of age groups with 80% of
respondents living in a LA13 or LA14 postcode area i.e. within Barrow Town.
The second consultation period ran from 24th February – 6th March 2020 and a public
drop in session was held in the town centre on Wednesday 26th February 2020.
Based on the responses from the first consultation the Council developed the proposals
and identified the following potential projects to take forward which formed the basis of
the second consultation:
•
•
•
•

Barrow Market
Barrow Town Hall
Barrow Civic Space
Barrow Accessibility

Almost 100 responses were received. In terms of the people who responded there was
an almost even split by gender, with 47% living in Barrow and 41% working in Barrow,
73% of those living in Barrow lived in LA13 and LA14 postcode areas and there was a
balance across age groups, with the highest number aged between 25-49.

Agenda Item 8
Page 86
In summary a total of 800 responses were received over 2 surveys, with overwhelming
positive comments and support for the four identified projects. In addition a number of
stakeholder workshops were used to gain insight from businesses and organisations
with an interest in the Town Centre and also with council officers and elected members.
If Barrow Borough Council are successful in securing this funding, the project team will
prepare a detailed communication plan for the project, which will set out the timeframe
for when partners and local businesses/residents will be consulted. This will be done
prior to any intrusive surveys, during the RIBA 3 design process and prior/during the
formal planning process.
Executive Committee are to consider the report and recommendations at its meeting on
27 July and Council will be updated on any matters arising from the meeting.
5.0

Alternative Options

Option (a) Submit the Business Case without or with reduced Barrow Borough
Council funding contribution



Do not approve the use of £1m of funding to cofund the project
Agree to submission of an OBC for the Barrow FHSF Project to MHCLG
and ask for the total funding required to deliver the project.

Alternative Option (b) Amend the scope of the projects currently included within
the Business Case
 Amend the OBC and project scope in order that the project can proceed.
This would lead to delays in submission of the business case and an
extension from MHCLG would need to be sought. Furthermore, further
public consultation would be required as the current scope of work has
been consulted upon.
Alternative Option (c) Do not submit the OBC to MHCLG
 Do not submit a Business Case to MHCLG. Do not deliver any
improvements to the indoor Market, Town Hall or Public realm.
6.0

Contribution to Council Plan Priorities

This project primarily supports Priority 2 and 3 of the Barrow Council Plan, creating a
vibrant, safe and welcoming place where people want to live and supporting the
economy to thrive. The Future High Street Fund Project will support the creation of a
vibrant centre for work, shopping, study, living, leisure and accessing services,
supporting our residents, employees and visitors from the local area, South Cumbria
and beyond. The project will increase footfall and customer spend in the town centre,
supporting the local economy.

Agenda Item 8
Page 87
7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
The Council’s co-funding invested in the Barrow Future High Street Fund Project, will
need to be repaid from new income generation activities or reductions in existing
subsidies as a result of the Project. If the co-funding is new borrowing, these costs will
need to be covered by the financial benefits of the Project in order to minimise any
financial impact on the General Fund.
The Market Hall is financially subsidised by the Council; reducing that subsidy could
release funding to cover the costs of borrowing for the FHSF project.
Changes to the use of the Town Hall will impact the current funding arrangements
where the Housing Revenue Account contributes to the costs of the building based on
floor space occupied. The income generated from different uses may offset any of
these losses.
No FSHF project expenditure will be incurred before the grant is secured.
The £150,000 of grant funding to reach this stage of the business case has been fully
committed on consultancy services and has been supplemented by the Major Projects
Reserve £4,330.
It will be necessary to address internal capacity to ensure that the accountable body
responsibilities can be fulfilled.
Legal
A review of Market Tenancy arrangements will be required to support the changes to
the Market Hall and further consultations will be carried out with the market tenants as
the bid progresses.
State aid advice has been sought on the details within the proposed funding bid. The
primary grant between central government and the Council for the purposes of FHSF
will not qualify as state aid as it is initially an intra-state transfer. State aid may only
arise when the Council would divert some or all of the funding towards economic
activities, either through itself or to a third party. There is a potential for State Aid with
regards to some of the proposals which may be rendered lawful if justified under a block
exemption. The advice will be kept under review as the proposals are developed.
If successful there will be a need for further procurement to support the delivery of the
bid which will be subject to the Council’s usual contract procedural rules and any
legislative requirements.
If successful in securing Future High Street Funds the Council will be required to enter
into a grant funding agreement with MHCLG, the content and implications of which are
unknown at this stage. Advice will be required prior to entering into such an agreement.

Agenda Item 8
Page 88
Equality and Diversity
Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – The project is currently at
concept design stage (RIBA 2). The project has been developed to date on the basis
that it will make the Market, Town Hall and surrounding public realm more accessible
for all. As the project progresses into RIBA 3 and 4, it will be necessary to engage
further with special interest groups and undertake a full equality impact assessment on
each sub scheme.
Risk
There are a number of risks that will need to be addressed. These are summarised
below and will be kept under review as the project develops:
Risk

Risk Description

Securing
consents

There is a risk that
the Council fails to
secure necessary
planning/highway
consents to deliver
the project.

Program
me delays

There is a risk that
programme delays
will delay project
completion and
increase project
costs

Likelihood
(1-5)
1

Impact
(1-5)
5

Score Proposed Mitigation

2

5

10

5

Early engagement
with representatives
from Historic
England, Barrow
Borough Council and
the Highway
Authority, local
businesses and the
public have been
held during the
project development
progress. This will
continue as the
designs are
developed.
A detailed project
programme has been
included in the
business case based
on best available
information and
including risk
allowances for
delays. A dedicated
programme manager
will be responsible for
delivering the project
and will be
responsible for
managing the
programme and
budget.

Agenda Item 8
Page 89
Cost over
run

There is a risk that
unforeseen
events/programme
delays will increase
project costs that
Barrow Borough
Council will need to
manage.

2

4

8

Partner
support
for the
project

Key stakeholders are 1
not supportive of the
preferred project
option

4

4

Covid 19

The full impact of
COVID-19 on the
market place and
supply chain is yet to
be understood.
Suppliers may cease

4

8

2

The cost estimate for
includes risk
allowances to provide
adequate
contingency.
A verification check of
the cost estimate has
been undertaken to
ensure that sufficient
budget has been
allocated to the
project.
If costs increase
during project
development/constru
ction, a value
engineering exercise
will be undertaken to
bring the cost down.
A dedicated
programme manager
will be responsible for
delivering the project
and will be
responsible for
managing the
programme and
budget.
The key stakeholders
in the project have
provided letters of
support for the
project. The Major
Projects Board has
reviewed and signed
off the business case.
The project has been
through 2 rounds of
formal consultation
and there has been
partner and Member
workshops prior to
RIBA 2 design freeze.
Work on the ground
is unlikely to start
until early 2021.
Appropriate risk
assessment and
method statements

Agenda Item 8
Page 90
trading, pushing up
the cost of services.
Social distancing
may create
challenges in
undertaking surveys
and site visits.

will be prepared to
ensure project
activities can
progress within social
distancing
restrictions.

Barrow
BC
funding
contributio
n not
recovered

If the projected
income and cost
savings are not
realised, revenue
savings would need
to be identified to
cover the shortfall.

2

5

10

Barrow
BC do not
have
sufficient
capacity
and
resources
to
deliver/op
erate the
scheme

Barrow Borough
Council do not have
sufficient staffing
resources to deliver
operate the scheme,
thus risking the
delivery of the
project outcomes.

1

5

5

Contact Officers
David Haughian, david.haughian@cumbria.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
Summary Sheet of FHSF Projects

Cushman and
Wakefield have
produced revenue
projections which
indicate that the costs
of borrowing can be
covered from the
scheme. At RIBA 3
design stage it will be
possible to undertake
further analysis and
identify additional
income generation
opportunities.
Barrow Borough
Council have
included project
management fees in
the cost estimate to
ensure that there are
sufficient resources
available to provide
project management
support. Additional
staffing resources to
operate and manage
the scheme have
been considered in
the revenue
projections within the
business case.

FUTURE HIGH
STREET PROJECTS

Improve bus, walking
and cycling movement
around the town,
creating better mobile
connectivity

Creation of new leisure
and civic space to hold
events and play-space
on land south of the
Town Hall

Barrow
Town Hall

Barrow
Market

Agenda Item 8

Barrow Civic
Space

Appendix 1
Page 91

Barrow
Accessibility

We have developed the
following four projects which
meet the requirements of the
Future High Street Fund, and
respond to feedback from the
consultation.

Improvements to the
Open up to allow more
public access including market to make it better
for stall holders and
possible Tourist
shoppers with better
Information Centre, café,
connections between
Public Sector Hub
the Market, Dalton Road
and Portland Walk.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Page 93

PART ONE

Barrow Borough Council
Full Council
28th July 2020
Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020-2025
Report from:

Janice Sharp – Assistant Director of Housing

Report Author:

Caroline Wagstaff – Operations Manager

Wards:

All

1.0

Summary and Conclusions
The Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy – Appendix 1 to the
Executive Committee report - sets out the Council’s position with regard to
preventing homelessness, securing sufficient accommodation for people who are
or may become homeless and securing support for people who are homeless.
This report seeks incorporation of the Strategy into the Council’s Policy
Framework.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Council:
(1) Approve the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020-2025
for inclusion into the Council’s Policy Framework; and
(2) That the Strategy be incorporated into the Council’s Policy
Framework.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

The Homelessness Act 2002 places a duty on local authorities to carry out a
review of all forms of homelessness in their district area and to formulate and
publish a homelessness strategy based on the results of the review.

3.2

Attached to this report is a copy of the report which went to Executive Committee
on 27 July 2020.

3.3

Executive Committee approved the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy
at its meeting and recommended to Council that it forms part of the Council’s
Policy Framework and included in Article 4 of the Constitution.

Agenda Item 9
Page 94
4.0

Consultation

4.1

Consultation was carried out as detailed within the Executive Report.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

Members could choose not to incorporate the Strategy into the Policy
Framework, but the Strategy is considered to be important for the Council to
adopt within its Policy Framework.

6.0

Contribution to Council Plan Priorities

6.1

The proposed Strategy will assist the Council in meeting the priority ‘Enabling
residents to live happy, healthy productive lives’.

7.0

Implications

7.1

Financial, Resources and Procurement

7.1.1 The Strategy review will be undertaken within existing budgets.
7.2

Legal

7.2.1 The reviewed Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy is in line with current
legislation including:



Homelessness Reduction Act 2017
Homelessness Act 2002

7.2.2 Under the Equality Act 2010, the Council has a duty to ensure that any policies it
adopts do not directly or indirectly discriminate against any particular groups of
people. The Council has undertaken an equality impact assessment to ensure
that the policy is fair to all customers and to demonstrate that the Council has
discharged its public sector equality duty in this respect.
7.3

Equality and Diversity

7.3.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out as part of the
Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy review and the strategy amended to
reflect this.
Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

The current Strategy does not
meet statutory requirements due
to changes in legislation.

The Council could be
open for legal challenge.

Approval of the
Homelessness & Rough
Sleeping Strategy 20202025.

Contact Officers
Report Author – Caroline Wagstaff, Operations Manager Tel: 01229 876310

Agenda Item 9
Page 95
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Copy of Report and appendix to Executive Committee on 27 July
2020 - Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020 - 2025

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document Where it is available
Barrow Borough Council –
Homelessness Review 2020

Council’s website:
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/councilhousing/homelessness/

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1
Page 97

PART ONE

Barrow Borough Council
Executive Committee
27th July, 2020
Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020-2025
Report from:

Janice Sharp – Assistant Director of Housing

Report Author:

Caroline Wagstaff – Operations Manager

Wards:

All

1.0

Summary and Conclusions
Approval of the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy – Appendix 1 - will
set out the Council’s position with regard to preventing homelessness, securing
sufficient accommodation for people who are or may become homeless and
securing support for people who are homeless.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Executive Committee:
(1) Note the content of the report;
(2) Approve the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020–2025 and
Action Plan;
(3) Recommend to Council that the Strategy be incorporated into the
Council’s Policy Framework.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

The Homelessness Act 2002 places a duty on local authorities to carry out a
review of all forms of homelessness in their district area and to formulate and
publish a homelessness strategy based on the results of the review.

3.2

In conducting a review of homelessness and to formulate a new strategy, local
authorities need to take account of the additional duties introduced in the
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 and are encouraged to take the opportunity
to involve all relevant partners in developing a strategy that involves them in
identification and intervention to prevent homelessness.

3.3

Under section 3(1) of the Homelessness Act, a homelessness strategy means a
strategy for:

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1
Page 98




3.4

preventing homelessness in the district
ensuring sufficient accommodation is and will be available for people in the
district who are or may become homeless; and
securing the satisfactory provision of support for people who are or may
become homeless or who have been homeless and need support to prevent
them becoming homeless again.

Barrow Borough Council Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy has been
formulated following a review of homelessness and housing needs data. The
number of approaches for housing advice, prevention and relief each year is
consistently around 525 people.
Over 50% of homelessness results from only two reasons:



Friends or Family can no longer accommodate (26%)
End of Assured Shorthold Tenancy (25%). Around one third of ASTs ended
because the landlord wished to sell the property.

3.5

Barrow Borough Council’s successful outcomes for Prevention and Relief duty
were 71.2% and 65.4% respectively, which is favorable against the national
average of 57.5% and 42.1%. Barrow also performed very well against regional
figures of 59.3% and 44.1%.

3.6

More than 70% of applications following the Homeless Reduction Act have been
single applicants without children. This is significant in terms of availability of
one-bedroom accommodation; additionally this group is also likely to have
multiple complex needs.

3.7

Around one in two applicants disclosed a mental health problem or a history of
mental health issues; one in four people disclosed an offending history and one
in four applicants had a history of repeat homelessness often applicants disclose
these needs alongside each other.

3.8

The Strategy aims to meet the requirements of the Homeless Reduction Act and
identifies a number of challenges apparent in Barrow-in-Furness:






Increasingly, people are presenting as statutory homeless due to an assured
short hold tenancy ending. Domestic abuse and friends and family no longer
being able to accommodate are also significant reasons why people become
homeless in Barrow.
Deprivation and associated poverty/low incomes are key barriers for
accessing housing and maintaining stable and financially sustainable
tenancy. Access to employment is a key mechanism for preventing
homelessness.
Poor financial management and failure to maximize
household income also limits people’s ability to access and sustain housing.
Increasing difficulties experienced by people under 35 years to secure
affordable, independent accommodation – particularly for low income and
unemployed young people. Whilst there is a relatively good supply of

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1
Page 99
accommodation of this type, it is often not affordable for this group. People
who are subjected to benefit restrictions face additional difficulties
3.9

The Strategy recognises the work that has taken place to prevent homelessness
by the Homelessness Advice and Housing Options Team and other partner
agencies which needs to be developed further and broadened to include all
client groups.

3.10

The Strategy states the vision for the service as being
“To prevent homelessness and meet the housing needs of vulnerable
households through the provision of high quality and accessible accommodation
Support, information and advice”
The key priorities are aligned to the requirements of the Homelessness
Reduction Act and have been identified as:







To ensure people are well informed of their housing options.
To prevent people from becoming homeless.
To assist people as soon as possible if they do become homeless so their
homelessness can be relieved by securing sufficient accommodation and
support.
To support people to recover from their experience and maintain their
accommodation so that they do not become homeless again.
To enable people to secure homes they can afford and maintain.

3.11

The Strategy outlines the work already undertaken to achieve these priorities
and the further work that is required. The Homeless Strategy Action Plan is
provided at Appendix 1 and details the actions needed to achieve the Key
Priorities. The Strategy and Action Plan will be monitored annually to ensure
that our outcomes meet local needs and government policy. These annual
reviews will be carried out with the relevant partner agencies.

3.12

The Strategy covers a five-year period and will run until end of 2025. In order to
ensure that it continues to be relevant and up to date, additional actions may be
developed and implemented and existing actions changed or updated following a
review.

3.13

Executive Committee is recommended to approve the strategy and to
recommend to full Council that it forms part of the Council’s Policy Framework.

4.0

Consultation

4.1

Consultation has been held with key stakeholders across the Borough. A
consultation day was held with statutory and non-statutory organisations and
service users to provide feedback to identify improvements to the policy and
formulate the key priorities.

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1
Page 100
4.2

There was a positive response to the consultation day which provided a rich
source of data, opinions and views from a wide range of statutory and nonstatutory agencies and service users.
The comments below were received following the consultation process:
“I came to Barrow earlier this year on the brink of death due to my 13
month relapse. My intention was to return to The Well where I had been
previously. I was street homeless with nowhere to go. I was given
emergency accommodation on Ormsgill in Barrow from the local Council.
I was also issued with a mobile phone to make and keep contact with
various organisations.
I was accepted back into The Well where I have been since 29th April of
this year and making steady progress and clean from all substances.
“The help and support I received from the Council was greatly received.
The support they gave me was a stepping stone to my return to The
Well, without this I don't know where and if I would be where I am today.”
‘CC’, service user
“So good today (consultation event) to share with others the challenges
we face together combating homelessness and the most appropriate
ways to support those facing this frightening issue.
“Thanks to those who set up this gathering, real hope felt that by
acknowledging the issue we can work together to help support people
through their own individual crisis.
“Left the gathering feeling a sense of positivity that we, as a group, cared
enough to listen and take in each other’s perspective on working towards
a more holistic, joined-up approach.”
Lt. Martin Davison, The Salvation Army in Barrow
"As a local landlord, I have been pleased to work with the Council's
Homeless Department to find accommodation for a number of
individuals. The individuals have always been very grateful for the
support they have received from the department, and I value that support
too.
“It is sad that so many people find themselves in this situation, but
speaking to individual officers in the Homeless Department, has given
me the confidence to take on individuals that would otherwise be of a
much higher risk to me. Being able to facilitate a tenancy for someone
who has nothing, is quite an achievement and the Council can be rightly
proud of that achievement.”
Martin Fowler, local landlord

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1
Page 101
4.3

The Equality Impact Assessment has been reviewed and updated as part of this
policy review.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

Members could choose not to recommend approval of the Homelessness and
Rough Sleeping Strategy or request additional or substantive changes. This is
not recommended as the updates recommended will provide a clearer strategy
and one which is responding to legislative changes.

6.0

Contribution to Council Plan Priorities

6.1

The proposed Strategy will assist the Council in meeting the priority ‘Enabling
residents to live happy, healthy productive lives’.

7.0

Implications

7.1

Financial, Resources and Procurement

7.1.1 The Strategy review will be undertaken within existing budgets.
7.2

Legal

7.2.1 The reviewed Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy is in line with current
legislation including:



Homelessness Reduction Act 2017
Homelessness Act 2002

7.2.2 Under the Equality Act 2010, the Council has a duty to ensure that any policies it
adopts do not directly or indirectly discriminate against any particular groups of
people. The Council has undertaken an equality impact assessment to ensure
that the policy is fair to all customers and to demonstrate that the Council has
discharged its public sector equality duty in this respect.
7.3

Equality and Diversity

7.3.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out as part of the
Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy review and the strategy amended to
reflect this.
Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

The current Strategy does not
meet statutory requirements due
to changes in legislation.

The Council could be
open for legal challenge.

Approval of the
Homelessness & Rough
Sleeping Strategy 20202025.

Contact Officers

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1
Page 102
Report Author – Caroline Wagstaff, Operations Manager Tel: 01229 876310

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020 - 2025

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document Where it is available
Barrow Borough Council –
Homelessness Review 2020

Council’s website:
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/councilhousing/homelessness/

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2
Page 103

Barrow Borough Council’s

Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy

2020-2025

Our vision is to prevent homelessness and meet the
housing support needs of vulnerable households through
the provision of high-quality and accessible
accommodation, support, information and advice.

Barrow Borough Council Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
2020-2025
Agenda
Item

Appendix 2
Page 104

Contents


Foreword

3



Introduction

4



Achievements so Far

5



Other Initiatives

6



Key Findings

7



Rough Sleeping

8



Domestic Abuse

10



The Bigger Picture

13



Covid-19 No Return to Business as Usual

14



Key Priorities & Objectives

15

Appendix A: Action Plan

(i)

Page 2 of 19

9

Barrow Borough Council Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
2020-2025
Agenda
Item

Appendix 2
Page 105

Foreword
Welcome to Barrow Borough Council’s new Homelessness and Rough
Sleeping Strategy which sets out the Council’s priorities for tackling
homelessness and rough sleeping over the next five years.
The prevention of homelessness continues to be a key priority for Barrow Borough Council and its
partners. We recognise the negative impacts homelessness has upon the health and wellbeing of
affected households who are often trapped in cycles of deprivation. Homelessness is a complex issue
with multiple causes requiring flexible solutions.
This strategy sets out how the Council, alongside its partners, intends to meet the challenge of
preventing homelessness over the next five years, ensuring support is available to help people avoid
being without a home and sustain their existing living accommodation. The strategy builds on the
strengths of the previous strategy and contributes towards the strategic objectives within Barrow
Borough Council’s Corporate Plan; in particular, to work effectively with partners to address current
and future housing needs and achieve our vision ‘for our Borough to be a great place to live, work and
visit’.
Preventing homelessness has always been a key priority by using a variety of prevention tools; we will
continually strive to identify new prevention initiatives which will help to address homelessness in our
Borough. We recognise homelessness is a cross cutting issue which cannot be tackled by one agency in
isolation. Barrow Borough Council has a proven history of working in partnership to tackle
homelessness. This includes working with statutory and voluntary agencies, housing related support
providers, Citizens Advice for all matters relating to budgeting and benefits and Women’s Community
Matters for specialist domestic abuse support.
Barrow Borough Council has worked in partnership with key local stakeholders throughout the
development of the shared priorities and key actions included within this strategy. Our focus is on
preventing people from becoming homeless, supporting those who are homeless to build a more
positive future in good health, sustainable accommodation and offering pathways into employment
and financial inclusion. To achieve this we will continue to collaboratively work with our key partners.
Thank you to all the partners who have contributed to this document.

Cllr Kevin Hamilton – Chair Housing Management Forum

Page 3 of 19

9

Barrow Borough Council Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
2020-2025
Agenda
Item

Appendix 2
Page 106

Introduction
Barrow Borough Council’s Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020–2025 introduces a fresh
approach to tackling homelessness within our borough and incorporates the requirements of the
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017. It provides the necessary framework for effective partnership
working and for the delivery of efficiently managed and co-ordinated advice, housing and support
services for people who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless.
This strategy will set the agenda, enabling us to continue to meet the needs of people of the Borough
and to eliminate the threat of homelessness from their lives. It sets out the actions we will take,
remaining consistent in our approach to improve access to housing, supporting vulnerable people and
minimising rough sleeping continues to be our priorities.
The strategy outlines:





The challenges faced by our Borough in preventing homelessness
How we developed this strategy
What our priorities will be
How we will achieve our priorities

We are committed to continual development and responding appropriately to changing demands and
needs locally. This document will be reviewed yearly with completed priorities removed, new
legislation changes added and progress acknowledged.
It is essential we do not work in isolation to meet the needs of people who may have multiple complex
needs which extend beyond the basic need for a home. We need to ensure we can offer the
appropriate advice and support enabling all homeless households including those who need extra help
to find and sustain suitable accommodation. Partnership working can really help assist with preventing
homelessness and offer housing options which are sustainable. It is recognised that homelessness is
not always the key issue that a person or family are facing and we are committed to resolving the
associated socioeconomic challenges by engaging with our partners to assist us in giving the best
outcome we can for everyone. This strategy should be seen as a multi-agency document focused on
prevention work.
The strategy underpins Barrow Borough Council’s strategic aims to meet the Borough’s housing needs
and builds on the success of the previous strategy.

Page 4 of 19

9

Barrow Borough Council Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
2020-2025
Agenda
Item

Appendix 2
Page 107

Achievements So Far
All key priorities outlined in our previous strategy were achieved and include:

Priority Area

Objectives Achieved

Increase accessibility of the
private rented sector

 Extensive preparation and provision to applicant’s information via
leaflets and other media on relevant topics such as local support,
S21 and the S8 process, Private Sector Landlords Directory.
 Contact made with all existing along with any prospective
landlords that have shown interest in being included within the
Private Sector Landlords booklet.
 Creation of a specialist ‘Housing Solutions Officer’ has been
employed within the Homelessness Team, providing specialist
liaison with the private sector and assisting applicants to move on.
 Funding allocated for deposits and first month’s rent for eligible
applicants. (Prevention Fund).

Major factor influencing
homelessness is relationship
breakdown

 Homelessness officers regularly conduct mediation support to
prevent worsening situations and to ensure full awareness of next
steps is known. Appropriate advice given and sign posting to
relevant support agencies made. Marital law considered and
explained. Provision for emergency accommodation if
appropriate.

Debt and financial hardship
are increasingly prevalent
issues affecting homeless
households

 Funding Citizens Advice Barrow to carry out specialist debt advice
surgery appointments on a weekly basis to address debt
issues/mortgage advice/money management.

Domestic abuse continues to
be a factor in homelessness
and those approaching for
advice and assistance

 Partnership created with Women’s Community Matters (WCM) to
provide outreach specialist support to homeless applicants.
Funding secured from MCHLG.
 Pilot Project: The Council in partnership with WCM identified two
units of accommodation to enhance support specifically for
victims of domestic abuse and their families – Sanctuary Project.

Improve working with young
people aged 16 & 17 to ensure
a more consistent approach
that best supports the young
person

 Young Person’s Protocol established in partnership with Social
Care and local partners e.g. Project John.

Prevent and reduce further
rough sleeping

 Implemented the provision of emergency accommodation
arrangements for severe weather (SWEP).
 Commitment to No Second Night Out (NSNO) county-wide.
 Conducted rough sleepers count annually.
 Assisted households through homelessness prevention grant with
rent in advance and deposits.

Page 5 of 19

9

Barrow Borough Council Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
2020-2025
Agenda
Item

Appendix 2
Page 108

Other Initiatives
Priority Area

Objectives Achieved

Training – Homelessness
Reduction Act

 We have invested in our colleagues through the use of external and
internal trainers, providing their expertise to our officers so that they
can understand and interpret the changes of the Act and be effective
in successfully preventing and ending homelessness for their cases.

IT Resources

 We have invested in a new Homelessness Case Management
Software (CMS) system. This system is intuitive and assists the
officers to ensure a succinct workflow process within the Homeless
Team, mitigating the impact of the additional administration brought
about by the HRA 2017. Its interactive qualities promote the
officer/client relationship to enable joint responsibility for finding
solutions effectively.
 We have been able to use this new system in order to produce
detailed Personal Housing Plans, a new requirement of the HRA 2017,
which are user friendly and provide the applicant with the resources
and information they need in order to help themselves work to a
successful outcome.

Triage Processes

 Barrow Borough Council has enabled an easy self-referral process
which ensures those presenting as homeless on the same day are
given advice immediately as to what steps can be taken to assist their
situation or prevent it from escalating. This is accessible digitally, and
in person at the Town Hall during normal working hours, for non
emergency referrals the system can also be accessed at all other
times whilst an out-of-hours line is manned at all times by
experienced officers.

Interim Accommodation
Support Officer

 The majority of clients who access emergency accommodation with
Barrow Borough Council are either complex, multiple needs single
people or complex families. In order to ensure they are supported
towards successful outcomes, we have invested in an officer to assist
them whilst they are in emergency accommodation. This also ensures
that this accommodation is utilised efficiently and is available when
needed for others, reducing our need to use any bed and breakfast.

Page 6 of 19

9

Barrow Borough Council Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
2020-2025
Agenda
Item

Appendix 2
Page 109

Key Findings
The 2020 Homelessness Review is available in full at www.barrowbc.gov.uk, including local and
national trends, performance statistics and feedback from partners.
As part of the review process in line with best practice, Barrow Borough Council examined the
following local context data for this strategy:


Economy and population statistics.



Strategic Housing Market Assessment.



Comparative house prices



Reasons for homelessness



Which cohorts may be more likely to be homeless or risk of being homeless. For example,
young people in need, care leavers and those with community care needs.



Homelessness casework records and other local sources of data.



The range of factors that may affect future levels of homelessness.

Trend patterns, current and future demand were determined, including housing and support
resources available, ensuring the future strategic priorities set are based on realistic assumptions as to
how they will be delivered in practice and collectively owned by all stakeholders within the district.

The Main Findings included:


The number of approaches for housing advice, prevention and relief each year is consistently
around 525 people.



Over 50% of homelessness results from only two reasons:
 Friends or Family can no longer accommodate (26%);
 End of Assured Shorthold Tenancy (25%). Around one third of ASTs ended because the
landlord wished to sell the property.



Successful outcomes for Prevention and Relief duty were 71.2% and 65.4% respectively, which
is favourable against the national average of 57.5% and 42.1%. Barrow also performed very
well against regional figures of 59.3% and 44.1%.



Main Duty acceptances currently stand at 29.2% post HRA 2017, which is significantly lower
than the national average of 58.8%.



More than 70% of applications following the HRA have been single applicants without
children. This is significant in terms of availability of one-bedroom accommodation,
Additionally this group are also likely to have multiple complex needs.



Around one in two applicants disclosed a mental health problem or a history of mental health
issues; one in four people disclosed an offending history and one in four applicants had a
history of repeat homelessness. Often applicants disclose these needs alongside each other.

Page 7 of 19

9

Barrow Borough Council Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
2020-2025
Agenda
Item

Appendix 2
Page 110

Rough Sleeping
The most recent official rough sleeper estimate was carried out on 13th November 2019. The verified
figure was 3 which, although a relatively low number, did represent a 300% increase for the Borough
based on the 2018 figure of 0. The three years preceding were 2017: 0, 2016: 4 and 2015: 4. Local
intelligence was gathered from a variety of local sources including Cumbria Police, The Salvation Army,
Churches Together, Unity and Furness Homeless Support Group. The count was verified by Homeless
Link

Comments from Barrow Borough Council’s Rough Sleeper Co-ordinator
Rough Sleeper Co-ordinators (RSC) were funded under the Rough Sleeper Initiative, their role
primarily a data-gathering research post aimed at identifying the causes of individuals rough
sleeping and any gaps in service provision impacting on those individuals rough sleeping in our
communities. In addition to examine how services supporting rough sleepers operate and
interact RSC’s aim to examine individuals’ experiences to determine the types of services that
might be best placed to support them. Meeting with rough sleepers and listening to their
experiences, coordinating services around them and suggesting new approaches.
The RSC’s overall aim is to contribute to planning service delivery at a county level, taking into
account that Cumbria is a diverse county. To this end a number of key issues were identified by
the districts and each RSC was given responsibility for researching one of them. As RSC for South
Lakes and Barrow I was tasked to research prison release. This piece of work aims to examine
Through the Gate Services and Resettlement services, prisons application of the duty to refer and
the unique problems experienced by individuals who are homeless on release. Research has been
somewhat hampered by the Coronavirus outbreak as services are put under pressure by this
crisis, however it is planned that this research will still be completed by the end of the project.
Problems with hospital discharge were also raised by the Homelessness team and I have
conducted research into this issue in Barrow, my colleague in the North area is tasked with
working on this key issue at a county level.
Barrow has very small numbers of rough sleepers and these are split between those who arrive in
Barrow from out of area. Under the HRAct this cohort would be advised of their options and
either assisted financially to be reconnected to their own Local Authority or if deemed to be in
priority need accommodated temporarily and then referred back to their Local Authority
formerly. The second category is those who are unable to maintain accommodation due to their
complex and multiple needs. Those who fall into the second category often have associated drug
and alcohol issues and are hard to engage. In research with organisations working with rough
sleepers most expressed that rough sleepers are relatively rare in Barrow but there is a much
larger population of ‘sofa-surfers’ in the area. BBC has responded to this identified cohort and
through recent bids for funding from MCHLG they have secured additional funds to create a
‘Housing First Model’ to address the needs of this group.
Having looked into services in Barrow the community is well-served by a variety of statutory and
non-statutory organisations and the community is generous and supportive towards those in
need with charitable groups being well supported by volunteering and donations. The
community based charitable groups work well together and are generally aware of services to
signpost to. Sometimes there are misconceptions about statutory services.

Page 8 of 19

9

Barrow Borough Council Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
2020-2025
Agenda
Item

Appendix 2
Page 111
As the Rough Sleeper Co-ordinator it has been possible to improve the knowledge of this sector
so they understand that Homelessness Services work to the MCHLG code of guidance; which does
not always meet the expectations of the non statutory agencies. Most organisations felt they
would benefit from being better informed about other services in the area, referral processes etc.
Therefore, I developed a service directory for people working with rough sleepers and will be
sharing this with appropriate services via the Homeless Department at Barrow Borough Council.
Coronavirus has impacted on the work the RSCs are able to do as services are closed to the public
and busy managing their clients through the crisis. It has also given us a unique opportunity to
examine our statutory and non-statutory services capacity to be responsive to the changing
needs of our communities. The RSC continue to seek to connect with and support rough sleepers
and are engaged in writing and coordinating move-on plans for those that are being temporarily
accommodated.
We are continuing our research where possible, talking to services and individuals and examining
models of support that may prove useful. As the lockdown lifts the RSC will continue to work with
the districts and local services to monitor rough-sleeping and ensure support is coordinated
around individuals that require it.

Page 9 of 19

9

Barrow Borough Council Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
2020-2025
Agenda
Item

Appendix 2
Page 112

Domestic Abuse
Barrow Borough Council is committed to assisting victims of abuse and has developed a successful
working partnership with Women’s Community Matters (WCM) to facilitate this and ensure anyone
suffering domestic abuse is given the specialist support they need so that they can navigate their way
towards an abuse-free environment.

Rebecca Robson, Senior Officer at Women’s Community Matters reports:
Over the last six years, Women’s Community Matters has continued to develop its offer to
victims and survivors of domestic abuse. Barrow Borough Council has played a significant role in
the development of services for victims and survivors of domestic abuse in our community, as
well as for those experiencing other forms of abuse and vulnerability.
There are a number of strands to our work supporting victims/survivors of abuse and Barrow
Borough Council Housing Service is an integral part of each of them.
#ibelieveyou is the overarching name for all our support for women who have, or are
experiencing domestic abuse. The name of the project is significant for women who come to us
for support, as well as for referring agencies who tell us that it makes a difference. Women
know they will be believed and that can help give them the confidence to speak out for the first
time. Two women who accessed support from this project have spoken at events and delivered
training to police officers in Barrow. Officers praised the bravery of the women, with one saying
it was the best training he had ever attended and that it would significantly impact on his
professional practice in the future. One of these women received support from Barrow Borough
Council’s Housing Service alongside the support she received from WCM. She is now in full time
employment and supporting other victims and survivors of abuse. Her positive experiences of
partnership working not only helped her family, but are serving as an example to others and
helping create trusting relationships between vulnerable families, third sector organisations and
the public sector.
We offer a range of activities and support to enable women and girls who have, who are, or are
at risk of, experiencing domestic abuse. This support helps victims/survivors to:


Access crisis support and advice, including that relating to housing



Access practical support



Access ongoing emotional support



Recover in a safe environment supported by people who understand and who care



Be less susceptible to re-victimisation



Reduce their risk



Identify the things they are good at and the things they enjoy



Best support their children



Make positive choices about their future



Access specialist support they or their family might need

Page 10 of 19

9

Barrow Borough Council Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
2020-2025
Agenda
Item

Appendix 2
Page 113
A Crisis and Prevention Worker who is based within the centre, and who works closely with
Barrow Borough Council Housing Service and other housing departments and councils across the
county, specifically supports women and their families who are homeless or at risk of
homelessness due to domestic abuse.
We have specially trained workers who understand domestic abuse and its effects and have
knowledge of the extra support and advice available from a range of other organisations women
may need. They offer support, care and kindness as women seek to rebuild their lives, make
changes, or find their own peace and understanding. We work closely with Barrow Borough
Council Housing Service on this project which has developed over the last six years and is now
integrated into the support offered by the Housing Service to those in temporary
accommodation.
The one-to-one practical and emotional support is supplemented by access to the Centre’s
Clothes Bank which offers a range of clothes, small household items, toiletries and treats which
are all donated by the community and organised and cared for by volunteers. There are also a
number of courses and groups available, some of which address domestic abuse directly; others
which have a greater focus on self-esteem; and some which are about developing social
connections.
The Butterfly Group runs for six sessions and offers a safe space for women to discuss their
experiences; to access professional input on the effects of domestic abuse, including on children;
and to benefit from the support of other women with similar experiences. Women are supported
to regain their sense of self-worth, self-love and self-esteem which enables the women to make
positive life choices and to make changes in their own lives.
The My Relationships & Me course enables participants to explore their relationships and the
impact they have; to identify healthy relations; to consider the role we play in our relationships;
communication; and the future.
Beautiful Women & Beautiful Me are two six-week courses aimed at supporting women to
develop their confidence and self-esteem. Women who have been in abusive relationships find
they can rediscover their sense of self which is fundamental to making positive choices and
changes.
There are a range of other groups and activities including Cooking Together, Mindfulness,
Introduction to Maths, Knit and Natter, Art Group, and Drop-in sessions. These are all
opportunities for social connection and help women move on in their lives. There are a range of
opportunities for women to become involved in community action projects, to plan events and
celebrations, to become volunteers and peer mentors, and to become the staff and trustees of
the future.
Cumbria Domestic Abuse Champions’ Network is delivered by Women’s Community Matters.
The network was re-launched in Cumbria in 2018 and Barrow Borough Council Housing Service
has always been a member, supporter, and key driver of the partnership. The network offers
training and ongoing information and support to those in the community who support victims of
domestic and sexual abuse. In 2018-19, 310 different people attended the network training and
there were 314 attendances at network meetings around the county. In 2020, Barrow Borough
Council Housing Service enabled the network to apply for additional funding to allow it to
continue.

Page 11 of 19

9

Barrow Borough Council Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
2020-2025
Agenda
Item

Appendix 2
Page 114
In 2019-20, 566 different women received support for domestic abuse.
For the years 2020-25 we anticipate the following numbers taking into account the expected
increases we expected over the next two years related to Covid-19:

Number of different
women

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

792

792

650

650

650

Page 12 of 19

9

Barrow Borough Council Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
2020-2025
Agenda
Item

Appendix 2
Page 115

The Bigger Picture
National Policy and our Local Response
Nationally, homelessness is increasing. Research into the causes of homelessness has identified a
number of factors, some which relate to the wider state of the economy, the effects of Covid-19 and
the housing market, and others which are personal to the individual family.
Personal factors which trigger homelessness include relationship breakdown, mental health and
addiction issues, discharge from prison and leaving care system. The immediate causes of
homelessness have remained fairly consistent over the years. The circumstances in which families
become homeless tend to differ from those of single homeless individuals with the latter experiencing
more chaotic lifestyles.
There are a number of challenges particularly apparent in Barrow-in-Furness:


Increasingly, people are presenting as statutory homeless due to an assured shorthold tenancy
ending. Domestic abuse and friends and family no longer being able to accommodate are also
significant reasons why people become homeless in Barrow.



Deprivation and associated poverty/low incomes are key barriers for accessing housing and
maintaining stable and financially sustainable tenancies. Access to employment is a key
mechanism for preventing homelessness. Poor financial management and failure to maximise
household income also limits people’s ability to access and sustain housing.



Increasing difficulties experienced by people under 35 years to secure affordable, independent
accommodation – particularly for low income and unemployed young people. Whilst there is a
relatively good supply of accommodation of this type, it is often not affordable for this group, with
people who are subjected to benefit restrictions facing affordability difficulties.

As part of the review, relevant strategic documents have been evaluated and key actions incorporated
to ensure effectiveness and success of resources and appropriate partnerships.

Where we want to be: Our challenge, vision and priorities
Our homelessness challenge is to ensure there is sufficient support and accommodation options
available of the right type, in the right place and good quality which people can afford to live in.

Our collective vision for homelessness is:
To prevent homelessness and to meet the housing support needs of vulnerable households through
the provision of high-quality, accessible accommodation, support, information and advice.
We are strongly committed to our vision, whilst being realistic about the challenges we face in trying
to achieve this. We know we will not be able to solve all of the issues overnight, but we can make sure
as a partnership we move towards achieving our vision over the next five years.

Page 13 of 19

9

Barrow Borough Council Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
2020-2025
Agenda
Item

Appendix 2
Page 116

Covid-19 No Return to Business as Usual
Faced with a problem we could never have imagined when we started to formulate our new strategy;
Covid-19 has required the Homeless Service to refocus and respond to all the difficulties associated
with it. We have always had a can-do approach to our work and have adapted quickly, resourcefully
and innovatively to respond to this unprecedented crisis.
Nationally, it has been reported that large numbers of rough sleepers have been brought in off the
streets, entrenched in their lifestyle, often without hope and unable to secure any safe, affordable
stable accommodation. The response has seen over 90% of rough sleepers being offered
accommodation and what came with it was an opportunity ‘not to return to business as usual’
therefore capturing the opportunity for positive change. We wait to see what the Government’s
directive will be in dealing with the ongoing need for accommodation for this group of people, and
they will be ‘setting out their stall’ with the announcement of funding and help to meet the extra costs
associated with ‘keeping everyone in for good’ in the forthcoming weeks and months.
Locally, we are indeed very fortunate in not having a large rough sleeper population. Although we saw
a rise in estimates for 2019, our returns over the last four years have never been higher than four. We
do however, have a sofa surfing culture in the area which has caused some increase in the need for
assistance during the pandemic, together with hospital discharges needed to free up bed spaces to
deal with the virus and prison discharges, all of which had to be accommodated to prevent the
imminence of rough sleeping. We have been able to meet this demand by re-purposing some of our
own housing stock to provide basic accommodation, and we have continued to work with these
applicants to try and move them into more secure accommodation throughout this difficult and
challenging time.
We also recognise that this is a real opportunity to change individual’s lives through the unexpected
and will continue to deliver effective solutions at a local level through collaboration, partnerships,
working with other statutory and non-statutory agencies to ensure we do all we can to promote the
chance for change and sustain positive outcomes.
The key messages we will promote are:




Getting people in
Care and protect
Help and support

We will continue to consider equality and diversity in all that we do to meet the demands of Covid-19
reviewing working practices in order to adapt our delivery of service ensuring we are meeting the
needs of our customers and our employees.

Page 14 of 19

9

Barrow Borough Council Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
2020-2025
Agenda
Item

Appendix 2
Page 117

Key Priorities and Objectives
Our Vision is:
To prevent homelessness and meet the housing support needs of vulnerable
households through the provision of high quality and accessible accommodation,
support, information and advice.

Key Priorities
Following consultation with our stakeholders and an analysis of local needs by reviewing our
homelessness data and having regard to the impact of external factors such as the effects of Covid-19,
employment opportunities and the welfare benefit reforms, the key priorities have been identified as:



Ensure people are well informed about their housing options



Prevent people from becoming homeless



Assist people as soon as possible if they do become homeless so that their homelessness can be
relieved by securing sufficient accommodation and support



Support people to recover from their experience and maintain their accommodation so they do
not become homeless again



Enable people to secure homes that they can afford and maintain

Priorities and Objectives 2020-2025
Priority 1: Ensure people are well informed about their housing options
Objectives


To raise awareness and promote the homelessness and housing options service with the public
and partner agencies



To ensure there is easy access to high quality information about the services provided and where
to get help



To improve customer service, involvement and satisfaction

Priority 2: Prevent people from becoming homeless as early as possible
Objectives


To further develop and improve the prevention tools to assist households in different situations
and to meet local need



To actively support, promote and develop partnership networks to ensure a coordinated and multi
agency approach to homelessness prevention



To develop strong protocols for multi-agency working to support and appropriately refer
individuals and families at risk.

Page 15 of 19

9

Barrow Borough Council Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
2020-2025
Agenda
Item



Appendix 2
Page 118
To design and implement early and targeted interventions for groups identified as higher risk of
homelessness.

Priority 3: Assist people as soon as possible if they do become homeless so
that homelessness can be relieved by securing sufficient
accommodation and support
Objectives


To review systems and processes to ensure the Homelessness Reduction Act requirements are
fully implemented



Strengthen partnerships with local housing related support providers and other organisations who
provide accommodation and support to homeless persons



Review temporary accommodation provision and ensure it is adequate to meet local need



Reinforce commitments to minimise the use of bed and breakfast provision particularly for
families with children and maintain zero usage for 16-17 year olds

Priority 4: Support people to recover from their experience and stay out of
homelessness
Objectives


To review the effectiveness of the tenancy sustainment service provided by the Council and
ensure those most at risk of becoming homeless or losing their accommodation are assisted



To maximise referrals to housing related support providers to assist people to sustain their
accommodation and receive the support they require



To develop financial inclusion/money management support in conjunction with ensuring a
coordinated approach to offering advice on housing benefit, debt and welfare benefit – CAB
Surgery.

Priority 5:

Enable people to secure homes they can afford and maintain

Objectives


To ensure adequate provision of housing to meet housing need in the Borough to include
more supported housing and consider work around the affordable housing strategy.



To review and monitor the Council’s Allocation Scheme Cumbria Choice to ensure best use of
stock and that social housing properties are let to those most in need



To develop work with private landlords and initiatives that will improve access to the private
rented market locally



To ensure those ready to move on from supported accommodation can do so in a timely way

Meeting the overall aims and objectives of the Strategy and the delivery of key actions will lead to
service improvements for customers.
The voluntary sector plays a key role in providing housing-related information and advice, for example
the Citizens Advice Bureau and Age Concern. The Council will continue to work with the voluntary
sector as part of its homeless prevention work. The Council fund CAB to carry out a surgery within the
Housing Service to assist vulnerable clients. Moving forward from the pandemic the Council will work

Page 16 of 19

9

Barrow Borough Council Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy
2020-2025
Agenda
Item

Appendix 2
Page 119
with Community Hubs and CAB to consider how non-statutory agencies are key to playing an integral
part in the overall pathway to better outcomes. We will build on robust links to provide ongoing
support for vulnerable clients to prevent homelessness.

Delivery of the Strategy
It is difficult to assess the full impact of Covid-19. It is possible there will be increasing numbers of
people who are homeless or threatened with homelessness. This will impact on the level of resources
required to meet this demand and deliver effective services.
We are experiencing an increasing complexity in the support needs amongst homeless people. This
also impacts on the resources needed to manage these cases and requires continued effective work
with partners to highlight the need for housing-related support.
Any changes to the homelessness prevention grant which funds many of the homeless prevention
initiatives would be a risk to the delivery of the Strategy. However, we are not aware of any reductions
to the government grants currently received.
The risks also include the current uncertainty with the economic climate together with Universal
Credit, failing tenancies and demand for social housing.

Monitoring and Reviewing
The actions detailed throughout the Strategy have been complied into a detailed Action Plan (see
Appendix A). The Strategy and Action Plan will be monitored and reviewed annually to ensure the
outcomes meet local need and government policy. These reviews will be carried out in partnership
with the agencies that have assisted in the development of the Strategy and Action Plan. The first
annual review will be completed in September 2021.
This Strategy covers a five-year period and will run until end of 2025. In order to ensure the continued
relevance of the Strategy and Action Plan over the five years, additional actions may be developed and
implemented and existing actions changed or updated in line with legislation or operating practices.

Page 17 of 19

9

Agenda Item 9

Appendix A

Appendix 2
Page 120

Barrow Borough Council’s
Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020-2025

Action Plan 2020-2025
Key Priority

Objectives

Strategic Aims

By
When

Lead
Officer

1

To raise awareness and
promote the Homelessness and
Housing Options Service with
the public and partner agencies.

Attend team meetings and other
networks to promote the work of the
Homelessness Housing Options
Service.

Ongoing

Operations
Manager/
Lead SAO

To ensure there is easy access
to high quality information
about the services provided and
where to get help.

Continue to develop information on
the website and leaflets available.

September
2021

Operations
Manager/
Lead SAO

To improve customer service,
involvement and satisfaction.

Develop mechanisms for obtaining
feedback from customers.

September
2021

Operations
Manager/
Lead SAO

To further develop and improve
the prevention tools to assist
households in different
situations to meet local need.

Develop prevention tools to ensure
they are robust and accessible.

Initial
review by
September
2021

Operations
Manager/
Lead SAO

To actively support, promote
and develop partnership
networks to ensure a co
ordinated and multi agency
approach to homelessness
prevention.

Linked to promotion of the service
with all partners, develop and promote
coordinated and multi-agency
approach to achieve buy in by all
agencies.

Ongoing

Operations
Manager/Lead
SAO

To develop strong protocols for
multi-agency working to
support and appropriately refer
individuals and families.

Review referral arrangements to
support agencies that may assist to
prevent homelessness.

Ongoing

Lead SAO

To develop ‘Housing First
Model’ – creating dedicated
support and accommodation
for complex needs vulnerable
cases.

Develop unique scheme for clients
with complex needs who would find it
difficult to sustain a tenancy in generic
housing.

June 20

Operations
Manager/Lead
SAO

Ensure people
are well
informed about
their housing
options

2
Prevent people
from becoming
homeless as
early as
possible

This includes access to Discretionary
Housing Payments, the availability of a
prevention fund, rent deposits, home
visits, joint working and access to
specialist advice services ie, CAB.

This will include partnership working
with District Homelessness Teams –
strategic Homelessness Group.

(i)

September
2020

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 2
Page 121

Key Priority

Objectives

Strategic Aims

By
When

Lead
Officer

3

Continually review systems and
processes to ensure Homelessness
Reduction Act requirements are
fully implemented.

Review what accommodation we have
available to ensure we can achieve the
relief duty for all eligible households.

Ongoing

Operations
Manager/Lead
SAO

Strengthen partnerships with local
housing support providers and
other organisations which provide
accommodation and support to
homeless clients.

Review local provision to ensure
robust referral and move-on
arrangements are in place. Consider
how support services provided could
be developed further.

Ongoing

Operations
Manager/Lead
SAO

To continue to review the
effectiveness of tenancy
sustainment service and ensure
clients at most risk of becoming
homeless or losing accommodation
are assisted.

Review effectiveness of tenancy
sustainment service.

Ongoing

Lead SAO

To maximise referrals to housingrelated support providers to assist
people to sustain their accommodation and receive the support
they require.

Encourage referrals to providers and
monitor outcomes.

Ongoing

Lead SAO/
Homelessness
Team

To develop financial inclusion/
money management service. Coordinated approach to offering
advice on housing benefit, debt
and welfare advice – CAB Surgery
within Housing weekly
appointments.

To ensure there are initiatives in place
to help support homeless clients or
those at threat of becoming homeless.

Ongoing

Operations
Manager/Lead
SAO

To engage with the implementation of the reviewed Council’s
Allocation Policy – Cumbria Choice
to ensure best use of stock –
homeless clients are banded
appropriately.

Monitor the newly reviewed Allocation
Policy and engage with operational
working groups to ensure transparent
and fair allocations.

Ongoing new policy
& IT platform due
to go live
March '21

Operations
Manager/Lead
SAO

To develop work with private
landlords and initiatives that will
improve access to the private
rented market locally.

Look at resource and future posts
within the homelessness team

September
2021

Operations
Manager/Lead
SAO

To ensure those ready for move on
from supported accommodation
can do so in a timely manner.

Continue to engage in the multi
agency partnerships with support
providers to facilitate this.

Ongoing

Lead SAO /
Homelessness
Team

To assist all homeless clients who
have accessed temporary
accommodation during Covid-19 to
move onto secure accommodation.

Continue to engage with private sector
landlords and support providers to
secure the most appropriate
accommodation.

Ongoing

Operations
Manager/Lead
SAO

Assist people as
soon possible if
they become
homeless so that
homelessness
can be relieved
by securing
sufficient
accommodation
and support

4
Support people
to recover from
their
experience and
stay out of
homelessness

5
Enable people
to secure
homes they can
afford to
maintain

(ii)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
Page 123

PART ONE

Barrow Borough Council
Full Council
28th July 2020
Business and Planning Act 2020
Report from:

Debbie Storr, Head of Legal and Governance
(Monitoring Officer)

Report Author:

Jane Holden, Principal Legal Officer

Wards:

All

1.0

Summary and Conclusions

1.1

The Business and Planning Act 2020 (”the Act”) was introduced on [20th July
2020] and has introduced a streamlined process which allows a licence holder,
such as restaurants, cafes and bars, to place removable furniture such as tables
and chairs on the paved highway adjacent to their premises. The measures
support businesses to operate safely whilst maintaining social distancing
measures and facilitate much needed income generation cheaply and quickly.

1.2

District authorities are responsible for receiving and processing licence
applications and may charge an application fee for doing so. A licence can be
granted for up to a year but not beyond 30th September 2021. The functions
need to be appropriately delegated to allow applications to be made, determined
and enforced effectively and efficiently.

1.3

Executive Committee considered a report from the Council’s Monitoring Officer
at their meeting which was held on 27th July 2020 with the following
recommendations to Council:-

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Council accept the recommendations of the
Executive Committee to:1. Delegate authority to the Licensing Regulatory Committee
responsibility for all matters in relation to pavement licences, not
otherwise delegated to Officers, under the Planning and Business Act
2020;

Page 1 of 5

Agenda Item 10
Page 124
2. Establish an internal review process where a licence has been refused
or revoked or granted subject to conditions with which the applicant
disagrees, giving the applicant the chance to make written and /or oral
representations to a sub-committee of the Licensing Regulatory
Committee.
3. Delegate authority to the Public Protection Manager to determine
applications for pavement licences; to include setting the duration of
the licence and attach such conditions as they consider reasonably
necessary and to take any necessary action in relation to the
enforcement and revocation of the licence.
3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

Pavement Licence

3.2

The Business and Planning Act 2020 (“the Act”) was introduced to parliament on
29th June 2020 and came into force on [20th July 2020]. The Act contains
measures intended by the Government to assist businesses and communities to
recover from economic dislocations caused by the coronavirus pandemic.
Among these is a fast track procedure for pavement licences.

3.3

A pavement licence is a licence which allows a business to place removable
furniture (for example, tables and chairs, heaters) on certain highways (for
example, pavements) adjacent to their premises for use by the business to sell
and serve food or drink, and for their customers to consume it.

3.4

Full Council is asked to confirm the formal delegation of the functions to the
Licensing Regulatory Committee and Public Protection Manager into the
Constitution.

3.5

Application Process & Fee

3.6

An application for a licence must be made electronically and include a fee set by
the Council. Officers have undertaken a fee calculation using methodology from
previous fee setting. The outturn figures were; New Licence: £168, Renewal
Licence: £152. However the Act prescribes a maximum fee of £100.

3.7

The streamlined process provides for a seven-day consultation period starting
the day after an application is received. During the consultation period, the
business must display a notice outside the premises, and the Council must
publish the application and invite representations on it.

3.8

The Council must make a decision on the application within seven days after the
end of the consultation period. If it fails to do so, the application is deemed to be
granted as made.

Page 2 of 5

Agenda Item 10
Page 125
3.9

Determination Criteria for Applications

3.10

The Council must take into account any representations which it has received
during the consultation period when deciding whether to grant an application. It
must also consult the highway authority and such other persons as it considers
appropriate. The Council must refuse the application if granting it would prevent
access to the highway for highway users, as described in the act.

3.11

An application which is granted or deemed to have been granted will be subject
to four categories of condition. These are: mandatory condition; whose wording is set out in the act, designed to
preserve access for highway users;
 bespoke conditions; tailored by the Council to the particular application
(not applicable if the licence is deemed to have been granted);
 standard conditions: published by the Council, unless inconsistent with
any bespoke condition;
 national conditions: published by the Secretary of State, unless
inconsistent with a bespoke condition or standard condition.

3.12

Appeal Rights

3.13

There is no statutory right of appeal against decisions to refuse a licence or place
conditions on one. The Council could, if it wished, introduce an internal review
procedure.

4.

Use of Emergency Powers and Delegations

4.1

Licensing matters other than those covered by the Licensing Act 2003 and the
Gambling Act 2005 normally fall within the remit of the Licensing Regulatory
Committee with powers to decide on individual applications being delegated to
the Public Protection Manager where appropriate. As the Business and Planning
Act 2020 is entirely new legislation there is no existing scheme of delegation.

4.2

The Business and Planning Act 2020, which came into force on [20th July 2020],
has not allowed for time to put the appropriate delegations in place. The
emergency powers approved by Full Council 16th June 2020 (minute no.11(vi)):‘To agree to further delegate the following decision-making powers to the Chief
Executive, Directors and Heads of Service in consultation with the Leader/Chair
of the relevant Committee:“Powers to take any decision on behalf of the Council, not otherwise delegated,
which can lawfully be delegated to Officers, subject to the decision taker, before
taking the decision, having taken appropriate steps to consult the Leader and/or
Chair and if appropriate members of the Committee which would, save for this
delegated power, have taken the decision”.’

Page 3 of 5

Agenda Item 10
Page 126
are being utilised until formal delegation can occur.
4.3

Accordingly, Members are asked to add all matters relating to the Act to the
terms of reference of the Licensing Regulatory Committee with onward
delegation to Officers as detailed in the recommendations.

4.4

The timescales prescribed under the Act for applications to be processed make it
impossible for a committee to determine the applications. Members are therefore
asked to delegate the determination of applications under the Business and
Planning Act 2020 to the Public Protection Manager and for this delegation to
include setting the duration of the licence and attach such conditions as they
consider reasonably necessary and to take any necessary action in relation to
the enforcement and revocation of the licence.

5.

Appeals

5.1

Members are asked if they wish to put in place a procedure for an internal review
of determinations made under the act. It is recommended that any applicant
whose licence application is refused or revoked, or is granted subject to
conditions with which they disagree, be given the chance to make written and /or
oral representations to a sub-committee of the Licensing Regulatory Committee.

6.0

Consultation
This is a legislation led process. No formal consultation has taken place by
Barrow Borough Council.
Any feedback from the Executive Committee will be fed into the meeting.

7.0

Alternative Options

7.1

The requirements of the legislation place restrictions around the options
available to the Council and the recommendations in the report enable the most
efficient and effective way of dealing with the new requirements in a timely
manner.

8.0

Contribution to Council Plan Priorities

8.1

This licence process primarily supports Priority 2 and 3 of the Barrow Council
Plan, creating a vibrant, safe and welcoming place where people want to live and
supporting the economy to thrive. The new streamlined pavement licence
process supports the economy by enabling licence holders to open safely
thereby increasing the footfall and customer spend in the town centre, supporting
the local economy.

9.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
9.1

Applications will be processed by existing staff.

Page 4 of 5

Agenda Item 10
Page 127
Legal
9.2

The Business and Planning Act 2020 has been brought into force with extreme
speed and has not allowed for the time to put the appropriate delegations in
place. The emergency powers approved by Full Council 16th June 2020, Minute
No.11 (vi) have been utilised until formal delegation can be put in place.

Equality and Diversity
9.3

The report has no direct Equality and Diversity implications however Equality and
Diversity considerations will need to take place on each application for example,
consideration for the impact on the visual impaired.

Contact Officers
Jane Holden, Principal Legal Officer: jmholden@barrowbc.gov.uk
Debbie Storr, Head of Legal & Governance: dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
None
Background Documents Available
Name of Background
document
1.
Business and
Planning Bill:
Explanatory notes

Where it is available

2.

House of Commons
Library briefing
paper: Business and
Planning Bill 2019-2

https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/researchbriefings/cbp-8947/

3.

Pavement Licences:
Draft Guidance

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/pavementlicences-draft-guidance

https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/bills/cbill/5801/0148/en/200148en.pdf

Page 5 of 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
Page 129

PART ONE

Barrow Borough Council
Full Council
28th July 2020
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report
Report from:

Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Report Author:

Corporate Support Manager

Wards:

All wards may be impacted

1.0

Summary and Conclusions

1.1

Provide Members with the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Annual Report.

2.0

Recommendation
Members are invited to consider the annual report and recommend that the
Chair presents it to the next Council meeting.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

The Council has one Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the remit to;
investigate, scrutinise, monitor, oversee and comment on service delivery
mechanisms, policy implementation, or any other issue affecting the Borough or
its residents provided that they have previously been considered by either the
Executive Committee or Council.
Membership of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 2019/20:
Councillors McLeavy (Chairman)
Cassidy (Vice-Chairman)
Gawne
Husband
McClure
McEwan
Mooney
Morgan
Pidduck
Robson
C Thomson
Worthington

Agenda Item 11
Page 130
Members had previously agreed to develop a four year work programme (2019-2023)
and identified topics for review in the previous year are presented in Table 1.
The Committee recognises that additional urgent items may be identified during the
period and they are demonstrated below in an appropriate timeframe.
Table 1
Item

Topic

Scope of the review

1

Street Cleansing

To review the procedures in place with
the Streetcare Team to deliver a high
standard of street cleanliness.

2

Revenues and Benefits
Performance

To review the customer service data
figures compared within each quarter.

3

Members Training

To review the Council’s members
training procedures to ensure fairness
and improved communication.

4

Corporate Parenting

To review the Council’s responsibility
with regard to Looked After Children in
the Borough.

Waste
A work group reviewed policies, procedures and performance information relating to
the waste and recycling service. The main output from this review was that the
Partnership Board meetings with FCC Environment have been re-established and the
two parties are now having constructive dialogue. Operational meetings have now
been re-established and there have been some improvement to service delivery
including fly-tip removal and container delivery.
Revenues and Benefits Performance
The full transfer of the Revenues and Benefits service, from outsourced to in-house, is
still progressing. The future provision for the Revenues and Benefits systems is still
outstanding and external administration support will continue until March 2021. In
addition there was a shortfall in the number of staff that were expected to transfer to
the Council and there has been an on-going recruitment programme to fill these
vacancies.
Despite this the Council is making the anticipated savings and is continuing to deliver
the service.
The transfer has been a significant challenge for the officers and staff involved and it is
difficult at this stage to get a full, or completely accurate, picture of the impact of the
transfer on service delivery. Therefore, we suggest a ‘light touch’ review over the next
eighteen months by way of a written report to Overview and Scrutiny every six months.

Agenda Item 11
Page 131
Members Training
A full review was carried out to review members training. The review ensured there
has been a continuous effort to improve. To conclude the review, Cllr Morgan provided
the Committee with a table to monitor the efforts of the Member Learning Programme.
The current state of this remains ‘Good’.
Corporate Parenting
An in-depth review of Corporate Parenting was undertaken by a separate group to the
Committee with Cllr Morgan leading the review.
Work Plan
Members were invited to agree the work plan for the upcoming year to form part of the
annual report.
Members proposed a number of potential items and agreed that these should be
considered by the Chair and Vice Chair of this Committee.
The following reviews were proposed and Members were supportive that this was an
appropriate work programme. This will form an agenda item at the next meeting of the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee:
Street Cleansing
This review was started last year and should continue because there is scope for
improving service delivery. The review should include:
Transparency of the street cleaning schedule.
Developing clear policies around side waste, bulky waste collections, fly-tipping, litter
bin provision.
Although not part of the street cleansing contract we need transparency around the
removal of abandoned vehicles which can have a significant impact on the amenity of
the street.
Key priority – Place
Impact of Covid going forward
We acknowledge that the impact of dealing with the impact of Coronavirus – Covid 19
has been an unprecedented challenge to the Council and other organisations. It is
clear that going forward we will be delivering a lot of services in a different way.
Scrutiny should have an overview of the way we manage these changes to ensure the
impact on local people is considered and the changes are implemented and
communicated as best we can.

Agenda Item 11
Page 132
The review should include:Understanding our response and what we have learnt and applying this going forward.
Sharing best practice across the Borough is essential to ensure we maximise the
benefits of our initiatives.
Ensuring that Officers and Members are equipped to operate onsite and offsite and
that equipment can be upgraded remotely with a minimum amount of disruption.
Ensuring that the Council is clear about its role and this is transparent to other
organisations and to residents.
The impact that different ways of working by industry, retail and hospitality may have
on the economic future of the Borough.
Key Priority- Prosperity.
External and internal communications
The need for clear and timely communications has never been so important. We need
to ensure that we build on the improved communications delivered by an external
provider and integrate that into improving communication of everything we do.
Key Priority – People.
Outside bodies
The Council allocates resource to offering representation on a significant outside
bodies. There is poor understanding of the benefits of Council being represented on
some these bodies. Members would like to rationalise the list so that Member
representation is meaningful.
Key Priority – People.
Member training
Continues to build on the outcomes from the Member training review to ensure that
Members have the skill to carry out their role and meet the needs of residents.
Key Priority – People.
4.0

Consultation
We do not need undertake a consultation.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

Not applicable

Agenda Item 11
Page 133
6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

All priorities.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1.1 There aren’t any implications
Legal
7.1.2 There aren’t any implications
Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.1.3 There aren’t any implications
Equality and Diversity
7.1.4 There aren’t any implications
Risk
Risk

Consequence

N/A

Controls required
.

Risk

Consequence

Controls required

N/A

Contact Officers
Corporate Support Manager jpenfold@barrowbc.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete
section
Appendix No.
Name of Appendix
1

None

2
Background Documents Available
Name of Background document Where it is available
1
2

Add links where possible

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12
Page 135

COUNCIL
Date of Meeting:

28th July, 2020

Reporting Officer:

Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
(Reports of the meetings held on 23rd June and 14th July, 2020
Recommendations:
There were no recommendations referred to Council from the meetings held on
23rd June and 14th July, 2020.
Delegated Decisions
The matters determined by the Planning Committee in exercise of the powers
which have been delegated to the Committee will be detailed in the Minutes of
the meetings noted above reproduced in Volume 1 2020/2021 of the printed
Minutes.
Background Papers
Nil

Agenda Item 12
Page 136

COUNCIL
Date of Meeting:

28th July, 2020

Reporting Officer:

Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE
(Report of the meetings held on 25th June and 23rd July, 2020)
Recommendations:
The meeting to be held on 25th June, 2020 had been cancelled.
If necessary an addendum to this report will deal with any recommendations from
the Licensing Regulatory Committee to be held on 23rd July, 2020.
Delegated Decisions
The matters determined by the Licensing Regulatory Committee in exercise of
the powers which have been delegated to the Committee will be detailed in the
Minutes of the meetings noted above reproduced in Volume 1 2020/2021 of the
printed Minutes.
Background Papers
Nil

Agenda Item 12
Page 137

COUNCIL
Date of Meeting:

28th July, 2020

Reporting Officer:

Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE
(Reports of the meetings held on 25th June and 23rd July, 2020)
Recommendations:
The meetings to be held on 25th June and 23rd July, 2020 had been cancelled.

Agenda Item 12
Page 138

COUNCIL
Date of Meeting:

28th July, 2020

Reporting Officer:

Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
(Reports of the meetings held on 8th July and 27th July, 2020
Recommendations:
There were no recommendations referred to Council from the meeting held on
8th July, 2020.
If necessary an addendum to this report will deal with any recommendations from
the Executive Committee to be held on 27th July, 2020.
Delegated Decisions
The matters determined by the Executive Committee in exercise of the powers
which have been delegated to the Committee will be detailed in the Minutes of
the meetings noted above reproduced in Volume 1 (2020/2021).
Background Papers
Nil

Agenda Item 12
Page 139

COUNCIL
Date of Meeting:

28th July, 2020

Reporting Officer:

Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
(Report of the meeting held on 9th July, 2020)
Recommendations:
Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 9th July, 2020
(See Agenda Item 11)

1.0

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2019/20

1.1

The Corporate Support Manager presented the Scrutiny Annual Report for
2019/20.
The Council had one Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the remit to
investigate, scrutinise, monitor, oversee and comment on service delivery
mechanisms, policy implementation, or any other issue affecting the
Borough or its residents provided that they had previously been
considered by either the Executive Committee or Council.
Membership of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 2019/20 was
Councillors McLeavy (Chairman), Cassidy (Vice-Chairman), Gawne,
Husband, McClure, McEwan, Mooney, Morgan, Pidduck, Robson, C.
Thomson and Worthington.
Members had previously agreed to develop a four year work programme
(2019-2023) and had identified topics for review. These were presented in
Table 1 of the report. The Committee recognised that additional urgent
items may be identified during the period and they would be considered in
an appropriate timeframe.

1.2

Recommendation:Members are invited to consider the annual report and recommend
that the Chair presents it at the next Council meeting.

Agenda Item 12
Page 140

Delegated Decisions
The matters determined by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in exercise of
the powers which have been delegated to the Committee will be detailed in the
Minutes of the meeting noted above reproduced in Volume 1 (2020/2021) of the
printed Minutes.
Background Papers
Nil

